
COMMISSION 
MEETING 

September 26, 2018 

10:00 a.m. – 1:00 p.m. 

PRA 
Auditorium 

6600 Kenilworth Avenue 
Riverdale, MD 20737 



ITEM 1 

MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
Wednesday, September 26, 2018   

PRA (Auditorium) 
10:00 a.m. – 1:00 p.m. 

ACTION 
      Motion   Second 

1. Approval of Commission Agenda (10:00) (+*) Page 1 

2. Approval of Commission Minutes
a) Open Session – July 18, 2018 (+*) Page 3 
b) Closed Session – July 18, 2018 (++*) 

3. General Announcements (10:10)
a) September is Hispanic Heritage Month, September 15-Octoer 15
b) Kinderfest, Watkins Park, October 7, 2018
c) Commission Service Awards Luncheon, Brookside Gardens, October 17, 2018
d) Prince George’s County Budget Forums

4. Committee Minutes/Board Reports (For Information Only) (10:15)
a) Executive Committee Meeting – Open Session – September 17, 2018 (+) Page 9 
b) Executive Committee Meeting – Closed Session – September 17, 2018 (++) 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes September 11, 2018 (+) Page 12 

5. Closed Session
Pursuant to the Maryland General Provisions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, Section
3-305(b)(7) and (9), a closed session is proposed to consult with counsel to obtain legal advice;
and to conduct collective bargaining discussions, or consider matters that relate to the negotiations.

6. Action and Presentation Items (10:50)
a) Resolution #18-25 Re-appointment of Michael Strand to the Merit Board (King/Barney) (+*) Page 17 
b) Resolution #18-26 Amendments to Employees’ Retirement System Plans B & E Purchases of

Credited Service for Non-Represented Employees (Barney) (+*) Page 19 
c) Resolution #18-27 $31,500,000 Prince George’s County General Obligation Park Acquisition (+*) Page 20

and Development Project Bonds, Series PGC-2018A (Zimmerman)
d) Resolution #18-28 $15,000,000 Montgomery County General Obligation Park Acquisition  (+*) Page 62

and Development Project Bonds, Series MC-2018A (Zimmerman)
e) Resolution #18-29 Town of Cottage City Mutual Aid and Reciprocal Enforcement

Agreement (Dickerson/Johnson) (+*)Page 103 
f) Resolution #18-30 Town of Colmar Manor Aid and Reciprocal Enforcement

Agreement (Dickerson/Johnson) (+*)Page 105 
g) Resolution #18-31 Amendment to Resolution #18-21 Employees’ Retirement System

Plans B & E Surviving Spouse Benefit (Barney) (+*)Page 123 
h) 2019 Group Insurance Rates (Spencer/McDonald) (+*)Page 128 
i) CAS Labor Cost Allocation for FY20 (Kroll/Duong) (+*)Page 143 
j) Annual Audit Report (Kenney/Dreyfuss) (+) Page 148 
k) Recommended Amendments to MSRR Sick Leave Provisions,

Ch. 1400 & 1600 (Bennett/Beckham) (+*)Page 160 
l) Recommended Amendment to MSRR Annual Leave Carry-Over Prov,

Sec. 1460 (Bennett/Beckham) (+*)Page 175 

1



7. Officers’ Reports (12:20)
a) Executive Director’s Report (For Information Only)

Employee Evaluations Not Completed by Due Date (June and July 2018) (+)  Page 181 
b) Secretary Treasurer (For Information Only)

Investment Report June / July 2018 (+)  Page 183 
115 Trust Annual Report (+) Page 193 
MFD 4th Quarter Purchasing Statistics for FY18 (+) Page 195 

c) General Counsel (For Information Only)
Litigation Report July/August (+) Page 208 

(+) Attachment   (++) Commissioners Only            (*) Vote  (H) Handout  (LD) Late Delivery   

2



Item 2a

3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



Item 4c

12



13



14



15



This page intentionally left blank.   

16



Item 6a

17



18



Item 6b

19



20



RESOLUTION NO. 18-27 

$31,500,000  
Prince George’s County  

General Obligation 
Park Acquisition and Development Project Bonds, 

Series PGC-2018A 

RECITALS 

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission (the “Commission”) has 

determined to authorize the issuance of one or more series of its Prince George’s County General 

Obligation Park Acquisition and Development Project Bonds, Series PGC-2018A in an 

aggregate amount not to exceed $31,500,000 (collectively, the “Bonds”), pursuant to 

Sections 18-201 through 18-211, inclusive, of the Land Use Article of the Annotated Code of 

Maryland (2012 Replacement Volume and 2017 Supplement) (the “Land Use Article”).  The 

Commission is authorizing the issuance of the Bonds (1) to finance and refinance the cost of 

certain park acquisition and development projects in Prince George’s County, Maryland (the 

“Projects”) and (2) to pay the cost of issuance related to the Bonds. 

The Bonds may be issued in the form of serial bonds, term bonds, commercial paper, 

variable rate demand bonds or such other form as the Commission or its authorized designee 

may determine is advisable in consultation with the financial advisor to the Commission and its 

bond counsel. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

Section 1: Authorization of Bonds.  Acting pursuant to the authority of Sections 18-

201 through 18-211, inclusive, of the Land Use Article, the Commission hereby authorizes the 

Item 6c

21



borrowing of a sum not to exceed $31,500,000 and the evidencing of such borrowing by the 

issuance of one or more series of its Bonds in like aggregate principal amount, to be designated 

“Prince George’s County General Obligation Park Acquisition and Development Project Bonds, 

Series PGC-2018A”, or as further designated by the Secretary-Treasurer.  The Bonds are being 

issued in order to provide funds (i) to pay the costs of the Projects and (ii) to pay, at the 

discretion of the Secretary-Treasurer, all or a portion of the cost of issuance of the Bonds. 

Section 2: Terms of the Bonds. 

(a) General Provisions.  The Bonds shall be issued as fully registered bonds.  The

Commission hereby authorizes the Chairman or Vice Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer of 

the Commission, in consultation with its bond counsel and financial advisor, to determine and 

approve on behalf of the Commission the denominations, the form, terms and conditions, the 

method of determining the interest rates (variable or fixed), the maturity schedule, the 

redemption provisions, if any, the amount of the good faith deposit, if any, the dates and the 

terms and conditions of the sale and delivery of the Bonds, and all other terms, conditions and 

provisions relating to the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds, in accordance with the 

provisions of this Resolution. 

The Bonds shall be numbered from No. R-1 upward, shall be dated and mature (subject 

to the right of prior redemption, if any) as determined by the Secretary-Treasurer, in the principal 

amounts approved by the Chairman or Vice Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer of the 

Commission, at or prior to the sale of the Bonds; provided however, that in no event shall the 

Bonds mature later than 50 years from the date of issue as required by Section 18-203(e) of the 

Land Use Article. 

(b) Book-Entry.  The Bonds shall initially be maintained under a book-entry system

with The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, or other securities depository, and 

shall be registered in the name of the nominee of such securities depository, all as more fully set 

forth in an official statement or offering memorandum with respect to the issuance and sale of 

the Bonds, provided the Secretary-Treasurer does not determine that it is in the best interest of 

22



the Commission to initially maintain the Bonds under a system other than the book-entry system.  

The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized to take all action necessary or appropriate to 

provide for the issuance of the Bonds in book-entry form, including (without limitation) 

execution of letters of representations with The Depository Trust Company, or such other 

securities depository.  If in the judgment of the Secretary-Treasurer it is in the best interests of 

the Commission to maintain the Bonds or any series of the Bonds under a system other than the 

book-entry system or to discontinue the maintenance of the Bonds or any series of the Bonds 

under a book-entry system, the Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized to provide for the 

termination of the book-entry system, if necessary, and the delivery of printed certificates for 

such Bonds in lieu thereof.  The Secretary-Treasurer may designate a different securities 

depository. 

(c) County Guarantee.  The Bonds shall be guaranteed as to payment of principal and 

interest by Prince George’s County, Maryland (“Prince George’s County”), as required by 

Section 18-204(d) of the Land Use Article, and such guaranty shall be endorsed on each bond 

certificate in the manner hereinafter provided as required by Section 18-204(d) of the Land Use 

Article. 

(d) Interest Provisions.  The Chairman or Vice Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer 

shall determine and approve the method for setting the rates of interest for the Bonds.  The rates 

of interest for the Bonds shall be as determined and approved by the Chairman or Vice Chairman 

and the Secretary-Treasurer to be in the best interest of the Commission.  If the Bonds are 

competitively sold, the Bonds shall bear interest at the rate or rates for each maturity named by 

the successful bidder for the Bonds, in accordance with the terms of the Notice of Sale 

hereinafter adopted.  Interest shall be payable on the dates (each an “Interest Payment Date”) and 

in the manner determined by the Secretary-Treasurer.  The Bonds shall bear interest from the 

most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, or from 

their date if no interest has been paid on the Bonds. 

23



(e) Redemption Provisions.  The Bonds may be subject to redemption at the times,

upon the terms and conditions and at the redemption prices approved by the Chairman or Vice 

Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer in consultation with the Commission’s financial advisor 

and bond counsel, at or prior to the sale of the Bonds. 

Section 3: Execution.  The Bonds shall be signed by the manual or facsimile 

signature of the Chairman of the Commission and shall be attested by the manual or facsimile 

signature of the Secretary-Treasurer of the Commission.  There shall be printed on each of the 

Bonds a facsimile of the seal of the Commission.  In case any officer of the Commission whose 

manual or facsimile signature shall appear on any Bond shall cease to be such officer before the 

delivery of such Bond, or in the case that any such officer shall take office subsequent to the date 

of issue of any such Bond, such signature or facsimile shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient 

for the purposes herein intended. 

Section 4: Authentication.  No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or 

entitled to any security or benefit under this Resolution unless and until a certificate of 

authentication of such Bond substantially in the form hereinafter adopted shall have been duly 

executed by the Registrar (hereinafter defined) and such executed certificate of the Registrar on 

such Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such Bond has been authenticated and delivered 

under this Resolution.  The Registrar’s certificate of authentication on any Bond shall be deemed 

to have been executed by it if signed by an authorized officer or signatory of the Registrar.  It 

shall not be necessary that the same officer or signatory of the Registrar sign the certificate of 

authentication for all the Bonds issued hereunder. 

Section 5: Payment of Bonds.  The principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the 

Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America at the time of payment. 

So long as the Bonds or any series of the Bonds are maintained under a book-entry system with 

The Depository Trust Company, principal of and premium, if any, and interest on such Bonds 

shall be payable to Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, all as described 

in an official statement or offering memorandum related to such Bonds.  If the book-entry system 

24



for the Bonds or any series of the Bonds shall be discontinued in accordance with this 

Resolution, the principal of and premium, if any, on such Bonds shall be payable upon 

presentation thereof at a designated corporate trust office of a bank or other entity hereafter to be 

determined by the Secretary-Treasurer, which bank or other entity, or any successor thereof, 

shall be designated as paying agent for such Bonds (the “Paying Agent”).  Interest on such 

Bonds shall be payable by wire transfer, check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent to the 

registered owners thereof as of the record date immediately preceding each Interest Payment 

Date (the “Record Date”) at their addresses as they appear on the Bond Register (hereinafter 

defined) or to such other address as is furnished to the Paying Agent by a registered owner.  The 

Secretary-Treasurer may determine that the Office of the Secretary-Treasurer of the Commission 

will act as the Paying Agent or designate a Paying Agent as provided in this Resolution.  Such 

designation by the Secretary-Treasurer may be done at any time and from time to time. 

When there is no existing default in the payment of interest on the Bonds, the person in 

whose name any Bond is registered on the Record Date with respect to an Interest Payment Date 

shall be entitled to receive the interest payable on such Interest Payment Date (unless such Bond 

has been called for redemption on a redemption date which is prior to such Interest Payment 

Date) notwithstanding the cancellation of such Bond upon any registration of transfer or 

exchange thereof subsequent to such Record Date and prior to such Interest Payment Date. 

Any interest on any Bond which is payable, but is not punctually paid or duly provided 

for, on any Interest Payment Date (herein called “Defaulted Interest”) shall forthwith cease to be 

payable to the registered owner of the Bond on the relevant Record Date by virtue of having 

been such owner; and such Defaulted Interest shall be paid by the Paying Agent to the person in 

whose name the Bond is registered at the close of business on a date (the “Special Record Date”) 

which shall be fixed by the Secretary-Treasurer in consultation with the Paying Agent and bond 

counsel.  Defaulted Interest shall be paid to the persons in whose names the Bonds are registered 

on such Special Record Date. 

25



Subject to the foregoing provisions of this Section, each Bond delivered under this 

Resolution upon transfer of or in exchange for or in lieu of any other Bond shall carry the rights 

to interest accrued and unpaid, and to accrue, which were carried by such other Bond. 

Section 6: Registration, Transfer or Exchange of Bonds.  The Commission shall 

cause to be kept at a designated corporate trust office of a bank or another designated entity 

hereafter to be determined by the Secretary-Treasurer, which shall be appointed the Registrar for 

the Bonds (the “Registrar”), a register (the “Bond Register”) for the registration of the transfer or 

exchange of any Bonds.  The Secretary-Treasurer may determine that the Office of the 

Secretary-Treasurer of the Commission will serve as the Registrar or the Secretary-Treasurer 

may appoint a Registrar as provided in this Resolution.  Such designation by the Secretary-

Treasurer may be done at any time and from time to time.  Each Bond shall be registered and 

transferred or exchanged in accordance with the terms and conditions with respect thereto set 

forth on the face of such Bond, the form of which is hereinafter adopted. 

Section 7: Cancellation of Bonds.  The Bonds paid at maturity or upon prior 

redemption shall be canceled and destroyed by the Bond Registrar in accordance with practices 

that are commonly used in the marketplace at that time and certificates of such action shall be 

transmitted to the Commission. 

Section 8: Form of Bonds.  The Bonds hereby authorized shall be in substantially 

the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, with appropriate insertions as therein set forth, which is 

hereby adopted by the Commission as the approved form of the obligations to be incurred by it, 

and all the covenants, conditions and representations contained in said form are hereby declared 

to be binding on the Commission and to constitute contracts between the Commission and the 

holders from time to time of the Bonds, said contracts to become binding when the Bonds are 

executed and delivered as herein authorized.  Such form may be modified by the Secretary-

Treasurer in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution, including but not limited to, 

modifications for the issuance of bonds in the form of serial bonds, term bonds, commercial 

paper, variable rate demand bonds or such other form as the Secretary-Treasurer may determine 

26



advisable in consultation with the financial advisor to the Commission and its bond counsel and 

modifications to reflect the maintenance of the Bonds under a book-entry system or the 

termination of a book-entry system as provided herein. 

Section 9: Negotiated Sale.  The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized to sell the 

Bonds or any series of the Bonds by private negotiated sale on behalf of the Commission as 

authorized by Section 18-203(f) of the Land Use Article.  The Chairman or Vice Chairman and 

the Secretary-Treasurer of the Commission, in consultation with bond counsel and the financial 

advisor to the Commission, are hereby authorized to determine on behalf of the Commission the 

method for conducting such private negotiated sale.  The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby 

authorized to solicit and accept proposals for the sale of such Bonds on a private, negotiated 

basis.  The Secretary-Treasurer of the Commission is hereby authorized to negotiate an 

agreement for the purchase of such Bonds (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”), to be approved by 

the Secretary-Treasurer in consultation with the Planning Board of Prince George’s County, in 

accordance with the limitations set forth in this Resolution. 

Section 10: Public Sale; Notice of Sale.  The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby 

authorized to sell the Bonds or any series of the Bonds by public competitive sale.  In the event 

of a public sale, the Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized to advertise such sale by any 

electronic medium or financial journal or to publish a notice of sale or a summary thereof calling 

for bids for such Bonds in such other manner as the Secretary-Treasurer shall deem appropriate, 

such publication to be at least five days before the date for the receipt of bids.  The Secretary-

Treasurer is authorized to offer the Bonds or any series of the Bonds for sale by competitive bid 

and accept bids, including but not limited to electronic bids via such service provider as the 

Secretary-Treasurer deems appropriate and is approved by bond counsel to the Commission or 

the financial advisor to the Commission.  Said notice of sale shall be substantially in the form of 

Exhibit B attached hereto, subject to such changes, insertions (including without limitation the 

insertion of the appropriate amounts and dates in the respective spaces provided therefor in such 

form) and amendments as the Secretary-Treasurer deems necessary and approves upon the 

27



advice of bond counsel and the financial advisor to the Commission, the Secretary-Treasurer’s 

publication of such notice to constitute conclusive evidence of the approval of the Secretary-

Treasurer of all changes from the form set forth in Exhibit B.  In lieu of publishing the entire 

notice of sale as set forth in Exhibit B in a financial journal or by electronic medium as above 

specified, the Secretary-Treasurer, upon the advice of the financial advisor to the Commission, 

may determine to publish a summary of said notice of sale. 

Section 11: Official Statement; Guaranty. 

(a) The Secretary-Treasurer may prepare a private placement memorandum, a 

preliminary official statement, a final official statement or another form of offering 

memorandum (collectively, the “Official Statement”) and a notice of sale with respect to the 

issuance and sale of any series of the Bonds, including any financial and other information about 

the Commission, Prince George’s County and Prince George’s County, Maryland deemed 

appropriate by the Secretary-Treasurer. 

(b) The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to make all 

arrangements for the printing, execution and delivery of the Official Statement and certificates 

for any series of the Bonds. 

(c) The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to arrange with the 

County Executive of Prince George’s County for the endorsement on the Bonds of the guarantee 

of the payment of the principal thereof and interest thereon, as herein outlined and as required by 

law.  The Bonds shall not be delivered until after the endorsement of such guaranty thereon. 

28



Section 12: Use of Bond Proceeds.  The proceeds of the sale of the Bonds (i) shall be 

used to pay the costs of the Projects, and (ii) may be used to pay all or a portion of the issuance 

costs of the Bonds. 

Section 13: Tax Pledge.  The Commission hereby pledges its full faith and credit and 

the proceeds of the taxes required to be levied and collected for the Commission by Prince 

George’s County under Section 18-304 of the Land Use Article, to the payment of the principal 

of and premium and interest on the Bonds as they become due. 

The Commission covenants with each and every holder, from time to time, of the Bonds 

issued hereunder to allocate the proceeds of said taxes, as received, pari passu, to debt service on 

all outstanding bonds and notes issued by it, including this issue of Bonds, payable from said 

taxes, subject only to the prior rights of the holders of bonds of the Commission which are 

secured by a pledge of a specific portion of said tax.  The Commission further covenants not to 

issue any additional bonds or notes payable from said taxes in excess of the limits prescribed, 

from time to time, by Section 18-203(d) of the Land Use Article. 

With respect to the Bonds hereby authorized, the Commission covenants with the holders 

thereof annually to submit to Prince George’s County a budget requesting levy of said taxes to 

produce the revenues to pay the debt service to which the revenues from said taxes is pledged 

hereby, and to take all action it legally can take to compel Prince George’s County to levy taxes 

at rates sufficient for the purpose and to fulfill and perform its guarantee of the payment, when 

due, of the principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

Section 14: Tax and Arbitrage Covenants.  The Chairman or the Vice Chairman and 

the Secretary-Treasurer shall be the officers of the Commission responsible for the issuance of 

the Bonds within the meaning of the Arbitrage Regulations (defined herein).  The Chairman or 

the Vice Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer shall also be the officers of the Commission 

responsible for the execution and delivery (on the date of issuance of the Bonds) of a certificate 

of the Commission (the “Section 148 Certificate”) which complies with the requirements of 

Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“Section 148”), and the 

29



applicable regulations thereunder (the “Arbitrage Regulations”), and such officials are hereby 

directed to execute the Section 148 Certificate and to deliver the same to bond counsel on the 

date of the issuance of the Bonds. 

The Commission shall set forth in the Section 148 Certificate its reasonable expectations 

as to relevant facts, estimates and circumstances relating to the use of the proceeds of the Bonds, 

or of any moneys, securities or other obligations to the credit of any account of the Commission 

which may be deemed to be proceeds of the Bonds pursuant to Section 148 or the Arbitrage 

Regulations (collectively, “Bond Proceeds”).  The Commission covenants that the facts, 

estimates and circumstances set forth in the Section 148 Certificate will be based on the 

Commission’s reasonable expectations on the date of issuance of the Bonds and will be, to the 

best of the certifying officials’ knowledge, true and correct as of that date. 

The Commission covenants and agrees with each of the holders of any of the Bonds that 

it will not make, or (to the extent that it exercises control or direction) permit to be made, any use 

of the Bond Proceeds which would cause the Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning 

of Section 148 and the Arbitrage Regulations.  The Commission further covenants that it will 

comply with Section 148 and the regulations thereunder which are applicable to the Bonds on the 

date of issuance of the Bonds and which may subsequently lawfully be made applicable to the 

Bonds. 

The Commission further covenants that it shall make such use of the proceeds of the 

Bonds, regulate the investment of the proceeds thereof, and take such other and further actions as 

may be required to maintain the excludability from gross income for federal income tax purposes 

of interest on the Bonds.  All officers, employees and agents of the Commission are hereby 

authorized and directed to take such actions, and to provide such certifications of facts and 

estimates regarding the amount and use of the proceeds of the Bonds, as may be necessary or 

appropriate from time to time to comply with, or to evidence the Commission’s compliance with, 

the covenants set forth in this Section. 

30



The Chairman or Vice Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer, on behalf of the 

Commission, may make such covenants or agreements in connection with the issuance of the 

Bonds as such official shall deem advisable in order to assure the registered owners of the Bonds 

that interest thereon shall be and remain excludable from gross income for federal income tax 

purposes, and such covenants or agreements shall be binding on the Commission so long as the 

observance by the Commission of any such covenants or agreements is necessary in connection 

with the maintenance of the exclusion of the interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal 

income tax purposes.  The foregoing covenants and agreements may include such covenants or 

agreements on behalf of the Commission regarding compliance with the provisions of the 

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, as the Chairman or Vice Chairman and the 

Secretary-Treasurer shall deem advisable in order to assure the registered owners of the Bonds 

that the interest thereon shall be and remain excludable from gross income for federal income tax 

purposes, including (without limitation) covenants or agreements relating to the investment of 

the proceeds of the Bonds, the payment of rebate (or payments in lieu of rebate) to the United 

States, limitations on the times within which, and the purpose for which, such proceeds may be 

expended, or the use of specified procedures for accounting for and segregating such proceeds. 

Section 15: Appointment of Trustee and other Service Providers.  The Secretary-

Treasurer is hereby authorized to engage the services of a trustee, a registrar, a paying agent, a 

credit facility provider, a broker-dealer, a placement agent, a remarketing agent, an underwriter, 

a liquidity facility provider and such other service providers as the Secretary-Treasurer deems 

appropriate from time to time with respect to the Bonds. 

Section 16: Approval, Execution and Delivery of Documents.  The Secretary-

Treasurer may prepare, as appropriate and shall submit for the approval of the Chairman or the 

Vice Chairman any agreement with a registrar, a paying agent, a trustee, credit facility provider, 

a placement agent, a broker-dealer, a remarketing agent, an underwriter, a liquidity facility 

provider and such other service providers as the Secretary-Treasurer deems appropriate from 

time to time with respect to the Bonds or any series of the Bonds (collectively, the “Transaction 

31



Documents”).  The Chairman or Vice Chairman is hereby authorized to execute and deliver, as 

appropriate, such Transaction Documents.  The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary-Treasurer 

and all other authorized officers of the Commission are hereby authorized to execute and deliver 

such other and further documents, certifications and forms as may be necessary, appropriate or 

advisable in order to effectuate the transaction authorized by this Resolution. 

Section 17: Continuing Disclosure Agreement.  The Secretary-Treasurer is expressly 

authorized to approve the form of, and execute and deliver on behalf of the Commission, a 

continuing disclosure agreement or certificate to assist bidders and/or underwriters in complying 

with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission 

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

Section 18: Award of Bonds.  The Chairman or the Vice Chairman with prior 

consultation with the Planning Board of Prince George’s County, and the Secretary-Treasurer are 

hereby authorized with respect to the Bonds or any series of the Bonds to accept the best bid for 

such Bonds, reject all other bids for such Bonds, set the interest rates of such Bonds and set the 

maturity schedules and terms of redemption of the Bonds, in accordance with the limitations set 

forth in this Resolution. 

Section 19: Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect from the date of its 

passage. 

32



I, JOSEPH C. ZIMMERMAN, the duly appointed, qualified and acting Secretary-

Treasurer of The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission, do hereby certify 

that the foregoing is a true copy of Resolution No. 18-27, adopted by said Commission at a 

regular meeting thereof duly called and held on September 26, 2018. 

I do further certify that Commissioners Anderson, Bailey, Cichy, Doerner, Dreyfuss, 

Fani-Gonzalez, Geraldo, Hewlett, Patterson and Washington were present.  A motion to adopt 

was made and seconded.  The Resolution was adopted unanimously. 

I do further certify that said Resolution has not been amended and is still in force and 

effect on the date hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and the seal of The Maryland-

National Capital Park and Planning Commission, this ___th day of _____________, 2018. 

_________________________________________ 
Secretary-Treasurer 

This is to certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 18-27 adopted by 
the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission on motion of Commissioner 
______________ seconded by Commissioner ______________, with Commissioners Anderson, 
Bailey, Cichy, Doerner, Dreyfuss, Fani-Gonzalez, Geraldo, Hewlett, Patterson and Washington 
voting in favor of the motion, and Commissioners __________ absent during the vote, at its 
meeting held on September 26,  2018, in Riverdale, Maryland. 

_________________________________________ 
Patricia Colihan Barney 
Executive Director 

33



Exhibit A 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA  

STATE OF MARYLAND 

 

No. R-_____ $___________ 

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Prince George’s County  
General Obligation  

Park Acquisition and Development Project Bond,  
Series PGC-2018A  

 

Dated Date Interest Rate Maturity Date CUSIP 

[_________], 2018 ___% per annum  ____________, 20__ ________ 

Registered Owner: Cede & Co. 

Principal Amount: ____________________________________________________ DOLLARS 

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission (the “Commission”), a 

public body corporate, organized and existing under the laws of the State of Maryland, hereby 

acknowledges itself indebted for value received and, upon presentation and surrender hereof, 

promises to pay to the Registered Owner shown above, or his registered assigns, on the Maturity 

Date shown above, unless this bond shall have been called for prior redemption and payment of 

the redemption price made or provided for, the Principal Amount shown above, and to pay 

interest on the outstanding principal amount hereof from the most recent Interest Payment Date 

(as hereinafter defined) to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, or, if no interest has 

been paid on this bond, from the date of this bond, at the annual rate of interest set forth above, 

payable semi-annually on __________ 1/15 and __________ 1/15 each year, beginning 

__________ 1/15, 2019 (each an “Interest Payment Date”) until payment of such Principal 

Amount shall be discharged as provided in the Resolution (hereinafter defined), by wire transfer 

or check mailed by the Commission or banking institution or other entity designated as paying 

34



agent by the Commission (the “Paying Agent”), or any successor thereto, to the person in whose 

name this bond is registered on the registration books maintained by the Registrar (identified 

herein) at the close of business on the [fifteenth day of the month immediately preceding each 

Interest Payment Date] [first day of the month in which such Interest Payment Date occurs] (the 

“Record Date”).  Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, interest on this bond which is payable, 

but is not punctually paid or duly provided for, on any Interest Payment Date shall forthwith 

cease to be payable to the owner of this Bond on the relevant Record Date by virtue of having 

been such owner and such interest shall be paid by the Paying Agent to the person in whose 

name this bond is registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of 

such interest, which shall be fixed as provided in the Resolution. 

Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on this bond are payable in lawful money of 

the United States of America, at the time of payment.  Principal and premium, if any, hereon will 

be payable upon presentation and surrender of this bond by the registered owner hereof in person 

or by his duly authorized attorney, at the designated office of the Paying Agent. 

This bond is a general obligation of the Commission and of Prince George’s County, 

Maryland (the “County”), to the payment, in accordance with its terms, of the principal of and 

interest on which the Commission and the County hereby each pledge their respective full faith 

and credit and taxing power. 

The principal of and premium and interest on this bond are payable in the first instance 

from mandatory limited annual ad valorem property taxes which the County is required by 

Section 18-304 of the Land Use Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland (2012 Replacement 

Volume and 2017 Supplement) (the “Land Use Article”) to levy at a fixed rate against all 

property assessed for the purposes of county taxation in the portion of the Maryland-Washington 

Metropolitan District (the “District”) established by Title 19 of the Land Use Article located in 

the County.  Section 18-209 of the Land Use Article provides that, if said mandatory tax is 

insufficient to pay the principal of and interest on this bond, the County shall levy an additional 

tax upon all assessable property within the portion of the District in the County, and, if the 

35



proceeds of such additional tax are still inadequate for such purposes, upon all assessable 

property within the corporate limits of the County, to pay such deficiency.  By the guaranty 

endorsed hereon, the full faith and credit of the County is pledged to the payment, when due, of 

the principal of and interest on this bond.  

This bond is one of an issue of bonds (the “Bonds”) each of a par value of $5,000 or an 

integral multiple thereof in the aggregate principal amount of $____________, numbered from 

No. R-1 upwards, all dated as of the Dated Date and all known as:  “The Maryland-National 

Capital Park and Planning Commission Prince George’s County General Obligation Park 

Acquisition and Development Project Bonds, Series PGC-2018A”.  Unless previously redeemed 

as herein provided, the Bonds mature and are payable in consecutive annual installments on 

__________ 1/15 in each of the years 2019 through 20__, and bear interest payable on each 

Interest Payment Date until their respective maturities or prior redemption.  The Bonds are 

issued pursuant to the authority of Sections 18-201 through 18-211, inclusive, of the Land Use 

Article and in accordance with Resolution No. 18-__ of the Commission duly adopted on 

______________, 2018 (the “Resolution”). 

The Bonds which mature on or after ___________ 1/15, 2029, are subject to redemption 

prior to their respective maturities, at the option of the Commission, in whole or in part in any 

order of their maturities, at any time on or after ____________ 1/15, 2028, at a redemption price 

equal to the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed, together with interest accrued 

thereon to the date fixed for redemption. 

If less than all of the Bonds are called for redemption, the particular maturities to be 

redeemed shall be selected by the Commission.  If less than all of the Bonds of any one maturity 

are called for redemption, the particular Bonds to be redeemed from such maturity shall be 

selected by lot or other random means by the Paying Agent in such manner as the Paying Agent 

in its discretion may determine, provided that each $5,000 of the principal amount of any Bond 

shall be treated as a separate Bond for this purpose. 

36



Notice of call for redemption shall be delivered to the Depository (as defined herein) 

prior to the date fixed for redemption in accordance with the Depository’s procedures.  If the 

book-entry system is discontinued for the Bonds, a notice calling for redemption of the Bonds to 

be redeemed shall be mailed by the Commission as Paying Agent, postage prepaid, at least thirty 

(30) days prior to the date fixed for redemption (the “Redemption Date”), to all registered

owners of Bonds to be redeemed, at their last addresses appearing on the registration books kept 

by the Registrar.  Failure to deliver or mail any such notice, or any defect in such notice, or in the 

delivery or mailing thereof, shall not affect the validity of any redemption proceedings.  Such 

notice shall specify the issue, the numbers and the maturities of the Bonds to be redeemed, which 

statement of numbers may be from one number to another, inclusive, the Redemption Date and 

the redemption price, any conditions to such redemption, and shall further state that on such date 

the Bonds called for redemption will be due and become payable at the offices of the Paying 

Agent, and that, from and after such date, interest thereon shall cease to accrue. 

From and after the date fixed for redemption, if notice has been given as herein provided, 

and the funds sufficient for payment of the redemption price and accrued interest shall be 

available therefore on such date, the Bonds so designated for redemption shall cease to bear 

interest.  Upon presentation and surrender in compliance with such notice, the Bonds so called 

for redemption shall be paid by the Paying Agent at the redemption price.  If not so paid on 

presentation thereof, such Bonds so called shall continue to bear interest at the rates expressed 

therein until paid. 

This bond shall be registered as to principal and interest in the owner’s name on the 

registration books kept for that purpose at the office of the Secretary-Treasurer or a designated 

office of the banking institution or other entity, or any successor thereto, designated by the 

Secretary-Treasurer (the “Registrar”). 

The transfer of this bond is registerable by the registered owner hereof in person or by his 

attorney or legal representative at a principal office of the Registrar upon surrender and 

cancellation of this bond together with a duly executed assignment in the form attached hereto 

37



and satisfactory to the Registrar.  Upon any such registration of transfer, the Registrar shall 

authenticate and deliver in exchange for this bond a registered Bond or Bonds registered in the 

name of the transferee of authorized denomination or denominations, in the aggregate principal 

amount equal to the principal amount of this bond or the unredeemed portion hereof, of the same 

maturity and bearing interest at the same rate.  Bonds may be exchanged for an equal aggregate 

principal amount of Bonds of the same maturity, bearing interest at the same rate, of other 

authorized denominations, at a principal office of the Registrar.  The Commission and the 

Registrar may make a charge for every such exchange or transfer sufficient to reimburse it for 

any tax, fee, or other governmental charge, shipping charges and insurance required to be paid 

with respect to such exchange or transfer, and in addition, may charge a sum sufficient to 

reimburse them for expenses incurred in connection with such exchange or transfer.  All Bonds 

surrendered in such exchange or registration of transfer shall forthwith be canceled by the 

Registrar.  The Registrar shall not be required to register the transfer of this bond or make any 

such exchange of this bond after the mailing of notice calling this bond or any portion hereof for 

redemption. 

So long as all of the Bonds shall be maintained in Book-Entry Form with The Depository 

Trust Company or another securities depository (the “Depository”):  (1) in the event that fewer 

than all Bonds of any one maturity shall be called for redemption, the Depository, and not the 

Registrar, will select the particular accounts from which Bonds or portions thereof will be 

redeemed in accordance with the Depository’s standard procedures for redemption of obligations 

such as the Bonds; (2) in the event that part, but not all, of this bond shall be called for 

redemption, the holder of this bond may elect not to surrender this bond in exchange for a new 

bond in accordance with the provisions hereof and in such event shall make a notation indicating 

the principal amount of such redemption and the date thereof on the Payment Grid attached 

hereto; and (3) payments of principal or redemption price of and interest on this bond shall be 

payable to the Depository or its assigns in accordance with the provisions of the Resolution.  For 

all purposes, the principal amount of this bond outstanding at any time shall be equal to the lesser 

38



of (A) the principal sum shown on the face hereof and (B) such principal sum reduced by the 

principal amount of any partial redemption of this bond following which the holder of this bond 

has elected not to surrender this bond in accordance with the provisions hereof.  The failure of 

the holder hereof to note the principal amount of any partial redemption on the Payment Grid 

attached hereto, or any inaccuracy therein, shall not affect the payment obligation of the 

Commission hereunder.  THEREFORE, IT CANNOT BE DETERMINED FROM THE FACE 

OF THIS BOND WHETHER A PART OF THE PRINCIPAL OF THIS BOND HAS BEEN 

PAID. 

It is hereby certified and recited that each and every act, condition and thing required to 

exist, to be done, to have happened and to be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this 

bond, does exist, has been done, has happened and has been performed, in full and strict 

compliance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Maryland and the proceedings of the 

Commission and of the County, and that the issue of bonds of which this bond is one, together 

with all other indebtedness of said Commission, and of the County, is within every debt and 

other limit prescribed by the Constitution and laws of said State. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning 

Commission, in the State of Maryland, has caused this bond to be signed in its name by the 

signature of its Chairman and attested by the signature of its Secretary-Treasurer and has caused 

the facsimile of its corporate seal to be imprinted hereon, all as of Dated Date set forth above. 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 
Secretary-Treasurer 

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL 
PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

By: __________________________________ 
       Chairman 

(CORPORATE SEAL) 

39



GUARANTY 

The payment of interest when due, and of the principal on maturity, is guaranteed by 
Prince George’s County, Maryland. 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 
Clerk 

PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, 
   MARYLAND 

By: __________________________________ 
       County Executive 

(CORPORATE SEAL) 

40



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

This bond is one of the Bonds issued under the provisions of and described in the within 
mentioned Resolution of The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission. 

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL 
PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Registrar 

By: __________________________________ 
       Authorized Officer 

Date of Authentication:  _____________, 2018 

41



ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 

(Please Insert Social Security or Other Identifying Number of Assignee) ___________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

(Print or Type Name and Address, Including Zip Code of Assignee) 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

the within bond and all rights thereunder, and does hereby constitute and appoint ____________ 

____________ attorney to transfer the within bond on the books kept for the registration thereof, 

with full power of substitution in the premises. 

_____________________________________ 
NOTICE: Signature must be 
guaranteed by a member firm of 
the New York Stock Exchange 
or a commercial bank or trust 
company. 

______________________________________ 
(Signature of registered owner)  
NOTICE: The signature to this assignment 
must correspond with the name as it appears 
upon the face of the within bond in every 
particular, without alteration or enlargement 
or any change whatever. 

42



PAYMENT GRID 

Date of Payment 
Principal Amount 

Paid 
Principal Amount 

Outstanding Holder Signature 

43



Exhibit B 

NOTICE OF SALE 

$____________ 
THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Prince George’s County  
General Obligation 

Park Acquisition and Development Project Bonds,  
Series PGC-2018A  

Electronic Bids only will be received until 11:00 a.m., 
Local Baltimore, Maryland Time, on _______, 2018 

by The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission (the “Commission”), for the 
purchase of the above-named issue of bonds (the “Bonds”) of the Commission, to be dated as of 
the date of their delivery and to be issued pursuant to the authority of Sections 18-201 through 
18-211, inclusive, of the Land Use Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland (2012
Replacement Volume and 2017 Supplement) (the “Land Use Article”) and a Resolution of the
Commission adopted on ____________, 2018.  The Bonds will bear interest from the date of
their delivery payable on each __________ 1/15 and __________ 1/15, commencing
__________ 1/15, 2019 until maturity or prior redemption.

The payment of the principal of and interest on all of the Bonds will be unconditionally 
guaranteed by Prince George’s County, Maryland (the “County”). 

Maturities:  The Bonds will be separately numbered from No. R-1 upward, and will 
mature, subject to prior redemption, in consecutive annual installments on __________ 1/15 in 
the years and amounts set forth in the following table: 

 MATURITY SCHEDULE 
Year of 

Maturity 
Principal 
Amount 

Year of 
Maturity 

Principal 
Amount 

$ $

Book-Entry System:  The Bonds shall be issued only in fully registered form without 
coupons.  One bond certificate representing each maturity will be issued to and registered in the 
name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York 
(“DTC”), as registered owner of the Bonds and each bond certificate shall be immobilized in the 

44



custody of DTC.  DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds.  Individual purchases will 
be made in book-entry form only, in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple 
thereof.  Purchasers will not receive physical delivery of certificates representing their interest in 
the Bonds purchased.  The successful bidder, as a condition to delivery of the Bonds, will be 
required to deposit the bond certificates representing each maturity with DTC.   

Registrar and Paying Agent:  The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning 
Commission will act as Registrar and Paying Agent for the Bonds. 

Security: All of the Bonds will be general obligations of the Commission and of the 
County for the payment, in accordance with their terms, of the principal of and interest on which 
the Commission and the County will each pledge their respective full faith and credit and taxing 
power. 

The Bonds will be payable as to both principal and interest first from limited ad valorem 
property taxes which the County is required by law to impose in the portion of the Maryland-
Washington Metropolitan District (the “District”) established by Title 19 of the Land Use Article 
located in the County and remit to the Commission.  By its guarantee of the Bonds, the full faith 
and credit of the County is pledged, as required by law, for the payment of the principal thereof 
and interest thereon.  To the extent that the aforesaid taxes imposed for the benefit of the 
Commission are inadequate in any year to pay such principal and interest, Section 18-209 of the 
Land Use Article provides that the County shall impose an additional tax upon all assessable 
property within the portion of the District in the County, and if the proceeds of such additional 
tax are still inadequate for such purposes, upon all assessable property within the corporate limits 
of the County, to pay such deficiency. 

Redemption:  The Bonds which mature on or after __________ 1/15, 2029, are subject 
to redemption prior to their respective maturities at any time on or after __________ 1/15, 2028, 
at the option of the Commission, in whole or in part, in any order of maturities, at a redemption 
price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed, together with interest accrued 
thereon to the date fixed for redemption. 

Electronic Bids:  Notice is hereby given that electronic proposals will be received via 
[PARITY], in the manner described below, until 11:00 a.m., local Baltimore, Maryland time, on 
____________, 2018. 

Bids may be submitted electronically pursuant to this Notice until 11:00 a.m., local 
Baltimore, Maryland time, but no bid will be received after the time for receiving bids specified 
above.  To the extent any instructions or directions set forth in [PARITY] conflict with this 
Notice, the terms of this Notice shall control.  For further information about [PARITY], potential 
bidders may contact [PARITY] at (212) 849-5021. 

Disclaimer: Each prospective electronic bidder shall be solely responsible to submit its 
bid via [PARITY] as described above.  Each prospective electronic bidder shall be solely 
responsible to make necessary arrangements to access [PARITY] for the purpose of submitting 
its bid in a timely manner and in compliance with the requirements of the Notice of Sale. 
Neither the Commission nor [PARITY] shall have any duty or obligation to provide or assure 

45



access to [PARITY] to any prospective bidder, and neither the Commission nor [PARITY] shall 
be responsible for proper operation of, or have any liability for any delays or interruptions of, or 
any damages caused by, [PARITY].  The Commission is using [PARITY] as a communication 
mechanism, and not as the Commission’s agent, to conduct the electronic bidding for the Bonds. 
The Commission is not bound by any advice and determination of [PARITY] to the effect that 
any particular bid complies with the terms of this Notice of Sale and in particular the “Bid 
Specifications” hereinafter set forth.  All costs and expenses incurred by prospective bidders in 
connection with their submission of bids via [PARITY] are the sole responsibility of the bidders; 
and the Commission is not responsible, directly or indirectly, for any of such costs or expenses. 
If a prospective bidder encounters any difficulty in submitting, modifying, or withdrawing a bid 
for the Bonds, the prospective bidder should telephone [PARITY] at (212) 849-5021 and notify 
the Commission’s Financial Advisor, Davenport & Company LLC, by facsimile at (866) 932-
6660 and by telephone at (410) 296-9426. 

Electronic Bidding Procedures: Electronic bids must be submitted for the purchase of 
the Bonds (all or none) via [PARITY].  Bids will be communicated electronically to the 
Commission at 11:00 a.m. local Baltimore, Maryland time, on [_________], 2018.  Prior to that 
time, a prospective bidder may (1) submit the proposed terms of its bid via [PARITY], (2) 
modify the proposed terms of its bid, in which event the proposed terms as last modified will 
(unless the bid is withdrawn as described herein) constitute its bid for the Bonds or (3) withdraw 
its proposed bid.  Once the bids are communicated electronically via [PARITY] to the 
Commission, each bid will constitute an irrevocable offer to purchase the Bonds on the terms 
therein provided.  For purposes of the electronic bidding process, the time as maintained on 
[PARITY] shall constitute the official time. 

Bid Specifications:  Proposals for purchase of the Bonds must be for all of the Bonds 
herein described and must be submitted electronically pursuant to this Notice of Sale until 11:00 
a.m. local Baltimore, Maryland time on [____________], 2018.  Bidders must pay not less than
par and not more than [105]% of par.  In their proposals, bidders are requested to specify the
annual rate or rates of interest to be borne by the Bonds.  Bidders are requested to name the
interest rate or rates in multiples of 1/8 or 1/20 of 1%.  Bidders may specify more than one rate
of interest to be borne by the Bonds, but all Bonds maturing on the same date must bear interest
at the same rate.  Bonds on successive maturity dates may bear the same interest rate.  No Bond
shall bear more than one rate of interest, which rate shall be uniform for the life of the Bond and
no interest rate may be named that exceeds [5.50]%.  The difference between the highest and
lowest interest rates may not exceed [three] percent ([3.00]%).

Award of Bonds:  The successful bidder will be determined based on the lowest interest 
cost to the Commission.  The lowest interest cost shall be determined in accordance with the true 
interest cost (“TIC”) method by doubling the semi-annual interest rate, compounded semi-
annually, necessary to discount the debt service payments from the payment dates to the date of 
the Bonds, and to the price bid. Where the proposals of two or more bidders result in the same 
lowest interest cost, the Bonds may be apportioned between such bidders, but if this shall not be 
acceptable, the Commission shall have the right to award all of the Bonds to one bidder.  The 
Commission reserves the right to reject any or all proposals and to waive any irregularities in any 
of the proposals.  The Secretary-Treasurer’s judgment shall be final and binding upon all bidders 
with respect to the form and adequacy of any proposal received and as to its conformity to the 

46



terms of this Notice of Sale.  Any award of the Bonds may be made as late as 4:00 p.m. local 
Baltimore, Maryland time on the sale date.  All bids shall remain firm until an award is made.   

Good Faith Deposit:  The successful bidder is required to submit a good faith deposit in 
the amount of $[_________] (the “Good Faith Deposit”) payable to the order of the Commission 
in the form of a wire transfer in federal funds as instructed by the Commission.  The successful 
bidder shall submit the Good Faith Deposit not more than two hours after the verbal award is 
made.  The successful bidder should provide as quickly as it is available, evidence of wire 
transfer by providing the Commission the federal funds reference number.  If the Good Faith 
Deposit is not received in the time allotted, the bid of the successful bidder may be rejected and 
the Commission may direct the next lowest bidder to submit a Good Faith Deposit and thereafter 
may award the sale of the Bonds to such bidder.  If the successful bidder fails to comply with the 
Good Faith Deposit requirement as described herein, that bidder is nonetheless obligated to pay 
to the Commission the sum of $[_________] as liquidated damages due to the failure of the 
successful bidder to timely deposit the Good Faith Deposit. 

Submission of a bid to purchase the Bonds serves as acknowledgement and acceptance 
of the terms of the Good Faith Deposit requirement. 

The Good Faith Deposit so wired will be retained by the Commission until the delivery 
of the Bonds, at which time the Good Faith Deposit will be applied against the purchase price of 
the Bonds or the Good Faith Deposit will be retained by the Commission as partial liquidated 
damages in the event of the failure of the successful bidder to take up and pay for such Bonds in 
compliance with the terms of this Notice of Sale and of its bid.  No interest on the Good Faith 
Deposit will be paid by the Commission.  The balance of the purchase price must be wired in 
federal funds to the account detailed in the closing memorandum, simultaneously with delivery 
of the Bonds. 

Establishment of Issue Price: The successful bidder shall assist the Commission in 
establishing the issue price of the Bonds and shall execute and deliver to the Commission at 
closing an “issue price” or similar certificate setting forth the reasonably expected initial offering 
price to the public or the sales price or prices of the Bonds, together with the supporting pricing 
wires or equivalent communications, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A-1 or 
Exhibit A-2, as applicable, with such modifications as may be appropriate or necessary, in the 
reasonable judgment of the successful bidder, the Commission and Bond Counsel.  All actions to 
be taken by the Commission under this Notice of Sale to establish the issue price of the Bonds 
may be taken on behalf of the Commission by the Commission’s financial advisor identified 
herein and any notice or report to be provided to the Commission may be provided to the 
Commission’s financial advisor. 

The Commission intends that the provisions of Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-
1(f)(3)(i) (defining “competitive sale” for purposes of establishing the issue price of the Bonds) 
will apply to the initial sale of the Bonds (the “competitive sale requirements”) because: 

(1) the Commission shall disseminate this Notice of Sale to potential underwriters in
a manner that is reasonably designed to reach potential underwriters; 

47



(2) all bidders shall have an equal opportunity to bid;

(3) the Commission may receive bids from at least three underwriters of municipal
bonds who have established industry reputations for underwriting new issuances of municipal 
bonds; and 

(4) the Commission anticipates awarding the sale of the Bonds to the bidder who
submits a firm offer to purchase the Bonds at the highest price (or lowest interest cost), as set 
forth in this Notice of Sale. 

 By submitting a bid, each bidder (i) confirms that its bid is a firm offer for the purchase 
of the Bonds identified in this Notice of Sale, on the terms set forth in its bid and this Notice of 
Sale, except as permitted by this Notice of Sale and (ii) represents that it has an established 
industry reputation for underwriting new issuances of municipal bonds.      

In the event that the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied, the Commission shall 
so advise the successful bidder.  The Commission may determine to treat (i) the first price at 
which 10% of a maturity of the Bonds (the “10% test”) is sold to the public as the issue price of 
that maturity and/or (ii) the initial offering price to the public as of the sale date of any maturity 
of the Bonds as the issue price of that maturity (the “hold-the-offering-price rule”), in each case 
applied on a maturity-by-maturity basis (and if different interest rates apply within a maturity, to 
each separate CUSIP number within that maturity).  The successful bidder shall advise the 
Commission if any maturity of the Bonds satisfies the 10% test as of the date and time of the 
award of the Bonds.  The Commission shall promptly advise the successful bidder, at or before 
the time of award of the Bonds, which maturities (and if different interest rates apply within a 
maturity, which separate CUSIP number within that maturity) of the Bonds shall be subject to 
the 10% test or shall be subject to the hold-the-offering-price rule.  Bids will not be subject to 
cancellation in the event that the Commission determines to apply the hold-the-offering-price 
rule to any maturity of the Bonds.  Bidders should prepare their bids on the assumption that some 
or all of the maturities of the Bonds will be subject to the hold-the-offering-price rule in order to 
establish the issue price of the Bonds. 

By submitting a bid, the successful bidder shall (i) confirm that the underwriters have 
offered or will offer the Bonds to the public on or before the date of award at the offering price 
or prices (the “initial offering price”), or at the corresponding yield or yields, set forth in the bid 
submitted by the successful bidder and (ii) agree, on behalf of the underwriters participating in 
the purchase of the Bonds, that the underwriters will neither offer nor sell unsold Bonds of any 
maturity to which the hold-the-offering-price rule shall apply to any person at a price that is 
higher than the initial offering price to the public during the period starting on the sale date and 
ending on the earlier of the following: 

(1) the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the sale date; or

(2) the date on which the underwriters have sold at least 10% of that maturity of the
Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the public. 

The successful bidder shall promptly advise the Commission when the underwriters have 
sold 10% of that maturity of the Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial 

48



offering price to the public, if that occurs prior to the close of the fifth (5th) business day after 
the sale date. 

If the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied, then until the 10% test has been 
satisfied as to each maturity of the Bonds, the successful bidder agrees to promptly report to the 
Commission the prices at which the unsold Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public. 
That reporting obligation shall continue, whether or not the closing has occurred, until the 10% 
test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of that maturity or until all Bonds of that maturity have 
been sold. 

The Commission acknowledges that, in making the representation set forth above, the 
successful bidder will rely on (i) the agreement of each underwriter to comply with the hold-the-
offering-price rule, as set forth in an agreement among underwriters and the related pricing 
wires, (ii) in the event a selling group has been created in connection with the initial sale of the 
Bonds to the public, the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group to 
comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, as set forth in a selling group agreement and the 
related pricing wires, and (iii) in the event that an underwriter is a party to a retail distribution 
agreement that was employed in connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, the 
agreement of each broker-dealer that is a party to such agreement to comply with the hold-the-
offering-price rule, as set forth in the retail distribution agreement and the related pricing wires. 
The Commission further acknowledges that each underwriter shall be solely liable for its failure 
to comply with its agreement regarding the hold-the-offering-price rule and that no underwriter 
shall be liable for the failure of any other underwriter, or of any dealer who is a member of a 
selling group, or of any broker-dealer that is a party to a retail distribution agreement to comply 
with its corresponding agreement regarding the hold-the-offering-price rule as applicable to the 
Bonds. 

By submitting a bid, each bidder confirms that: (i) any agreement among underwriters, 
any selling group agreement and each retail distribution agreement (to which the bidder is a 
party) relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing 
wires, contains or will contain language obligating each underwriter, each dealer who is a 
member of the selling group, and each broker-dealer that is a party to such retail distribution 
agreement, as applicable, to (A) report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Bonds 
of each maturity allotted to it until it is notified by the successful bidder that either the 10% test 
has been satisfied as to the Bonds of that maturity or all Bonds of that maturity have been sold to 
the public and (B) comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, in each case if and 
for so long as directed by the successful bidder and as set forth in the related pricing wires, and 
(ii) any agreement among underwriters relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public,
together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating each
underwriter that is a party to a retail distribution agreement to be employed in connection with
the initial sale of the Bonds to the public to require each broker-dealer that is a party to such
retail distribution agreement to (A) report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold
Bonds of each maturity allotted to it until it is notified by the successful bidder or such
underwriter that either the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of that maturity or all
Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public and (B) comply with the hold-the-offering-
price rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as directed by the successful bidder or
such underwriter and as set forth in the related pricing wires.

49



Sales of any Bonds to any person that is a related party to an underwriter shall not 
constitute sales to the public for purposes of this Notice of Sale.  Further, for purposes of this 
Notice of Sale: 

(i) “public” means any person other than an underwriter or a related party,

(ii) “underwriter” means (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract
with the Commission (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to 
participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public and (B) any person that agrees pursuant to 
a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (A) to participate in the 
initial sale of the Bonds to the public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail 
distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public), 

(iii) a purchaser of any of the Bonds is a “related party” to an underwriter if the
underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (i) at least 50% common 
ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both entities are corporations 
(including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (ii) more than 50% common 
ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, if both entities are partnerships (including 
direct ownership by one partnership of another), or (iii) more than 50% common ownership of 
the value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of 
the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership 
(including direct ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other), and 

(iv) “sale date” means the date that the Bonds are awarded by the Commission to the
successful bidder. 

CUSIP Numbers; Expenses of the Bidder:  It is anticipated that CUSIP numbers will 
be assigned to each maturity of the Bonds, but neither the failure to type or print such numbers 
on any of the Bonds nor any error with respect thereto shall constitute cause for a failure or 
refusal by the purchaser thereof to accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds.  The policies of the 
CUSIP Service Bureau will govern the assignment of specific numbers to the Bonds.  The 
successful bidder will be responsible for applying for and obtaining, subject to the CUSIP 
Service Bureau policy and procedures, CUSIP numbers for the Bonds promptly upon award of 
the bid.  All expenses of typing or printing CUSIP numbers for the Bonds will be paid for by the 
Commission; provided the CUSIP Service Bureau charges for the assignment of the numbers 
shall be the responsibility of and shall be paid for by the successful bidder. 

All charges of DTC and all other expenses of the successful bidder will be the 
responsibility of the successful bidder for the Bonds. 

Official Statement:  Not later than seven (7) business days after the date of sale, the 
Commission will deliver to the successful bidder an Official Statement, which is expected to be 
substantially in the form of the Preliminary Official Statement referred to below.  If so requested 
by the successful bidder for the Bonds at or before the close of business on the date of the sale, 
the Commission will include in the Official Statement such pricing and other information with 
respect to the terms of the reoffering of the Bonds of such issue by the successful bidder therefor, 
if any, as may be specified and furnished in writing by such bidder (the “Reoffering 

50



Information”).  If no such information is specified and furnished by the successful bidder, the 
Official Statement will include the interest rate or rates on the Bonds resulting from the bid of 
such successful bidder.  The successful bidder shall be responsible to the Commission and its 
officials for such Reoffering Information furnished by such bidder, and for all decisions made by 
such bidder with respect to the use or omission of the Reoffering Information in any reoffering of 
the Bonds.  The successful bidder will also be furnished, without cost, with a reasonable number 
of copies of the Official Statement as determined by the Secretary-Treasurer (and any 
amendments or supplements thereto). 

Legal Opinion: The Bonds described above will be issued and sold subject to approval 
as to legality by McGuireWoods LLP, Bond Counsel, whose approving opinion will be 
delivered, upon request, to the successful bidder for the Bonds without charge.  Such opinion 
will be substantially in the form included in Appendix [__] to the Preliminary Official Statement 
referred to below. 

Continuing Disclosure:  In order to assist bidders in complying with SEC Rule 15c2-12, 
the Commission will execute and deliver a continuing disclosure certificate on or before the date 
of issuance of the Bonds pursuant to which the Commission will undertake to provide certain 
information annually and notices of certain events.  A description of this certificate is set forth in 
the Preliminary Official Statement and will also be set forth in the Official Statement. 

Delivery and Payment:  It shall be a condition of the obligation of the successful bidder 
to accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds, that, simultaneously with or before delivery and 
payment for the Bonds, said bidder shall be furnished, without cost, with a certificate of the 
Secretary-Treasurer of the Commission to the effect that, to the best of his knowledge, the 
Official Statement and any amendment or supplement thereto (except for the Reoffering 
Information provided by the successful bidder, as to which no view will be expressed) does not 
contain, as of the date of sale and as of the date of delivery of the Bonds, any untrue statement of 
a material fact, required to be stated or necessary to be stated, to make such statements, in light 
of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. 

If the Commission advises the bidders that the bid for the Bonds constitutes a Qualified 
Competitive Bid, the winning bidder shall be required to provide to the Commission information 
to establish the initial expected offering prices for each maturity of the Bonds for federal income 
tax purposes by completing a certificate acceptable to Bond Counsel in substantially the form set 
forth in [Exhibit A-1 to this Notice of Sale], with appropriate completions, amendments and 
attachments.  

If the Commission advises the bidders that the bid for the Bonds constitutes a 
Nonqualified Competitive Bid, the winning bidder shall be required to provide to the 
Commission information and assurances to establish the initial sale prices or the initial offering 
prices, as applicable, for each maturity of the Bonds for federal income tax purposes by 
completing a certification acceptable to Bond Counsel in substantially the form set forth in 
[Exhibit A-2 to this Notice of Sale], with appropriate completions, omissions and attachments. 

Delivery of the Bonds, at the Commission’s expense, will be made by the Commission to 
the purchaser on _____________, 2018, or as soon as practicable thereafter, through the facilities 

51



of DTC in New York, New York, and, thereupon, said purchaser will be required to accept 
delivery of the Bonds purchased and pay the balance of the purchase price thereon in federal or 
other immediately available funds.  The Bonds will be accompanied by the customary closing 
documents including a no-litigation certificate effective as of the date of delivery. 

Contacts:  A preliminary official statement, which is in form “deemed final” as of its 
date by the Commission for purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-12 (the “Preliminary Official 
Statement”) but is subject to revision, amendment and completion in the final official statement 
(the “Official Statement”), together with this Notice of Sale, may be obtained from Joseph C. 
Zimmerman, Secretary-Treasurer, The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning 
Commission, 6611 Kenilworth Avenue, Riverdale, Maryland 20737, (301) 454-1540 or 
Davenport & Company LLC, 8600 LaSalle Road, Suite 618, Towson, Maryland 21286-2011, 
(410) 296-9426.

Right to Change Notice of Sale and Postpone Offering:  The Commission reserves the
right to change the Notice of Sale and to postpone, from time to time, the date established for the 
receipt of bids.  In the event of a postponement, the new date and time of sale will be announced 
via TM3 News Service at least 24 hours prior to the time proposals are to be submitted.  On any 
such alternative sale date, bidders may submit electronic bids for the purchase of the Bonds in 
conformity with the provision of this Notice of Sale, except for any changes to this Notice of 
Sale, the change of the date of sale and the changes described in the next sentence.  If the date 
fixed for receipt of bids is postponed, the expected date of delivery of the Bonds also may be 
postponed.  Such changes, if any, will be announced via TM3 News Service at the time any 
alternative sale date is announced. 

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL 
PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

By: _____________________________________ 
       Chairman 

52



EXHIBIT A-1 TO 
NOTICE OF SALE 

$31,500,000  
Prince George’s County  

General Obligation 
Park Acquisition and Development Project Bonds, 

Series PGC-2018A 

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE 
(Qualified Competitive Bid) 

The undersigned, on behalf of [NAME OF PURCHASER] (the “Purchaser”), hereby 
certifies as set forth below with respect to the sale of the above-captioned obligations (the 
“Bonds”).  

1. Reasonably Expected Initial Offering Price.

(a) As of the Sale Date, the reasonably expected initial offering prices of the
Bonds to the Public by the Purchaser are the prices listed in Schedule A (the “Expected Offering 
Prices”). The Expected Offering Prices are the prices for the Bonds used by the Purchaser in 
formulating its bid to purchase the Bonds. Attached as Schedule B is a true and correct copy of 
the bid provided by the Purchaser to purchase the Bonds.  

(b) The Purchaser was not given the opportunity to review other bids prior to
submitting its bid. 

(c) The bid submitted by the Purchaser constituted a firm offer to purchase the
Bonds. 

2. Defined Terms.

(a) Issuer means The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning
Commission. 

(b) Maturity means Bonds with the same credit and payment terms. Bonds
with different maturity dates, or Bonds with the same maturity date but different stated interest 
rates, are treated as separate maturities. 

(c) Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate,
partnership, association, company, or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a related party to 
an Underwriter. The term “related party” for purposes of this Certificate generally means any 
two or more persons who have greater than 50 percent common ownership, directly or indirectly.  

(d) Sale Date means the first day on which there is a binding contract in
writing for the sale of a Maturity of the Bonds. The Sale Date of the Bonds is ________, 2018. 

53



(e) Underwriter means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written
contract with the Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to 
participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant 
to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (i) of this paragraph 
to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public (including a member of a selling group 
or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the 
Public).  

The undersigned understands that the foregoing information will be relied upon by the 
Issuer with respect to certain of the representations set forth in the Non-Arbitrage Certificate and 
Tax Covenants and with respect to compliance with the federal income tax rules affecting the 
Bonds, and by McGuireWoods LLP, as bond counsel to the Issuer, in connection with rendering 
its opinion that the interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes, the preparation of the Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-G, and other federal 
income tax advice that it may give to the Issuer  from time to time relating to the Bonds. 

[NAME OF PURCHASER], as Purchaser  
By: _________________________________ 
Title: ________________________________ 

Dated: ___________, 2018 

54



SCHEDULE A 
Expected Offering Prices of the Bonds 

55



SCHEDULE B 
Copy of Bid 

 
  

56



EXHIBIT A-2 TO 
NOTICE OF SALE 

$31,500,000  
Prince George’s County  

General Obligation 
Park Acquisition and Development Project Bonds, 

Series PGC-2018A 

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE 
(Nonqualified Competitive Bid) 

The undersigned, on behalf of [NAME OF PURCHASER] (the “Purchaser”), hereby 
certifies as set forth below with respect to the sale and issuance of the above-captioned 
obligations (the “Bonds”). 

1. Sale of the 10% Maturities. As of the date of this Certificate, for each Maturity
of the 10% Maturities Bonds, the first price at which a Substantial Amount of such Maturity of 
the Bonds was sold to the Public is the respective price listed in Schedule A. 

2. Initial Offering Price of the Undersold Maturities.

(a) Each Underwriter offered the Undersold Maturities to the Public for
purchase at the respective initial offering prices listed in Schedule B (the “Initial Offering 
Prices”) on or before the Sale Date. A copy of the pricing wire or equivalent communication for 
the Bonds is attached to this Certificate as Schedule C. 

(b) As set forth in the Notice of Sale and bid award, each Underwriter has
agreed in writing that, (i) for each Maturity of the Undersold Maturities, it would neither offer 
nor sell any of the Bonds of such Maturity to any person at a price that is higher than the Initial 
Offering Price for such Maturity during the Offering Period for such Maturity, nor would it 
permit a related party to do so (the “hold-the-price rule”) and (ii) any selling group agreement 
shall contain the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group, and any retail 
distribution agreement shall contain the agreement of each broker-dealer who is a party to the 
retail distribution agreement, to comply with the hold-the-price rule. Pursuant to such agreement, 
no Underwriter has offered or sold any Maturity of the Undersold Maturities at a price that is 
higher than the respective Initial Offering Price for that Maturity of the Bonds during the 
Offering Period. 

3. Defined Terms.

(a) 10% Maturities means those Maturities of the Bonds shown in Schedule A
hereto as the “10% Maturities.” 

(b) Issuer means The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning
Commission. 

57



(c) Maturity means Bonds with the same credit and payment terms. Bonds
with different maturity dates, or Bonds with the same maturity date but different stated interest 
rates, are treated as separate maturities. 

(d) Offering Period means, with respect to an Undersold Maturity, the period
starting on the Sale Date and ending on the earlier of (i) the close of the fifth business day after 
the Sale Date ([______,2018]), or (ii) the date on which the Purchaser has sold a Substantial 
Amount of such Undersold Maturity to the Public at a price that is no higher than the Initial 
Offering Price for such Undersold Maturity. 

(e) Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate,
partnership, association, company, or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a related party to 
an Underwriter. The term “related party” for purposes of this Certificate generally means any 
two or more persons who have greater than 50 percent common ownership, directly or indirectly. 

(g) Sale Date means the first day on which there is a binding contract in
writing for the sale of a Maturity of the Bonds. The Sale Date of the Bonds is _______, 2018. 

(g) Substantial Amount means ten percent (10%).

(h) Undersold Maturities means those Maturities of the Bonds shown in
Schedule B hereto as the “Undersold Maturities.” 

(i) Underwriter means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written
contract with the Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to 
participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant 
to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (i) of this paragraph 
to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public (including a member of a selling group 
or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the 
Public). 

The undersigned understands that the foregoing information will be relied upon by the 
Issuer with respect to certain of the representations set forth in the Non-Arbitrage Certificate and 
Tax Covenants and with respect to compliance with the federal income tax rules affecting the 
Bonds, and by McGuireWoods LLP, as bond counsel to the Issuer, in connection with rendering 
its opinion that the interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes, the preparation of Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-G, and other federal income 
tax advice it may give to the Issuer  from time to time relating to the Bonds. 

[NAME OF PURCHASER], as  
Purchaser 
By: _________________________ 
Title: ______________________ 

Dated: _______, 2018 

58



SCHEDULE A 
Sale Prices of the 10% Maturities 

59



SCHEDULE B 
Initial Offering Prices of the Undersold Maturities 

60



SCHEDULE C 
Pricing Wire 

106545774_1.docx 

61



RESOLUTION NO. 18-28 

$15,000,000  
Montgomery County  
General Obligation 

Park Acquisition and Development Project Bonds, 
Series MC-2018A 

RECITALS 

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission (the “Commission”) has 

determined to authorize the issuance of one or more series of its Montgomery County General 

Obligation Park Acquisition and Development Project Bonds, Series MC-2018A in an aggregate 

amount not to exceed $15,000,000 (collectively, the “Bonds”), pursuant to Sections 18-201 

through 18-211, inclusive, of the Land Use Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland (2012 

Replacement Volume and 2017 Supplement) (the “Land Use Article”).  The Commission is 

authorizing the issuance of the Bonds (1) to finance and refinance the cost of certain park 

acquisition and development projects in Montgomery County, Maryland (the “Projects”) and (2) 

to pay the cost of issuance related to the Bonds. 

The Bonds may be issued in the form of serial bonds, term bonds, commercial paper, 

variable rate demand bonds or such other form as the Commission or its authorized designee 

may determine is advisable in consultation with the financial advisor to the Commission and its 

bond counsel. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

Section 1: Authorization of Bonds.  Acting pursuant to the authority of Sections 18-

201 through 18-211, inclusive, of the Land Use Article, the Commission hereby authorizes the 

Item 6d

62



borrowing of a sum not to exceed $15,000,000 and the evidencing of such borrowing by the 

issuance of one or more series of its Bonds in like aggregate principal amount, to be designated 

“Montgomery County General Obligation Park Acquisition and Development Project Bonds, 

Series MC-2018A”, or as further designated by the Secretary-Treasurer.  The Bonds are being 

issued in order to provide funds (i) to pay the costs of the Projects and (ii) to pay, at the 

discretion of the Secretary-Treasurer, all or a portion of the cost of issuance of the Bonds. 

Section 2: Terms of the Bonds. 

(a) General Provisions.  The Bonds shall be issued as fully registered bonds.  The

Commission hereby authorizes the Chairman or Vice Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer of 

the Commission, in consultation with its bond counsel and financial advisor, to determine and 

approve on behalf of the Commission the denominations, the form, terms and conditions, the 

method of determining the interest rates (variable or fixed), the maturity schedule, the 

redemption provisions, if any, the amount of the good faith deposit, if any, the dates and the 

terms and conditions of the sale and delivery of the Bonds, and all other terms, conditions and 

provisions relating to the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds, in accordance with the 

provisions of this Resolution. 

The Bonds shall be numbered from No. R-1 upward, shall be dated and mature (subject 

to the right of prior redemption, if any) as determined by the Secretary-Treasurer, in the principal 

amounts approved by the Chairman or Vice Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer of the 

Commission, at or prior to the sale of the Bonds; provided however, that in no event shall the 

Bonds mature later than 50 years from the date of issue as required by Section 18-203(e) of the 

Land Use Article. 

(b) Book-Entry.  The Bonds shall initially be maintained under a book-entry system

with The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, or other securities depository, and 

shall be registered in the name of the nominee of such securities depository, all as more fully set 

forth in an official statement or offering memorandum with respect to the issuance and sale of 

the Bonds, provided the Secretary-Treasurer does not determine that it is in the best interest of 

63



the Commission to initially maintain the Bonds under a system other than the book-entry system.  

The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized to take all action necessary or appropriate to 

provide for the issuance of the Bonds in book-entry form, including (without limitation) 

execution of letters of representations with The Depository Trust Company, or such other 

securities depository.  If in the judgment of the Secretary-Treasurer it is in the best interests of 

the Commission to maintain the Bonds or any series of the Bonds under a system other than the 

book-entry system or to discontinue the maintenance of the Bonds or any series of the Bonds 

under a book-entry system, the Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized to provide for the 

termination of the book-entry system, if necessary, and the delivery of printed certificates for 

such Bonds in lieu thereof.  The Secretary-Treasurer may designate a different securities 

depository. 

(c) County Guarantee.  The Bonds shall be guaranteed as to payment of principal and

interest by Montgomery County, Maryland (“Montgomery County”), as required by Section 18-

204(c) of the Land Use Article, and such guaranty shall be endorsed on each bond certificate in 

the manner hereinafter provided as required by Section 18-204(c) of the Land Use Article. 

(d) Interest Provisions.  The Chairman or Vice Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer

shall determine and approve the method for setting the rates of interest for the Bonds.  The rates 

of interest for the Bonds shall be as determined and approved by the Chairman or Vice Chairman 

and the Secretary-Treasurer to be in the best interest of the Commission.  If the Bonds are 

competitively sold, the Bonds shall bear interest at the rate or rates for each maturity named by 

the successful bidder for the Bonds, in accordance with the terms of the Notice of Sale 

hereinafter adopted.  Interest shall be payable on the dates (each an “Interest Payment Date”) and 

in the manner determined by the Secretary-Treasurer.  The Bonds shall bear interest from the 

most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, or from 

their date if no interest has been paid on the Bonds. 

(e) Redemption Provisions.  The Bonds may be subject to redemption at the times,

upon the terms and conditions and at the redemption prices approved by the Chairman or Vice 

64



Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer in consultation with the Commission’s financial advisor 

and bond counsel, at or prior to the sale of the Bonds. 

Section 3: Execution.  The Bonds shall be signed by the manual or facsimile 

signature of the Chairman of the Commission and shall be attested by the manual or facsimile 

signature of the Secretary-Treasurer of the Commission.  There shall be printed on each of the 

Bonds a facsimile of the seal of the Commission.  In case any officer of the Commission whose 

manual or facsimile signature shall appear on any Bond shall cease to be such officer before the 

delivery of such Bond, or in the case that any such officer shall take office subsequent to the date 

of issue of any such Bond, such signature or facsimile shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient 

for the purposes herein intended. 

Section 4: Authentication.  No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or 

entitled to any security or benefit under this Resolution unless and until a certificate of 

authentication of such Bond substantially in the form hereinafter adopted shall have been duly 

executed by the Registrar (hereinafter defined) and such executed certificate of the Registrar on 

such Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such Bond has been authenticated and delivered 

under this Resolution.  The Registrar’s certificate of authentication on any Bond shall be deemed 

to have been executed by it if signed by an authorized officer or signatory of the Registrar.  It 

shall not be necessary that the same officer or signatory of the Registrar sign the certificate of 

authentication for all the Bonds issued hereunder. 

Section 5: Payment of Bonds.  The principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the 

Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America at the time of payment. 

So long as the Bonds or any series of the Bonds are maintained under a book-entry system with 

The Depository Trust Company, principal of and premium, if any, and interest on such Bonds 

shall be payable to Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, all as described 

in an official statement or offering memorandum related to such Bonds.  If the book-entry system 

for the Bonds or any series of the Bonds shall be discontinued in accordance with this 

Resolution, the principal of and premium, if any, on such Bonds shall be payable upon 

65



presentation thereof at a designated corporate trust office of a bank or other entity hereafter to be 

determined by the Secretary-Treasurer, which bank or other entity, or any successor thereof, 

shall be designated as paying agent for such Bonds (the “Paying Agent”).  Interest on such 

Bonds shall be payable by wire transfer, check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent to the 

registered owners thereof as of the record date immediately preceding each Interest Payment 

Date (the “Record Date”) at their addresses as they appear on the Bond Register (hereinafter 

defined) or to such other address as is furnished to the Paying Agent by a registered owner.  The 

Secretary-Treasurer may determine that the Office of the Secretary-Treasurer of the Commission 

will act as the Paying Agent or designate a Paying Agent as provided in this Resolution.  Such 

designation by the Secretary-Treasurer may be done at any time and from time to time. 

When there is no existing default in the payment of interest on the Bonds, the person in 

whose name any Bond is registered on the Record Date with respect to an Interest Payment Date 

shall be entitled to receive the interest payable on such Interest Payment Date (unless such Bond 

has been called for redemption on a redemption date which is prior to such Interest Payment 

Date) notwithstanding the cancellation of such Bond upon any registration of transfer or 

exchange thereof subsequent to such Record Date and prior to such Interest Payment Date. 

Any interest on any Bond which is payable, but is not punctually paid or duly provided 

for, on any Interest Payment Date (herein called “Defaulted Interest”) shall forthwith cease to be 

payable to the registered owner of the Bond on the relevant Record Date by virtue of having 

been such owner; and such Defaulted Interest shall be paid by the Paying Agent to the person in 

whose name the Bond is registered at the close of business on a date (the “Special Record Date”) 

which shall be fixed by the Secretary-Treasurer in consultation with the Paying Agent and bond 

counsel.  Defaulted Interest shall be paid to the persons in whose names the Bonds are registered 

on such Special Record Date. 

Subject to the foregoing provisions of this Section, each Bond delivered under this 

Resolution upon transfer of or in exchange for or in lieu of any other Bond shall carry the rights 

to interest accrued and unpaid, and to accrue, which were carried by such other Bond. 

66



Section 6: Registration, Transfer or Exchange of Bonds.  The Commission shall 

cause to be kept at a designated corporate trust office of a bank or another designated entity 

hereafter to be determined by the Secretary-Treasurer, which shall be appointed the Registrar for 

the Bonds (the “Registrar”), a register (the “Bond Register”) for the registration of the transfer or 

exchange of any Bonds.  The Secretary-Treasurer may determine that the Office of the 

Secretary-Treasurer of the Commission will serve as the Registrar or the Secretary-Treasurer 

may appoint a Registrar as provided in this Resolution.  Such designation by the Secretary-

Treasurer may be done at any time and from time to time.  Each Bond shall be registered and 

transferred or exchanged in accordance with the terms and conditions with respect thereto set 

forth on the face of such Bond, the form of which is hereinafter adopted. 

Section 7: Cancellation of Bonds.  The Bonds paid at maturity or upon prior 

redemption shall be canceled and destroyed by the Bond Registrar in accordance with practices 

that are commonly used in the marketplace at that time and certificates of such action shall be 

transmitted to the Commission. 

Section 8: Form of Bonds.  The Bonds hereby authorized shall be in substantially 

the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, with appropriate insertions as therein set forth, which is 

hereby adopted by the Commission as the approved form of the obligations to be incurred by it, 

and all the covenants, conditions and representations contained in said form are hereby declared 

to be binding on the Commission and to constitute contracts between the Commission and the 

holders from time to time of the Bonds, said contracts to become binding when the Bonds are 

executed and delivered as herein authorized.  Such form may be modified by the Secretary-

Treasurer in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution, including but not limited to, 

modifications for the issuance of bonds in the form of serial bonds, term bonds, commercial 

paper, variable rate demand bonds or such other form as the Secretary-Treasurer may determine 

advisable in consultation with the financial advisor to the Commission and its bond counsel and 

modifications to reflect the maintenance of the Bonds under a book-entry system or the 

termination of a book-entry system as provided herein. 

67



Section 9: Negotiated Sale.  The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized to sell the 

Bonds or any series of the Bonds by private negotiated sale on behalf of the Commission as 

authorized by Section 18-203(f) of the Land Use Article.  The Chairman or Vice Chairman and 

the Secretary-Treasurer of the Commission, in consultation with bond counsel and the financial 

advisor to the Commission, are hereby authorized to determine on behalf of the Commission the 

method for conducting such private negotiated sale.  The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby 

authorized to solicit and accept proposals for the sale of such Bonds on a private, negotiated 

basis.  The Secretary-Treasurer of the Commission is hereby authorized to negotiate an 

agreement for the purchase of such Bonds (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”), to be approved by 

the Secretary-Treasurer in consultation with the Planning Board of Montgomery County, in 

accordance with the limitations set forth in this Resolution. 

Section 10: Public Sale; Notice of Sale.  The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby 

authorized to sell the Bonds or any series of the Bonds by public competitive sale.  In the event 

of a public sale, the Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized to advertise such sale by any 

electronic medium or financial journal or to publish a notice of sale or a summary thereof calling 

for bids for such Bonds in such other manner as the Secretary-Treasurer shall deem appropriate, 

such publication to be at least five days before the date for the receipt of bids.  The Secretary-

Treasurer is authorized to offer the Bonds or any series of the Bonds for sale by competitive bid 

and accept bids, including but not limited to electronic bids via such service provider as the 

Secretary-Treasurer deems appropriate and is approved by bond counsel to the Commission or 

the financial advisor to the Commission.  Said notice of sale shall be substantially in the form of 

Exhibit B attached hereto, subject to such changes, insertions (including without limitation the 

insertion of the appropriate amounts and dates in the respective spaces provided therefor in such 

form) and amendments as the Secretary-Treasurer deems necessary and approves upon the 

advice of bond counsel and the financial advisor to the Commission, the Secretary-Treasurer’s 

publication of such notice to constitute conclusive evidence of the approval of the Secretary-

Treasurer of all changes from the form set forth in Exhibit B.  In lieu of publishing the entire 

68



notice of sale as set forth in Exhibit B in a financial journal or by electronic medium as above 

specified, the Secretary-Treasurer, upon the advice of the financial advisor to the Commission, 

may determine to publish a summary of said notice of sale. 

Section 11: Official Statement; Guaranty. 

(a) The Secretary-Treasurer may prepare a private placement memorandum, a

preliminary official statement, a final official statement or another form of offering 

memorandum (collectively, the “Official Statement”) and a notice of sale with respect to the 

issuance and sale of any series of the Bonds, including any financial and other information about 

the Commission, Montgomery County and Montgomery County, Maryland deemed appropriate 

by the Secretary-Treasurer. 

(b) The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to make all

arrangements for the printing, execution and delivery of the Official Statement and certificates 

for any series of the Bonds. 

(c) The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to arrange with the

County Executive of Montgomery County for the endorsement on the Bonds of the guarantee of 

the payment of the principal thereof and interest thereon, as herein outlined and as required by 

law.  The Bonds shall not be delivered until after the endorsement of such guaranty thereon. 

Section 12: Use of Bond Proceeds.  The proceeds of the sale of the Bonds (i) shall be 

used to pay the costs of the Projects, and (ii) may be used to pay all or a portion of the issuance 

costs of the Bonds. 

Section 13: Tax Pledge.  The Commission hereby pledges its full faith and credit and 

the proceeds of the taxes required to be levied and collected for the Commission by Montgomery 

County under Section 18-304 of the Land Use Article, to the payment of the principal of and 

premium and interest on the Bonds as they become due. 

The Commission covenants with each and every holder, from time to time, of the Bonds 

issued hereunder to allocate the proceeds of said taxes, as received, pari passu, to debt service on 

all outstanding bonds and notes issued by it, including this issue of Bonds, payable from said 

69



taxes, subject only to the prior rights of the holders of bonds of the Commission which are 

secured by a pledge of a specific portion of said tax.  The Commission further covenants not to 

issue any additional bonds or notes payable from said taxes in excess of the limits prescribed, 

from time to time, by Section 18-203(d) of the Land Use Article. 

With respect to the Bonds hereby authorized, the Commission covenants with the holders 

thereof annually to submit to Montgomery County a budget requesting levy of said taxes to 

produce the revenues to pay the debt service to which the revenues from said taxes is pledged 

hereby, and to take all action it legally can take to compel Montgomery County to levy taxes at 

rates sufficient for the purpose and to fulfill and perform its guarantee of the payment, when due, 

of the principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

Section 14: Tax and Arbitrage Covenants.  The Chairman or the Vice Chairman and 

the Secretary-Treasurer shall be the officers of the Commission responsible for the issuance of 

the Bonds within the meaning of the Arbitrage Regulations (defined herein).  The Chairman or 

the Vice Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer shall also be the officers of the Commission 

responsible for the execution and delivery (on the date of issuance of the Bonds) of a certificate 

of the Commission (the “Section 148 Certificate”) which complies with the requirements of 

Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“Section 148”), and the 

applicable regulations thereunder (the “Arbitrage Regulations”), and such officials are hereby 

directed to execute the Section 148 Certificate and to deliver the same to bond counsel on the 

date of the issuance of the Bonds. 

The Commission shall set forth in the Section 148 Certificate its reasonable expectations 

as to relevant facts, estimates and circumstances relating to the use of the proceeds of the Bonds, 

or of any moneys, securities or other obligations to the credit of any account of the Commission 

which may be deemed to be proceeds of the Bonds pursuant to Section 148 or the Arbitrage 

Regulations (collectively, “Bond Proceeds”).  The Commission covenants that the facts, 

estimates and circumstances set forth in the Section 148 Certificate will be based on the 

70



Commission’s reasonable expectations on the date of issuance of the Bonds and will be, to the 

best of the certifying officials’ knowledge, true and correct as of that date. 

The Commission covenants and agrees with each of the holders of any of the Bonds that 

it will not make, or (to the extent that it exercises control or direction) permit to be made, any use 

of the Bond Proceeds which would cause the Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning 

of Section 148 and the Arbitrage Regulations.  The Commission further covenants that it will 

comply with Section 148 and the regulations thereunder which are applicable to the Bonds on the 

date of issuance of the Bonds and which may subsequently lawfully be made applicable to the 

Bonds. 

The Commission further covenants that it shall make such use of the proceeds of the 

Bonds, regulate the investment of the proceeds thereof, and take such other and further actions as 

may be required to maintain the excludability from gross income for federal income tax purposes 

of interest on the Bonds.  All officers, employees and agents of the Commission are hereby 

authorized and directed to take such actions, and to provide such certifications of facts and 

estimates regarding the amount and use of the proceeds of the Bonds, as may be necessary or 

appropriate from time to time to comply with, or to evidence the Commission’s compliance with, 

the covenants set forth in this Section. 

The Chairman or Vice Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer, on behalf of the 

Commission, may make such covenants or agreements in connection with the issuance of the 

Bonds as such official shall deem advisable in order to assure the registered owners of the Bonds 

that interest thereon shall be and remain excludable from gross income for federal income tax 

purposes, and such covenants or agreements shall be binding on the Commission so long as the 

observance by the Commission of any such covenants or agreements is necessary in connection 

with the maintenance of the exclusion of the interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal 

income tax purposes.  The foregoing covenants and agreements may include such covenants or 

agreements on behalf of the Commission regarding compliance with the provisions of the 

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, as the Chairman or Vice Chairman and the 

71



Secretary-Treasurer shall deem advisable in order to assure the registered owners of the Bonds 

that the interest thereon shall be and remain excludable from gross income for federal income tax 

purposes, including (without limitation) covenants or agreements relating to the investment of 

the proceeds of the Bonds, the payment of rebate (or payments in lieu of rebate) to the United 

States, limitations on the times within which, and the purpose for which, such proceeds may be 

expended, or the use of specified procedures for accounting for and segregating such proceeds. 

Section 15: Appointment of Trustee and other Service Providers.  The Secretary-

Treasurer is hereby authorized to engage the services of a trustee, a registrar, a paying agent, a 

credit facility provider, a broker-dealer, a placement agent, a remarketing agent, an underwriter, 

a liquidity facility provider and such other service providers as the Secretary-Treasurer deems 

appropriate from time to time with respect to the Bonds. 

Section 16: Approval, Execution and Delivery of Documents.  The Secretary-

Treasurer may prepare, as appropriate and shall submit for the approval of the Chairman or the 

Vice Chairman any agreement with a registrar, a paying agent, a trustee, credit facility provider, 

a placement agent, a broker-dealer, a remarketing agent, an underwriter, a liquidity facility 

provider and such other service providers as the Secretary-Treasurer deems appropriate from 

time to time with respect to the Bonds or any series of the Bonds (collectively, the “Transaction 

Documents”).  The Chairman or Vice Chairman is hereby authorized to execute and deliver, as 

appropriate, such Transaction Documents.  The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary-Treasurer 

and all other authorized officers of the Commission are hereby authorized to execute and deliver 

such other and further documents, certifications and forms as may be necessary, appropriate or 

advisable in order to effectuate the transaction authorized by this Resolution. 

Section 17: Continuing Disclosure Agreement.  The Secretary-Treasurer is expressly 

authorized to approve the form of, and execute and deliver on behalf of the Commission, a 

continuing disclosure agreement or certificate to assist bidders and/or underwriters in complying 

with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission 

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

72



Section 18: Award of Bonds.  The Chairman or the Vice Chairman with prior 

consultation with the Planning Board of Montgomery County, and the Secretary-Treasurer are 

hereby authorized with respect to the Bonds or any series of the Bonds to accept the best bid for 

such Bonds, reject all other bids for such Bonds, set the interest rates of such Bonds and set the 

maturity schedules and terms of redemption of the Bonds, in accordance with the limitations set 

forth in this Resolution. 

Section 19: Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect from the date of its 

passage. 

73



I, JOSEPH C. ZIMMERMAN, the duly appointed, qualified and acting Secretary-

Treasurer of The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission, do hereby certify 

that the foregoing is a true copy of Resolution No. 18-28, adopted by said Commission at a 

regular meeting thereof duly called and held on September 26, 2018. 

I do further certify that Commissioners Anderson, Bailey, Cichy, Doerner, Dreyfuss, 

Fani-Gonzalez, Geraldo, Hewlett, Patterson and Washington were present.  A motion to adopt 

was made and seconded.  The Resolution was adopted unanimously. 

I do further certify that said Resolution has not been amended and is still in force and 

effect on the date hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and the seal of The Maryland-

National Capital Park and Planning Commission, this ___th day of _____________, 2018. 

_________________________________________ 
Secretary-Treasurer 

This is to certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 18-28 adopted by 
the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission on motion of Commissioner 
______________ seconded by Commissioner ______________, with Commissioners Anderson, 
Bailey, Cichy, Doerner, Dreyfuss, Fani-Gonzalez, Geraldo, Hewlett, Patterson and Washington 
voting in favor of the motion, and Commissioners __________ absent during the vote, at its 
meeting held on September 26, 2018, in Riverdale, Maryland. 

_________________________________________ 
Patricia Colihan Barney 
Executive Director 

74



Exhibit A 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF MARYLAND 

No. R-_____ $_________ 

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Montgomery County  
General Obligation  

Park Acquisition and Development Project Bond, 
Series MC-2018A  

Dated Date Interest Rate Maturity Date CUSIP 

[_________], 2018 ___% per annum ____________, 20__ ________ 

Registered Owner: Cede & Co. 

Principal Amount: ____________________________________________________ DOLLARS 

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission (the “Commission”), a 

public body corporate, organized and existing under the laws of the State of Maryland, hereby 

acknowledges itself indebted for value received and, upon presentation and surrender hereof, 

promises to pay to the Registered Owner shown above, or his registered assigns, on the Maturity 

Date shown above, unless this bond shall have been called for prior redemption and payment of 

the redemption price made or provided for, the Principal Amount shown above, and to pay 

interest on the outstanding principal amount hereof from the most recent Interest Payment Date 

(as hereinafter defined) to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, or, if no interest has 

been paid on this bond, from the date of this bond, at the annual rate of interest set forth above, 

payable semi-annually on ________ 1/15 and ________ 1/15 each year, beginning ________ 

1/15, 2019 (each an “Interest Payment Date”) until payment of such Principal Amount shall be 

discharged as provided in the Resolution (hereinafter defined), by wire transfer or check mailed 

by the Commission or banking institution or other entity designated as paying agent by the 

75



Commission (the “Paying Agent”), or any successor thereto, to the person in whose name this 

bond is registered on the registration books maintained by the Registrar (identified herein) at the 

close of business on the [fifteenth day of the month immediately preceding such Interest 

Payment Date]  [first day of the month in which such Interest Payment Date occurs] (the “Record 

Date”).  Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, interest on this bond which is payable, but is 

not punctually paid or duly provided for, on any Interest Payment Date shall forthwith cease to 

be payable to the owner of this Bond on the relevant Record Date by virtue of having been such 

owner and such interest shall be paid by the Paying Agent to the person in whose name this bond 

is registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such interest, 

which shall be fixed as provided in the Resolution. 

Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on this bond are payable in lawful money of 

the United States of America, at the time of payment.  Principal and premium, if any, hereon will 

be payable upon presentation and surrender of this bond by the registered owner hereof in person 

or by his duly authorized attorney, at the designated office of the Paying Agent. 

This bond is a general obligation of the Commission and of Montgomery County, 

Maryland (the “County”), to the payment, in accordance with its terms, of the principal of and 

interest on which the Commission and the County hereby each pledge their respective full faith 

and credit and taxing power. 

The principal of and premium and interest on this bond are payable in the first instance 

from mandatory limited annual ad valorem property taxes which the County is required by 

Section 18-304 of the Land Use Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland (2012 Replacement 

Volume and 2017 Supplement) (the “Land Use Article”) to levy at a fixed rate against all 

property assessed for the purposes of county taxation in the portion of the Maryland-Washington 

Metropolitan District (the “District”) established by Title 19 of the Land Use Article located in 

the County.  Section 18-209 of the Land Use Article provides that, if said mandatory tax is 

insufficient to pay the principal of and interest on this bond, the County shall levy an additional 

tax upon all assessable property within the portion of the District in the County, and, if the 

76



proceeds of such additional tax are still inadequate for such purposes, upon all assessable 

property within the corporate limits of the County, to pay such deficiency.  By the guaranty 

endorsed hereon, the full faith and credit of the County is pledged to the payment, when due, of 

the principal of and interest on this bond.  

This bond is one of an issue of bonds (the “Bonds”) each of a par value of $5,000 or an 

integral multiple thereof in the aggregate principal amount of $__________, numbered from No. 

R-1 upwards, all dated as of the Dated Date and all known as:  “The Maryland-National Capital

Park and Planning Commission Montgomery County General Obligation Park Acquisition and 

Development Project Bonds, Series MC-2018A”.  Unless previously redeemed as herein 

provided, the Bonds mature and are payable in consecutive annual installments on ________ 

1/15 in each of the years 2019 through _______, and bear interest payable on each Interest 

Payment Date until their respective maturities or prior redemption.  The Bonds are issued 

pursuant to the authority of Sections 18-201 through 18-211, inclusive, of the Land Use Article 

and in accordance with Resolution No. 18-__ of the Commission duly adopted on 

________________, 2018 (the “Resolution”). 

The Bonds which mature on or after ________ 1/15, 2029, are subject to redemption 

prior to their respective maturities, at the option of the Commission, in whole or in part in any 

order of their maturities, at any time on or after ________1/15, 2028, at a redemption price equal 

to the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed, together with interest accrued thereon to 

the date fixed for redemption. 

If less than all of the Bonds are called for redemption, the particular maturities to be 

redeemed shall be selected by the Commission.  If less than all of the Bonds of any one maturity 

are called for redemption, the particular Bonds to be redeemed from such maturity shall be 

selected by lot or other random means by the Paying Agent in such manner as the Paying Agent 

in its discretion may determine, provided that each $5,000 of the principal amount of any Bond 

shall be treated as a separate Bond for this purpose. 

77



Notice of call for redemption shall be delivered to the Depository (as defined herein) 

prior to the date fixed for redemption in accordance with the Depository’s procedures.  If the 

book-entry system is discontinued for the Bonds, a notice calling for redemption of the Bonds to 

be redeemed shall be mailed by the Commission as Paying Agent, postage prepaid, at least thirty 

(30) days prior to the date fixed for redemption (the “Redemption Date”), to all registered 

owners of Bonds to be redeemed, at their last addresses appearing on the registration books kept 

by the Registrar.  Failure to deliver or mail any such notice, or any defect in such notice, or in the 

delivery or mailing thereof, shall not affect the validity of any redemption proceedings.  Such 

notice shall specify the issue, the numbers and the maturities of the Bonds to be redeemed, which 

statement of numbers may be from one number to another, inclusive, the Redemption Date and 

the redemption price, any conditions to such redemption, and shall further state that on such date 

the Bonds called for redemption will be due and become payable at the offices of the Paying 

Agent, and that, from and after such date, interest thereon shall cease to accrue. 

From and after the date fixed for redemption, if notice has been given as herein provided, 

and the funds sufficient for payment of the redemption price and accrued interest shall be 

available therefore on such date, the Bonds so designated for redemption shall cease to bear 

interest.  Upon presentation and surrender in compliance with such notice, the Bonds so called 

for redemption shall be paid by the Paying Agent at the redemption price.  If not so paid on 

presentation thereof, such Bonds so called shall continue to bear interest at the rates expressed 

therein until paid. 

This bond shall be registered as to principal and interest in the owner’s name on the 

registration books kept for that purpose at the office of the Secretary-Treasurer or a designated 

office of the banking institution or other entity, or any successor thereto, designated by the 

Secretary-Treasurer (the “Registrar”). 

The transfer of this bond is registerable by the registered owner hereof in person or by his 

attorney or legal representative at a principal office of the Registrar upon surrender and 

cancellation of this bond together with a duly executed assignment in the form attached hereto 

78



and satisfactory to the Registrar.  Upon any such registration of transfer, the Registrar shall 

authenticate and deliver in exchange for this bond a registered Bond or Bonds registered in the 

name of the transferee of authorized denomination or denominations, in the aggregate principal 

amount equal to the principal amount of this bond or the unredeemed portion hereof, of the same 

maturity and bearing interest at the same rate.  Bonds may be exchanged for an equal aggregate 

principal amount of Bonds of the same maturity, bearing interest at the same rate, of other 

authorized denominations, at a principal office of the Registrar.  The Commission and the 

Registrar may make a charge for every such exchange or transfer sufficient to reimburse it for 

any tax, fee, or other governmental charge, shipping charges and insurance required to be paid 

with respect to such exchange or transfer, and in addition, may charge a sum sufficient to 

reimburse them for expenses incurred in connection with such exchange or transfer.  All Bonds 

surrendered in such exchange or registration of transfer shall forthwith be canceled by the 

Registrar.  The Registrar shall not be required to register the transfer of this bond or make any 

such exchange of this bond after the mailing of notice calling this bond or any portion hereof for 

redemption. 

So long as all of the Bonds shall be maintained in Book-Entry Form with The Depository 

Trust Company or another securities depository (the “Depository”):  (1) in the event that fewer 

than all Bonds of any one maturity shall be called for redemption, the Depository, and not the 

Registrar, will select the particular accounts from which Bonds or portions thereof will be 

redeemed in accordance with the Depository’s standard procedures for redemption of obligations 

such as the Bonds; (2) in the event that part, but not all, of this bond shall be called for 

redemption, the holder of this bond may elect not to surrender this bond in exchange for a new 

bond in accordance with the provisions hereof and in such event shall make a notation indicating 

the principal amount of such redemption and the date thereof on the Payment Grid attached 

hereto; and (3) payments of principal or redemption price of and interest on this bond shall be 

payable to the Depository or its assigns in accordance with the provisions of the Resolution.  For 

all purposes, the principal amount of this bond outstanding at any time shall be equal to the lesser 

79



of (A) the principal sum shown on the face hereof and (B) such principal sum reduced by the 

principal amount of any partial redemption of this bond following which the holder of this bond 

has elected not to surrender this bond in accordance with the provisions hereof.  The failure of 

the holder hereof to note the principal amount of any partial redemption on the Payment Grid 

attached hereto, or any inaccuracy therein, shall not affect the payment obligation of the 

Commission hereunder.  THEREFORE, IT CANNOT BE DETERMINED FROM THE FACE 

OF THIS BOND WHETHER A PART OF THE PRINCIPAL OF THIS BOND HAS BEEN 

PAID. 

It is hereby certified and recited that each and every act, condition and thing required to 

exist, to be done, to have happened and to be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this 

bond, does exist, has been done, has happened and has been performed, in full and strict 

compliance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Maryland and the proceedings of the 

Commission and of the County, and that the issue of bonds of which this bond is one, together 

with all other indebtedness of said Commission, and of the County, is within every debt and 

other limit prescribed by the Constitution and laws of said State. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning 

Commission, in the State of Maryland, has caused this bond to be signed in its name by the 

signature of its Chairman and attested by the signature of its Secretary-Treasurer and has caused 

the facsimile of its corporate seal to be imprinted hereon, all as of Dated Date set forth above. 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Secretary-Treasurer 

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL 
PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
       Chairman 

 
(CORPORATE SEAL) 

  

80



GUARANTY 

The payment of interest when due, and of the principal on maturity, is guaranteed by 
Montgomery County, Maryland. 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 
Clerk 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, 
   MARYLAND 

By: __________________________________ 
       County Executive 

(CORPORATE SEAL) 

81



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

This bond is one of the Bonds issued under the provisions of and described in the within 
mentioned Resolution of The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission. 

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL 
PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Registrar 

By: __________________________________ 
       Authorized Officer 

Date of Authentication:  ____________, 2018 

82



ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 

(Please Insert Social Security or Other Identifying Number of Assignee) ___________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

(Print or Type Name and Address, Including Zip Code of Assignee) 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

the within bond and all rights thereunder, and does hereby constitute and appoint ____________ 

____________ attorney to transfer the within bond on the books kept for the registration thereof, 

with full power of substitution in the premises. 

_____________________________________ 
NOTICE: Signature must be 
guaranteed by a member firm of 
the New York Stock Exchange 
or a commercial bank or trust 
company. 

______________________________________ 
(Signature of registered owner)  
NOTICE: The signature to this assignment 
must correspond with the name as it appears 
upon the face of the within bond in every 
particular, without alteration or enlargement 
or any change whatever. 

83



PAYMENT GRID 

Date of Payment 
Principal Amount 

Paid 
Principal Amount 

Outstanding Holder Signature 

84



Exhibit B 

NOTICE OF SALE 

$__________ 
THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Montgomery County  
General Obligation 

Park Acquisition and Development Project Bonds,  
Series MC-2018A  

Electronic Bids only will be received until 11:00 a.m., 
Local Baltimore, Maryland Time, on _______, 2018 

by The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission (the “Commission”), for the 
purchase of the above-named issue of bonds (the “Bonds”) of the Commission, to be dated as of 
the date of their delivery and to be issued pursuant to the authority of Sections 18-201 through 
18-211, inclusive, of the Land Use Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland (2012
Replacement Volume and 2017 Supplement) (the “Land Use Article”) and a Resolution of the
Commission adopted on ___________, 2018.  The Bonds will bear interest from date of delivery
payable on each ________ 1/15 and ________1/15, commencing ________ 1/15, 2019 until
maturity or prior redemption.

The payment of the principal of and interest on all of the Bonds will be unconditionally 
guaranteed by Montgomery County, Maryland (the “County”). 

Maturities:  The Bonds will be separately numbered from No. R-1 upward, and will 
mature, subject to prior redemption, in consecutive annual installments on ________ 1/15 in the 
years and amounts set forth in the following table: 

 MATURITY SCHEDULE 
Year of 

Maturity 
Principal 
Amount 

Year of 
Maturity 

Principal 
Amount 

$ $

Book-Entry System:  The Bonds shall be issued only in fully registered form without 
coupons.  One bond certificate representing each maturity will be issued to and registered in the 
name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York 
(“DTC”), as registered owner of the Bonds and each bond certificate shall be immobilized in the 

85



custody of DTC.  DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds.  Individual purchases will 
be made in book-entry form only, in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple 
thereof.  Purchasers will not receive physical delivery of certificates representing their interest in 
the Bonds purchased.  The successful bidder, as a condition to delivery of the Bonds, will be 
required to deposit the bond certificates representing each maturity with DTC.   

Registrar and Paying Agent:  The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning 
Commission will act as Registrar and Paying Agent for the Bonds. 

Security: All of the Bonds will be general obligations of the Commission and of the 
County for the payment, in accordance with their terms, of the principal of and interest on which 
the Commission and the County will each pledge their respective full faith and credit and taxing 
power. 

The Bonds will be payable as to both principal and interest first from limited ad valorem 
property taxes which the County is required by law to impose in the portion of the Maryland-
Washington Metropolitan District (the “District”) established by Title 19 of the Land Use Article 
located in the County and remit to the Commission.  By its guarantee of the Bonds, the full faith 
and credit of the County is pledged, as required by law, for the payment of the principal thereof 
and interest thereon.  To the extent that the aforesaid taxes imposed for the benefit of the 
Commission are inadequate in any year to pay such principal and interest, Section 18-209 of the 
Land Use Article provides that the County shall impose an additional tax upon all assessable 
property within the portion of the District in the County, and if the proceeds of such additional 
tax are still inadequate for such purposes, upon all assessable property within the corporate limits 
of the County, to pay such deficiency. 

Redemption:  The Bonds which mature on or after ________ 1/15, 2029, are subject to 
redemption prior to their respective maturities at any time on or after ________ 1/15, 2028, at the 
option of the Commission, in whole or in part, in any order of maturities, at a redemption price 
equal to the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed, together with interest accrued 
thereon to the date fixed for redemption. 

Electronic Bids:  Notice is hereby given that electronic proposals will be received via 
[PARITY], in the manner described below, until 11:00 a.m., local Baltimore, Maryland time, on 
____________, 2018. 

Bids may be submitted electronically pursuant to this Notice until 11:00 a.m., local 
Baltimore, Maryland time, but no bid will be received after the time for receiving bids specified 
above.  To the extent any instructions or directions set forth in [PARITY] conflict with this 
Notice, the terms of this Notice shall control.  For further information about [PARITY], potential 
bidders may contact [PARITY] at (212) 849-5021. 

Disclaimer: Each prospective electronic bidder shall be solely responsible to submit its 
bid via [PARITY] as described above.  Each prospective electronic bidder shall be solely 
responsible to make necessary arrangements to access [PARITY] for the purpose of submitting 
its bid in a timely manner and in compliance with the requirements of the Notice of Sale. 
Neither the Commission nor [PARITY] shall have any duty or obligation to provide or assure 

86



access to [PARITY] to any prospective bidder, and neither the Commission nor [PARITY] shall 
be responsible for proper operation of, or have any liability for any delays or interruptions of, or 
any damages caused by, [PARITY].  The Commission is using [PARITY] as a communication 
mechanism, and not as the Commission’s agent, to conduct the electronic bidding for the Bonds.  
The Commission is not bound by any advice and determination of [PARITY] to the effect that 
any particular bid complies with the terms of this Notice of Sale and in particular the “Bid 
Specifications” hereinafter set forth.  All costs and expenses incurred by prospective bidders in 
connection with their submission of bids via [PARITY] are the sole responsibility of the bidders; 
and the Commission is not responsible, directly or indirectly, for any of such costs or expenses.  
If a prospective bidder encounters any difficulty in submitting, modifying, or withdrawing a bid 
for the Bonds, the prospective bidder should telephone [PARITY] at (212) 849-5021 and notify 
the Commission’s Financial Advisor, Davenport & Company LLC, by facsimile at (866) 932-
6660 and by telephone at (410) 296-9426. 

Electronic Bidding Procedures: Electronic bids must be submitted for the purchase of 
the Bonds (all or none) via [PARITY].  Bids will be communicated electronically to the 
Commission at 11:00 a.m. local Baltimore, Maryland time, on [_________], 2018.  Prior to that 
time, a prospective bidder may (1) submit the proposed terms of its bid via [PARITY], (2) 
modify the proposed terms of its bid, in which event the proposed terms as last modified will 
(unless the bid is withdrawn as described herein) constitute its bid for the Bonds or (3) withdraw 
its proposed bid.  Once the bids are communicated electronically via [PARITY] to the 
Commission, each bid will constitute an irrevocable offer to purchase the Bonds on the terms 
therein provided.  For purposes of the electronic bidding process, the time as maintained on 
[PARITY] shall constitute the official time. 

Bid Specifications:  Proposals for purchase of the Bonds must be for all of the Bonds 
herein described and must be submitted electronically pursuant to this Notice of Sale until 11:00 
a.m. local Baltimore, Maryland time on [____________], 2018.  Bidders must pay not less than 
par and not more than [105]% of par.  In their proposals, bidders are requested to specify the 
annual rate or rates of interest to be borne by the Bonds.  Bidders are requested to name the 
interest rate or rates in multiples of 1/8 or 1/20 of 1%.  Bidders may specify more than one rate 
of interest to be borne by the Bonds, but all Bonds maturing on the same date must bear interest 
at the same rate.  Bonds on successive maturity dates may bear the same interest rate.  No Bond 
shall bear more than one rate of interest, which rate shall be uniform for the life of the Bond and 
no interest rate may be named that exceeds [5.50]%.  The difference between the highest and 
lowest interest rates may not exceed [three] percent ([3.00]%). 

Award of Bonds:  The successful bidder will be determined based on the lowest interest 
cost to the Commission.  The lowest interest cost shall be determined in accordance with the true 
interest cost (“TIC”) method by doubling the semi-annual interest rate, compounded semi-
annually, necessary to discount the debt service payments from the payment dates to the date of 
the Bonds, and to the price bid. Where the proposals of two or more bidders result in the same 
lowest interest cost, the Bonds may be apportioned between such bidders, but if this shall not be 
acceptable, the Commission shall have the right to award all of the Bonds to one bidder.  The 
Commission reserves the right to reject any or all proposals and to waive any irregularities in any 
of the proposals.  The Secretary-Treasurer’s judgment shall be final and binding upon all bidders 
with respect to the form and adequacy of any proposal received and as to its conformity to the 

87



terms of this Notice of Sale.  Any award of the Bonds may be made as late as 4:00 p.m. local 
Baltimore, Maryland time on the sale date.  All bids shall remain firm until an award is made.   

Good Faith Deposit:  The successful bidder is required to submit a good faith deposit in 
the amount of $[_________] (the “Good Faith Deposit”) payable to the order of the Commission 
in the form of a wire transfer in federal funds as instructed by the Commission.  The successful 
bidder shall submit the Good Faith Deposit not more than two hours after the verbal award is 
made.  The successful bidder should provide as quickly as it is available, evidence of wire 
transfer by providing the Commission the federal funds reference number.  If the Good Faith 
Deposit is not received in the time allotted, the bid of the successful bidder may be rejected and 
the Commission may direct the next lowest bidder to submit a Good Faith Deposit and thereafter 
may award the sale of the Bonds to such bidder.  If the successful bidder fails to comply with the 
Good Faith Deposit requirement as described herein, that bidder is nonetheless obligated to pay 
to the Commission the sum of $[_________] as liquidated damages due to the failure of the 
successful bidder to timely deposit the Good Faith Deposit. 

Submission of a bid to purchase the Bonds serves as acknowledgement and acceptance 
of the terms of the Good Faith Deposit requirement. 

The Good Faith Deposit so wired will be retained by the Commission until the delivery 
of the Bonds, at which time the Good Faith Deposit will be applied against the purchase price of 
the Bonds or the Good Faith Deposit will be retained by the Commission as partial liquidated 
damages in the event of the failure of the successful bidder to take up and pay for such Bonds in 
compliance with the terms of this Notice of Sale and of its bid.  No interest on the Good Faith 
Deposit will be paid by the Commission.  The balance of the purchase price must be wired in 
federal funds to the account detailed in the closing memorandum, simultaneously with delivery 
of the Bonds. 

Establishment of Issue Price: The successful bidder shall assist the Commission in 
establishing the issue price of the Bonds and shall execute and deliver to the Commission at 
closing an “issue price” or similar certificate setting forth the reasonably expected initial offering 
price to the public or the sales price or prices of the Bonds, together with the supporting pricing 
wires or equivalent communications, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A-1 or 
Exhibit A-2, as applicable, with such modifications as may be appropriate or necessary, in the 
reasonable judgment of the successful bidder, the Commission and Bond Counsel.  All actions to 
be taken by the Commission under this Notice of Sale to establish the issue price of the Bonds 
may be taken on behalf of the Commission by the Commission’s financial advisor identified 
herein and any notice or report to be provided to the Commission may be provided to the 
Commission’s financial advisor. 

The Commission intends that the provisions of Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-
1(f)(3)(i) (defining “competitive sale” for purposes of establishing the issue price of the Bonds) 
will apply to the initial sale of the Bonds (the “competitive sale requirements”) because: 

(1) the Commission shall disseminate this Notice of Sale to potential underwriters in
a manner that is reasonably designed to reach potential underwriters; 

88



(2) all bidders shall have an equal opportunity to bid;

(3) the Commission may receive bids from at least three underwriters of municipal
bonds who have established industry reputations for underwriting new issuances of municipal 
bonds; and 

(4) the Commission anticipates awarding the sale of the Bonds to the bidder who
submits a firm offer to purchase the Bonds at the highest price (or lowest interest cost), as set 
forth in this Notice of Sale. 

 By submitting a bid, each bidder (i) confirms that its bid is a firm offer for the purchase 
of the Bonds identified in this Notice of Sale, on the terms set forth in its bid and this Notice of 
Sale, except as permitted by this Notice of Sale and (ii) represents that it has an established 
industry reputation for underwriting new issuances of municipal bonds.      

In the event that the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied, the Commission shall 
so advise the successful bidder.  The Commission may determine to treat (i) the first price at 
which 10% of a maturity of the Bonds (the “10% test”) is sold to the public as the issue price of 
that maturity and/or (ii) the initial offering price to the public as of the sale date of any maturity 
of the Bonds as the issue price of that maturity (the “hold-the-offering-price rule”), in each case 
applied on a maturity-by-maturity basis (and if different interest rates apply within a maturity, to 
each separate CUSIP number within that maturity).  The successful bidder shall advise the 
Commission if any maturity of the Bonds satisfies the 10% test as of the date and time of the 
award of the Bonds.  The Commission shall promptly advise the successful bidder, at or before 
the time of award of the Bonds, which maturities (and if different interest rates apply within a 
maturity, which separate CUSIP number within that maturity) of the Bonds shall be subject to 
the 10% test or shall be subject to the hold-the-offering-price rule.  Bids will not be subject to 
cancellation in the event that the Commission determines to apply the hold-the-offering-price 
rule to any maturity of the Bonds.  Bidders should prepare their bids on the assumption that some 
or all of the maturities of the Bonds will be subject to the hold-the-offering-price rule in order to 
establish the issue price of the Bonds. 

By submitting a bid, the successful bidder shall (i) confirm that the underwriters have 
offered or will offer the Bonds to the public on or before the date of award at the offering price 
or prices (the “initial offering price”), or at the corresponding yield or yields, set forth in the bid 
submitted by the successful bidder and (ii) agree, on behalf of the underwriters participating in 
the purchase of the Bonds, that the underwriters will neither offer nor sell unsold Bonds of any 
maturity to which the hold-the-offering-price rule shall apply to any person at a price that is 
higher than the initial offering price to the public during the period starting on the sale date and 
ending on the earlier of the following: 

(1) the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the sale date; or

(2) the date on which the underwriters have sold at least 10% of that maturity of the
Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the public. 

The successful bidder shall promptly advise the Commission when the underwriters have 
sold 10% of that maturity of the Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial 

89



offering price to the public, if that occurs prior to the close of the fifth (5th) business day after 
the sale date. 

If the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied, then until the 10% test has been 
satisfied as to each maturity of the Bonds, the successful bidder agrees to promptly report to the 
Commission the prices at which the unsold Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public.  
That reporting obligation shall continue, whether or not the closing has occurred, until the 10% 
test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of that maturity or until all Bonds of that maturity have 
been sold. 

The Commission acknowledges that, in making the representation set forth above, the 
successful bidder will rely on (i) the agreement of each underwriter to comply with the hold-the-
offering-price rule, as set forth in an agreement among underwriters and the related pricing 
wires, (ii) in the event a selling group has been created in connection with the initial sale of the 
Bonds to the public, the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group to 
comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, as set forth in a selling group agreement and the 
related pricing wires, and (iii) in the event that an underwriter is a party to a retail distribution 
agreement that was employed in connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, the 
agreement of each broker-dealer that is a party to such agreement to comply with the hold-the-
offering-price rule, as set forth in the retail distribution agreement and the related pricing wires.  
The Commission further acknowledges that each underwriter shall be solely liable for its failure 
to comply with its agreement regarding the hold-the-offering-price rule and that no underwriter 
shall be liable for the failure of any other underwriter, or of any dealer who is a member of a 
selling group, or of any broker-dealer that is a party to a retail distribution agreement to comply 
with its corresponding agreement regarding the hold-the-offering-price rule as applicable to the 
Bonds. 

By submitting a bid, each bidder confirms that: (i) any agreement among underwriters, 
any selling group agreement and each retail distribution agreement (to which the bidder is a 
party) relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing 
wires, contains or will contain language obligating each underwriter, each dealer who is a 
member of the selling group, and each broker-dealer that is a party to such retail distribution 
agreement, as applicable, to (A) report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Bonds 
of each maturity allotted to it until it is notified by the successful bidder that either the 10% test 
has been satisfied as to the Bonds of that maturity or all Bonds of that maturity have been sold to 
the public and (B) comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, in each case if and 
for so long as directed by the successful bidder and as set forth in the related pricing wires, and 
(ii) any agreement among underwriters relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, 
together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating each 
underwriter that is a party to a retail distribution agreement to be employed in connection with 
the initial sale of the Bonds to the public to require each broker-dealer that is a party to such 
retail distribution agreement to (A) report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold 
Bonds of each maturity allotted to it until it is notified by the successful bidder or such 
underwriter that either the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of that maturity or all 
Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public and (B) comply with the hold-the-offering-
price rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as directed by the successful bidder or 
such underwriter and as set forth in the related pricing wires. 

90



Sales of any Bonds to any person that is a related party to an underwriter shall not 
constitute sales to the public for purposes of this Notice of Sale.  Further, for purposes of this 
Notice of Sale: 

(i) “public” means any person other than an underwriter or a related party,

(ii) “underwriter” means (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract
with the Commission (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to 
participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public and (B) any person that agrees pursuant to 
a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (A) to participate in the 
initial sale of the Bonds to the public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail 
distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public), 

(iii) a purchaser of any of the Bonds is a “related party” to an underwriter if the
underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (i) at least 50% common 
ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both entities are corporations 
(including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (ii) more than 50% common 
ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, if both entities are partnerships (including 
direct ownership by one partnership of another), or (iii) more than 50% common ownership of 
the value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of 
the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership 
(including direct ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other), and 

(iv) “sale date” means the date that the Bonds are awarded by the Commission to the
successful bidder. 

CUSIP Numbers; Expenses of the Bidder:  It is anticipated that CUSIP numbers will 
be assigned to each maturity of the Bonds, but neither the failure to type or print such numbers 
on any of the Bonds nor any error with respect thereto shall constitute cause for a failure or 
refusal by the purchaser thereof to accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds.  The policies of the 
CUSIP Service Bureau will govern the assignment of specific numbers to the Bonds.  The 
successful bidder will be responsible for applying for and obtaining, subject to the CUSIP 
Service Bureau policy and procedures, CUSIP numbers for the Bonds promptly upon award of 
the bid.  All expenses of typing or printing CUSIP numbers for the Bonds will be paid for by the 
Commission; provided the CUSIP Service Bureau charges for the assignment of the numbers 
shall be the responsibility of and shall be paid for by the successful bidder. 

All charges of DTC and all other expenses of the successful bidder will be the 
responsibility of the successful bidder for the Bonds. 

Official Statement:  Not later than seven (7) business days after the date of sale, the 
Commission will deliver to the successful bidder an Official Statement, which is expected to be 
substantially in the form of the Preliminary Official Statement referred to below.  If so requested 
by the successful bidder for the Bonds at or before the close of business on the date of the sale, 
the Commission will include in the Official Statement such pricing and other information with 
respect to the terms of the reoffering of the Bonds of such issue by the successful bidder therefor, 
if any, as may be specified and furnished in writing by such bidder (the “Reoffering 

91



Information”).  If no such information is specified and furnished by the successful bidder, the 
Official Statement will include the interest rate or rates on the Bonds resulting from the bid of 
such successful bidder.  The successful bidder shall be responsible to the Commission and its 
officials for such Reoffering Information furnished by such bidder, and for all decisions made by 
such bidder with respect to the use or omission of the Reoffering Information in any reoffering of 
the Bonds.  The successful bidder will also be furnished, without cost, with a reasonable number 
of copies of the Official Statement as determined by the Secretary-Treasurer (and any 
amendments or supplements thereto). 

Legal Opinion: The Bonds described above will be issued and sold subject to approval 
as to legality by McGuireWoods LLP, Bond Counsel, whose approving opinion will be 
delivered, upon request, to the successful bidder for the Bonds without charge.  Such opinion 
will be substantially in the form included in Appendix [__] to the Preliminary Official Statement 
referred to below. 

Continuing Disclosure:  In order to assist bidders in complying with SEC Rule 15c2-12, 
the Commission will execute and deliver a continuing disclosure certificate on or before the date 
of issuance of the Bonds pursuant to which the Commission will undertake to provide certain 
information annually and notices of certain events.  A description of this certificate is set forth in 
the Preliminary Official Statement and will also be set forth in the Official Statement. 

Delivery and Payment:  It shall be a condition of the obligation of the successful bidder 
to accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds, that, simultaneously with or before delivery and 
payment for the Bonds, said bidder shall be furnished, without cost, with a certificate of the 
Secretary-Treasurer of the Commission to the effect that, to the best of his knowledge, the 
Official Statement and any amendment or supplement thereto (except for the Reoffering 
Information provided by the successful bidder, as to which no view will be expressed) does not 
contain, as of the date of sale and as of the date of delivery of the Bonds, any untrue statement of 
a material fact, required to be stated or necessary to be stated, to make such statements, in light 
of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. 

If the Commission advises the bidders that the bid for the Bonds constitutes a Qualified 
Competitive Bid, the winning bidder shall be required to provide to the Commission information 
to establish the initial expected offering prices for each maturity of the Bonds for federal income 
tax purposes by completing a certificate acceptable to Bond Counsel in substantially the form set 
forth in [Exhibit A-1 to this Notice of Sale], with appropriate completions, amendments and 
attachments.  

If the Commission advises the bidders that the bid for the Bonds constitutes a 
Nonqualified Competitive Bid, the winning bidder shall be required to provide to the 
Commission information and assurances to establish the initial sale prices or the initial offering 
prices, as applicable, for each maturity of the Bonds for federal income tax purposes by 
completing a certification acceptable to Bond Counsel in substantially the form set forth in 
[Exhibit A-2 to this Notice of Sale], with appropriate completions, omissions and attachments. 

Delivery of the Bonds, at the Commission’s expense, will be made by the Commission to 
the purchaser on _____________, 2018, or as soon as practicable thereafter, through the facilities 

92



of DTC in New York, New York, and, thereupon, said purchaser will be required to accept 
delivery of the Bonds purchased and pay the balance of the purchase price thereon in federal or 
other immediately available funds.  The Bonds will be accompanied by the customary closing 
documents including a no-litigation certificate effective as of the date of delivery. 

Contacts:  A preliminary official statement, which is in form “deemed final” as of its 
date by the Commission for purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-12 (the “Preliminary Official 
Statement”) but is subject to revision, amendment and completion in the final official statement 
(the “Official Statement”), together with this Notice of Sale, may be obtained from Joseph C. 
Zimmerman, Secretary-Treasurer, The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning 
Commission, 6611 Kenilworth Avenue, Riverdale, Maryland 20737, (301) 454-1540 or 
Davenport & Company LLC, 8600 LaSalle Road, Suite 618, Towson, Maryland 21286-2011, 
(410) 296-9426.

Right to Change Notice of Sale and Postpone Offering:  The Commission reserves the
right to change the Notice of Sale and to postpone, from time to time, the date established for the 
receipt of bids.  In the event of a postponement, the new date and time of sale will be announced 
via TM3 News Service at least 24 hours prior to the time proposals are to be submitted.  On any 
such alternative sale date, bidders may submit electronic bids for the purchase of the Bonds in 
conformity with the provision of this Notice of Sale, except for any changes to this Notice of 
Sale, the change of the date of sale and the changes described in the next sentence.  If the date 
fixed for receipt of bids is postponed, the expected date of delivery of the Bonds also may be 
postponed.  Such changes, if any, will be announced via TM3 News Service at the time any 
alternative sale date is announced. 

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL 
PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

By: _____________________________________ 
       Chairman 

93



EXHIBIT A-1 TO 
NOTICE OF SALE 

$15,000,000  
Montgomery County  
General Obligation 

Park Acquisition and Development Project Bonds, 
Series MC-2018A 

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE 
(Qualified Competitive Bid) 

The undersigned, on behalf of [NAME OF PURCHASER] (the “Purchaser”), hereby 
certifies as set forth below with respect to the sale of the above-captioned obligations (the 
“Bonds”).  

1. Reasonably Expected Initial Offering Price.

(a) As of the Sale Date, the reasonably expected initial offering prices of the
Bonds to the Public by the Purchaser are the prices listed in Schedule A (the “Expected Offering 
Prices”). The Expected Offering Prices are the prices for the Bonds used by the Purchaser in 
formulating its bid to purchase the Bonds. Attached as Schedule B is a true and correct copy of 
the bid provided by the Purchaser to purchase the Bonds.  

(b) The Purchaser was not given the opportunity to review other bids prior to
submitting its bid. 

(c) The bid submitted by the Purchaser constituted a firm offer to purchase the
Bonds. 

2. Defined Terms.

(a) Issuer means The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning
Commission. 

(b) Maturity means Bonds with the same credit and payment terms. Bonds
with different maturity dates, or Bonds with the same maturity date but different stated interest 
rates, are treated as separate maturities. 

(c) Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate,
partnership, association, company, or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a related party to 
an Underwriter. The term “related party” for purposes of this Certificate generally means any 
two or more persons who have greater than 50 percent common ownership, directly or indirectly.  

(d) Sale Date means the first day on which there is a binding contract in
writing for the sale of a Maturity of the Bonds. The Sale Date of the Bonds is ________, 2018. 

94



(e) Underwriter means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written
contract with the Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to 
participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant 
to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (i) of this paragraph 
to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public (including a member of a selling group 
or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the 
Public).  

The undersigned understands that the foregoing information will be relied upon by the 
Issuer with respect to certain of the representations set forth in the Non-Arbitrage Certificate and 
Tax Covenants and with respect to compliance with the federal income tax rules affecting the 
Bonds, and by McGuireWoods LLP, as bond counsel to the Issuer, in connection with rendering 
its opinion that the interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes, the preparation of the Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-G, and other federal 
income tax advice that it may give to the Issuer  from time to time relating to the Bonds. 

[NAME OF PURCHASER], as Purchaser  
By: _________________________________ 
Title: ________________________________ 

Dated: ___________, 2018 

95



SCHEDULE A 
Expected Offering Prices of the Bonds 

96



SCHEDULE B 
Copy of Bid 

97



EXHIBIT A-2 TO 
NOTICE OF SALE 

$15,000,000  
Montgomery County  
General Obligation 

Park Acquisition and Development Project Bonds, 
Series MC-2018A 

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE 
(Nonqualified Competitive Bid) 

The undersigned, on behalf of [NAME OF PURCHASER] (the “Purchaser”), hereby 
certifies as set forth below with respect to the sale and issuance of the above-captioned 
obligations (the “Bonds”). 

1. Sale of the 10% Maturities. As of the date of this Certificate, for each Maturity
of the 10% Maturities Bonds, the first price at which a Substantial Amount of such Maturity of 
the Bonds was sold to the Public is the respective price listed in Schedule A. 

2. Initial Offering Price of the Undersold Maturities.

(a) Each Underwriter offered the Undersold Maturities to the Public for
purchase at the respective initial offering prices listed in Schedule B (the “Initial Offering 
Prices”) on or before the Sale Date. A copy of the pricing wire or equivalent communication for 
the Bonds is attached to this Certificate as Schedule C. 

(b) As set forth in the Notice of Sale and bid award, each Underwriter has
agreed in writing that, (i) for each Maturity of the Undersold Maturities, it would neither offer 
nor sell any of the Bonds of such Maturity to any person at a price that is higher than the Initial 
Offering Price for such Maturity during the Offering Period for such Maturity, nor would it 
permit a related party to do so (the “hold-the-price rule”) and (ii) any selling group agreement 
shall contain the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group, and any retail 
distribution agreement shall contain the agreement of each broker-dealer who is a party to the 
retail distribution agreement, to comply with the hold-the-price rule. Pursuant to such agreement, 
no Underwriter has offered or sold any Maturity of the Undersold Maturities at a price that is 
higher than the respective Initial Offering Price for that Maturity of the Bonds during the 
Offering Period.   

3. Defined Terms.

(a) 10% Maturities means those Maturities of the Bonds shown in Schedule A
hereto as the “10% Maturities.” 

(b) Issuer means The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning
Commission. 

98



(c) Maturity means Bonds with the same credit and payment terms. Bonds
with different maturity dates, or Bonds with the same maturity date but different stated interest 
rates, are treated as separate maturities. 

(d) Offering Period means, with respect to an Undersold Maturity, the period
starting on the Sale Date and ending on the earlier of (i) the close of the fifth business day after 
the Sale Date ([______,2018]), or (ii) the date on which the Purchaser has sold a Substantial 
Amount of such Undersold Maturity to the Public at a price that is no higher than the Initial 
Offering Price for such Undersold Maturity. 

(e) Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate,
partnership, association, company, or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a related party to 
an Underwriter. The term “related party” for purposes of this Certificate generally means any 
two or more persons who have greater than 50 percent common ownership, directly or indirectly. 

(f) Sale Date means the first day on which there is a binding contract in
writing for the sale of a Maturity of the Bonds. The Sale Date of the Bonds is _______, 2018. 

(g) Substantial Amount means ten percent (10%).

(h) Undersold Maturities means those Maturities of the Bonds shown in
Schedule B hereto as the “Undersold Maturities.” 

(i) Underwriter means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written
contract with the Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to 
participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant 
to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (i) of this paragraph 
to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public (including a member of a selling group 
or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the 
Public). 

The undersigned understands that the foregoing information will be relied upon by the 
Issuer with respect to certain of the representations set forth in the Non-Arbitrage Certificate and 
Tax Covenants and with respect to compliance with the federal income tax rules affecting the 
Bonds, and by McGuireWoods LLP, as bond counsel to the Issuer, in connection with rendering 
its opinion that the interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes, the preparation of Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-G, and other federal income 
tax advice it may give to the Issuer  from time to time relating to the Bonds. 

[NAME OF PURCHASER], as  
Purchaser 
By: _________________________ 
Title: ______________________ 

Dated: _______, 2018 

99



SCHEDULE A 
Sale Prices of the 10% Maturities 

100



SCHEDULE B 
Initial Offering Prices of the Undersold Maturities 

  

101



SCHEDULE C 
Pricing Wire 

104687364_3.docx 

102



Items 6e & 6f

103



M-NCPPC Resolution No. 18-29

R E S O L U T I O N 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority set forth in the Maryland Annotated Code (the 

“Code”) at Section 17-301 of the Land Use Article, the Maryland-National Capital Park and 

Planning Commission (“M-NCPPC”) has established the Prince George’s County Division of the 

Maryland-National Capital Park Police (the “Park Police”), as deemed necessary for the protection 

of the Commission’s activities and properties, including those situated within and immediately 

adjacent to the boundaries of the Town of Cottage City, Maryland (the “Town”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority set forth in the Code, at Section 17-101 of the Land 

Use Article, the Commission owns land including a trail which is located within the jurisdictional 

boundaries of the Town limits; and 

WHEREAS, the Town and the Commission desire to enter a cooperative agreement to 

enhance policing on trails and other Commission property within the jurisdictional boundaries of 

the two municipalities to clarify and enhance coordination and overall policing in those areas; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority set forth in the Code, at Section 2-105 of the 

Criminal Procedure Article, the Town and M-NCPPC propose to enter into a Mutual Aid 

Agreement for the purposes provided therein; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the M-NCPPC finds that it is in the best 

interest of the public health, safety and welfare to enter the Mutual Aid Agreement, attached hereto 

as Exhibit A; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning 

Commission approves, and does hereby ratify, the provisions contained in the proposed Mutual 

Aid Agreement as amended and attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning 

Commission does hereby authorize the Executive Director and other officers to make, enter into, 

and execute such other agreements, instruments and further assurances as may be necessary to 

effectuate its decision to approve and ratify the proposed Mutual Aid Agreement attached hereto 

as Exhibit A, including any non-material modifications deemed advisable. 

Item 6e

104



M-NCPPC Resolution No. 18-30

R E S O L U T I O N 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority set forth in the Maryland Annotated Code (the 

“Code”) at Section 17-301 of the Land Use Article, the Maryland-National Capital Park and 

Planning Commission (“M-NCPPC”) has established the Prince George’s County Division of the 

Maryland-National Capital Park Police (the “Park Police”), as deemed necessary for the protection 

of the Commission’s activities and properties, including those situated within and immediately 

adjacent to the boundaries of the Town of Colmar Manor, Maryland (the “Town”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority set forth in the Code, at Section 17-101 of the Land 

Use Article, the Commission owns land including a trail which is located within the jurisdictional 

boundaries of the Town limits; and 

WHEREAS, the Town and the Commission desire to enter a cooperative agreement to 

enhance policing on trails and other Commission property within the jurisdictional boundaries of 

the two municipalities to clarify and enhance coordination and overall policing in those areas; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority set forth in the Code, at Section 2-105 of the 

Criminal Procedure Article, the Town and M-NCPPC propose to enter into a Mutual Aid 

Agreement for the purposes provided therein; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the M-NCPPC finds that it is in the best 

interest of the public health, safety and welfare to enter the Mutual Aid Agreement, attached hereto 

as Exhibit A; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning 

Commission approves, and does hereby ratify, the provisions contained in the proposed Mutual 

Aid Agreement as amended and attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning 

Commission does hereby authorize the Executive Director and other officers to make, enter into, 

and execute such other agreements, instruments and further assurances as may be necessary to 

effectuate its decision to approve and ratify the proposed Mutual Aid Agreement attached hereto 

as Exhibit A, including any non-material modifications deemed advisable. 

Item 6f

105



MUTUAL AID AND RECIPROCAL ENFORCEMENT AGREEMENT

THIS MUTUAL AID AND RECIPROCAL ENFORCEMENT AGREEMENT  (the “Reciprocal
Agreement” or “Agreement”) is made as of this             day of                                              , 2018, by
and between Cottage City,  Maryland (the “Town”), a public body corporate and politic of the State of
Maryland, and the Maryland-National Park and Planning Commission (the “Commission”) a public
body corporate and agency of the State of Maryland.

Explanatory Statements

A. Pursuant to the authority set forth in the Charter of the Town of Cottage City, §18(45), the
Town of Cottage City has established the Town of Cottage City Police Department (the “Town
Police”) to protect the health, safety and general welfare of the public within the territorial limits of
Cottage City, Maryland (the “Town Limits”).

B. Pursuant to the authority set forth in the Annotated Code of Maryland (the “Code”) at
Section 5-101 of the Land Use Article, the Commission regularly acquires, develops, owns and/or
operates various park facilities and other real properties or interests therein, including such of the
Commission properties located from time to time within the Town Limits presently including but not
limited to the Dueling Branch Neighborhood Playground, the Cottage City Neighborhood Mini-Park,
and the Anacostia River Stream Valley Park (the “Park Property”).

C. Pursuant to the authority set forth in the Code at Section 17-301, et seq. of the Land Use
Article the Commission has established the Prince George’s County Division of the Maryland-
National Capital Park Police (the “Park Police”) as deemed thereby to be necessary for the
protection of the Commission activities undertaken within the Town Limits and the Park Property.

D. Pursuant to the authority set forth in the Code, at Section 17-303 of the Land Use Article
and the Criminal Procedure Article at Section 2-105, the Town, Commission, Town Police and Park
Police (collectively, the “Parties”) through the Parties’ respective police agencies desire to make and
enter into this Reciprocal Agreement for the purposes provided thereunder.

E. The Parties desire to provide for the safe and efficient administration of law enforcement
within the Park Property and that portion of all roads and sidewalks immediately adjacent to any
such Park Property within the Town.

106



F. This Agreement has been authorized pursuant to §11-7 of the Code of the Town of
Cottage City by the action of the governing body of the Town of Cottage City, Maryland, taken on
April 11, 2018 by resolution 2018-01 approved and recorded in the journal, a true and correct copy
of which is annexed hereto at Exhibit A.

G. This Agreement has been authorized by the formal action of the Maryland-National
Capital Park and Planning Commission taken on ______________________, 2018, by Resolution
_______, a true and correct copy of which is annexed hereto at Exhibit B.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual rights, duties, promises and obligations
herein, the parties desire to set forth in writing the understanding reached between them concerning
the manner in which police service is to be rendered within the Park Property and within the Town
Limits and therefore agree to the following:

1. Authority Reserved.  Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended to cede, relinquish
or limit the respective legal authority or jurisdiction of either department under circumstances not
addressed herein, and the Town Police and Park Police, respectively, do hereby expressly reserve
all such authority and jurisdiction to the fullest extent otherwise provided under the Code, by law of
the Town, resolution of the Commission, Common Law of Maryland or any other applicable law or
regulation promulgated pursuant thereto.  By way of example and without limiting the generality of
the foregoing, it is understood that nothing provided in this Agreement shall limit or otherwise impair
the authority of any officer of the Town Police or Park Police to make an arrest pursuant to the
provisions of the Code at Sections 2-102, 2-202, 2-203 or 2-301 of the Criminal Procedure Article as
amended from time to time.  In addition, the failure of either party to comply with the requirements of
Sections 2.1, 2.3, 2.4, 3, 4 or 5 of this Agreement may only be enforced by the parties under Section
6 of this Agreement and shall have no effect on the authority of the Town Police or the Park Police
to exercise their respective police powers of this State, it being expressly understood that this
Agreement shall have no third-party beneficiaries intended or implied.

2. Special Patrol Jurisdiction.

2.1. Jurisdiction Conferred.  The Commission and Park Police and Town and Town
Police do hereby warrant and muster the aid of each other and, accordingly, confer upon each other
any concurrent and general jurisdiction necessary and sufficient under law to exercise police powers
within the specified geographical areas contained within the Town Limits and enumerated in the
map and Schedule 2.1 attached to this Agreement ( the “Special Patrol Areas”); provided, however,
that such authority shall be subject to the following limitations:

2.1.1.  Special Patrol Areas.  The Town and Town Police expressly agree they
will conduct regular patrols within the Special Patrol Areas sufficient to address the Town’s public 
safety concerns.  Activities undertaken by the Town Police under the Special Patrol Jurisdiction shall
be confined to the Special Patrol Areas; provided, however, that this section is not intended to limit
the authority of the Town Police to engage in fresh pursuit, for actions that occur within the Special
Patrol Areas, as provided in the Code at Section 2-301 of the Criminal Procedure Article.

2.1.2.  Park Property Reserved.  Nothing provided in this Article 2 with respect
to the Special Patrol Jurisdiction shall limit or otherwise impair the exercise by the Park Police of
jurisdiction within any Park Property located within a Special Patrol Area, it being expressly
understood that jurisdiction within any Park Property shall be exercised according to the provisions

107



of Article 3 of this Agreement only.

2.2. Reserved. 

2.3.  Certain Practices of Town Police.  For the purpose of securing the orderly
exercise of Special Patrol Jurisdiction and conducting the patrols promised by the Town, the Town
Police agree to observe certain practices and procedures provided as follows:

2.3.2.  Communication Protocol.  Incidents observed by the Town Police and
arrests made by the Town Police in the exercise of its Special Patrol Jurisdiction shall be reported
promptly to the Park Police by means of radio or telephone transmission.

2.3.3 Incident Reports.  The Town Police shall file with the Park Police a
written report for any arrest or other incident reportable according to Park Police regulation or
directive, or at the special request made pursuant to Park Police incident command.  Written
incident reports made by the Town Police for this purpose shall be provided according to any form,
content, and applicable written directives or procedures, which the Park Police may from time to time
reasonably promulgate and require.  It is understood that incident reports filed pursuant to this
Section 2.3.3 shall be completed as soon as practicable following the close of the reporting officer’s
tour of duty, but not later than 24 hours thereafter.  The Park Police will likewise provide incident
reports to the Town Police with respect to any arrest or other reportable incident.

2.3.4 Notice of Certain Operations.  To ensure the safety of both Town Police
officers and Park Police officers, the Town Police shall provide to the Park Police reasonable prior
notice of any narcotics investigation or undercover enforcement activity conducted on Park Property.
Such notice shall be furnished within four (4) hours in advance of commencement of such activity
according to such applicable written directives or procedures as the Park Police may from time to
time reasonably promulgate and require, unless due to exigent circumstances such notice is
impractical.

3. Concurrent Jurisdiction On Park Property.  The Parties hereby acknowledge the
concurrent jurisdiction of the Park Police with respect to Park Property, including without limitation
that contained within the Special Patrol District and that portion of all roads and sidewalks
immediately adjacent to any Park Property.  As a matter of their mutual convenience, and not in
limitation, it is understood that such concurrent jurisdiction shall be exercised according to the
provisions of this Article 3.

3.1.  Command.

3.1.1.  On Park Property.  Except and unless expressly waived at the sole
option of the Park Police with respect to a particular incident, the Park Police shall have full charge
and responsibility for on-the-scene command of any Town Police officer who exercises concurrent
jurisdiction on Park Property.

3.1.2.  Certain Areas Adjacent to Park Property.  If any incident begins or is
discovered on Park Property and thereafter continues without interruption onto the roads and
sidewalks immediately adjacent to Park Property, then, except and unless expressly waived at the
sole option of the Park Police with respect to that incident, the Park Police shall have full charge and
responsibility for on-the-scene command of any Town Police officer who responds to that incident.

108



3.1.3.  First on the Scene.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, in
the event that a police officer for any signatory jurisdiction is first on the scene, that officer shall
assume command and secure the area, maintain the integrity of any crime scene, establish a
perimeter as required and begin to gather victim/or witness information until an officer from the
signatory jurisdiction having primary jurisdiction arrives on scene.  A police officer who initially
assumes command of a scene as described in this subsection shall relinquish command to the first
police officer having primary jurisdiction who arrives on the scene.

3.2.  Park Police.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in Section 3.3. of this
Agreement, the Park Police shall be the agency of principal responsibility for law enforcement
activities undertaken with respect to Park Property, including, but not limited to, the following:

3.2.1.  Investigation.  Initiation and/or conduct of investigative activities
relating to a crime, reported crime or possible crime occurring on Park Property; provided, however,
that, the Prince George’s County Police shall be and remain the agency of principal responsibility for
investigative activities relating to any human death occurring or discovered on Park Property.  With
respect to those events investigated by the Park Police, the Park Police shall be solely responsible
for the collection and preservation of evidence/property recovered during the course of their
investigations.

3.2.2.  Warrants.  The execution on Park Property of search or arrest warrants
relating to any crime, reported crime or possible crime investigated by the Park Police.

3.2.3.  Crowd Control.  The planning and execution of law enforcement
measures to control crowds, demonstrations, public displays, and similar scheduled and
unscheduled congregations which may occur from time to time on Park Property.

3.2.4.  Drug and Alcohol Crime. The investigation and enforcement of any
violation occurring on Park Property of laws relating to the possession, use and/or distribution of
narcotics, and similar controlled dangerous substances or alcoholic beverages.

3.2.5.  Motor Vehicle Laws.  The investigation and enforcement of any
violation of the motor vehicle laws of the State of Maryland occurring on Park Property, whether or
not the violation is a crime.

3.2.6.  Enforcement of Rules and Regulations.  The investigation and
enforcement of the Park Rules and Regulations promulgated from time to time by the Commission in
accordance with the Code at Land Use Article Section 17-207.

3.3.  Certain Practices of Park Police.  For the purpose of securing the orderly
exercise of Special Patrol Jurisdiction, the Park Police agree to observe certain practices and
procedures provided as follows:

3.3.1.  Communication Protocol.  Incidents observed by the Park Police and
arrests made by the Park Police in the exercise of its Special Patrol Jurisdiction shall be reported
promptly to the Town Police by means of radio or telephone transmission.

109



3.3.2.  Incident Reports.  The Park Police shall file with the Town Police a
written report for any arrest or other incident reportable according to Park Police regulation or
directive, or at the special request made pursuant to Town Police.  Written incident reports made by
the Park Police for this purpose shall be provided according to any form, content, and applicable
written directives or procedures, which the Park Police may from time to time reasonably promulgate
and require.  It is understood that incident reports filed pursuant to this Section 3.3.3. shall be
completed as soon as practicable following the close of the reporting officers tour of duty, but not
later than 24 hours thereafter.

3.3.3.  Advance Notice of Certain Operations.  To ensure the safety of both
Town Police officers and Park Police officers, the Park Police shall provide to the Town Police
reasonable prior notice of any narcotics investigation or undercover enforcement activity conducted
in the Special Patrol Areas.  Such notice shall be furnished within four (4) hours in advance of
commencement of such activity according to such applicable written directives or procedures as the
Park Police may from time to time reasonably promulgate and require, unless due to exigent
circumstances such notice is impractical.

4. Calls for Emergency Assistance.  The Parties acknowledge that the proper and timely
routing of telephone calls for emergency service between the Town Police and Park Police, and the
notice thereof from one unto the other, is a serious matter of public service and a possible source of
citizen confusion or complaints.  Accordingly, the departments will exercise best efforts and due care
in the transaction of such calls according to the provisions of this Article 4.

4.1.  Referral to Agency Having Principal Responsibility.  The Park Police shall
promptly refer to the Town Police any telephone call or other request for emergency service which
relates to an area other than Park Property but within the Town Limits.  The Town Police shall
promptly refer to the Park Police any telephone call or other request for emergency service which
relates to Park Property that is outside the Special Patrol Areas.  Telephone calls referred by one
agency to another shall be transacted using equipment designed to switch the call without
interruption to the person initiating the call.

4.2.  Records.  Each agency shall maintain a record of calls referred to the other
pursuant to this Article 4.  The records shall record the date, time and duration of the call, street
address or other information regarding location of the request, the nature of complaint, complaint
number (if any) and identification of personnel assigned to respond (if any) to each call switched as
provided herein.  Each agency shall furnish to the other a copy of the records maintained upon
request.

5. Cooperation; Technical Assistance; Procedures; Complaints.  It is the intent of the Parties
that the Town Police and Park Police shall share liberally their technical expertise, equipment, and
human resources to prevent and reduce crime throughout the County Limits and to deliver efficient,
coordinated police services to the citizens of Prince George’s County, including without limitation
any available camera feeds or footage taken within the Special Patrol Areas.  Each police agency
signatory hereto, and their respective employees, covenants that it shall in all events cooperate
using best efforts to comply with any reasonable request made by the other.  Each police agency
shall promulgate reasonable rules, regulations and directives for the purpose of ensuring uniform
compliance with the requirements set forth in this Agreement.  Complaints alleging any incident of
non-compliance shall be made in writing addressed to the chief of agency to which such complaint
relates.  Upon receipt, the chief shall conduct promptly a reasonable investigation of each complaint

110



and shall in due course report in writing to the complainant whether such complaint is founded or
not.  On an annual basis beginning with the first anniversary of the effective date of this Agreement,
the status of each complaint of non-compliance shall be reported to the County and Commission,
respectively.

6. Statutory Indemnity.  The parties do mutually covenant and agree to waive all claims and
indemnify the other according to the terms and requirements set forth in the Code at Section 2-105
(e)(2) of the Criminal Procedure Article, which terms and requirements, as amended from time to
time, shall be deemed incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in their entirety.

7. Integration.

7.1.  Prior Agreement of the Parties.  This Agreement (including the Exhibits and
Schedules hereto) constitutes and contains the entire, integrated agreement of the Parties with
respect to the subject matter hereof, and shall supersede any and all prior negotiations,
correspondence, understandings and agreements between the parties, respecting the subject
matter hereof.

7.2.  Other Agencies of Law Enforcement.  Anything provided in this Agreement to
the contrary notwithstanding, it is understood that the Parties may from time to time, under the
authority provided under the Code at Section 2-105 of the Criminal Procedure Article, enter into
agreements of reciprocal enforcement and mutual aid respecting other law enforcement agencies.
In the event any provision contained in this Agreement conflicts with any other such enforcement
and aid agreement, the terms of the other such agreement shall be deemed to control.

8. Term.  This Agreement shall be deemed effective at 12:01 AM on the date first written
above and shall continue in full force and effect until such time as it is terminated by either the
County or the Commission upon thirty (30) days written notice.

9. Miscellaneous.

9.1.  Notices.  Except as otherwise expressly provided by this Agreement, any written
notices, requests, demands, consents, and other communications which are required or may be
given under this Agreement shall be given as follows:

If to the Town: Town Manager
Town of Cottage City
3820 40th Avenue
Cottage City, Maryland 20722

If to the Town Police:

Chief William Lowry
Cottage City Police Department
3820 40th Avenue
Cottage City, Maryland 20722

111



If to the Commission:

Executive Director
Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission
6611 Kenilworth Avenue, Suite 403
Riverdale, Maryland 20737

If to the Park Police:

Chief Stanley R. Johnson
Maryland-National Capital Park Police
8100 Corporate Drive
Landover, Maryland 20785

9.2.  Severability.  Any provision of this Agreement which is held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be prohibited or unenforceable shall be ineffective to the extent of such
prohibition or unenforceability, without invalidating or rendering unenforceable the remaining
provisions of this Agreement.

9.3.  Amendment; Waiver. No provision of this Agreement may be amended, waived,
or otherwise modified without the prior written consent of all of the parties hereto.

9.4.   Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which together shall be deemed to be one
and the same instrument.

9.5.  Applicable Law.  This Agreement was made in the State of Maryland, and shall
be governed by, construed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of
Maryland.

9.6.  Use of Genders. Whenever used in this Agreement, the singular shall include
the plural and vice versa, and the use of any gender shall include all genders and the neuter.

10. Colmar Manor and Cottage City Memoranda of Understanding Regarding Integrated
Police Command and Other Functions.  The Commission is on notice, understands and agrees that
pursuant to various memoranda of understanding the Town Police and the police department of the
Town of Colmar Manor (“Colmar Manor”) are led, supervised and managed by a single police chief. 
The present police chief of police for both jurisdictions is William Lowry.  Further, the Commission
understands and acknowledges that police officer of the Town and Colmar Manor are regularly
assigned to undertake patrol, response and other police functions within the Town and Colmar
Manor.

112



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed and acknowledged this Agreement as
of the day and year first written above.

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL
PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

TOWN OF COTTAGE CITY, MARYLAND

By: ____________________________
Patricia Barney
Executive Director

By: ____________________________
Dylan O. Galloway
Interim Town Manager

By: ____________________________
Elizabeth M. Hewlett
Chairman

By: ____________________________
Sheila Butler
Commissioner-Chair

ATTEST:

_______________________________
Joseph Zimmerman
Secretary-Treasurer

ATTEST:

_______________________________
Ann M. Young
Commissioner-Secretary

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency:

__________________________________
General Counsel
Maryland-National Capital Park and
Planning Commission

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency:

__________________________________
Town Attorney
Town of Cottage City

113



MUTUAL AID AND RECIPROCAL ENFORCEMENT AGREEMENT

THIS MUTUAL AID AND RECIPROCAL ENFORCEMENT AGREEMENT (the
Reciprocal Agreement or Agreement) is made as of this      day of
, 2018, by and between the Mayor and Town Council of Colmar Manor, Maryland (the Town), a
public body corporate and politic of the State of Maryland, and the Maryland-National Park and
Planning Commission (the ACommission@) a public body corporate and bi-county agency of the
State of Maryland.

Explanatory Statements

A. Pursuant to the authority set forth in the Charter of the Town, the Town has
established a Police Department (the Town Police) to protect the health, safety and general
welfare of the public within the limits of Town (the Town Limits).

B. Pursuant to the authority set forth in the Annotated Code of Maryland (the Code) at
Section 5-101 of the Land Use Article, the Commission regularly acquires, develops, owns
and/or operates various park facilities and other real properties or interests therein, including
such of the Commission properties located from time to time within the Town (the Park
Property) as shown on the attached maps.

C. Pursuant to the authority set forth in the Code at Section 17-301, et seq. of the Land
Use Article the Commission has established the Prince George=s County Division of the
Maryland-National Capital Park Police (the Park Police) as deemed thereby to be necessary for
the protection of the Commission activities undertaken within the Town Limits and the Park
Property.

D. Pursuant to the authority set forth in the Code, at Section 17-303 of the Land Use
Article and the Criminal Procedure Article at Section 2-105, the Town, and the Commission,
(collectively, the Parties) through the Parties’ respective police agencies desire to make and
enter into this Reciprocal Agreement for the purposes provided thereunder.

E. The Parties desire to provide for the safe and efficient administration of law
enforcement within the Park Property and that portion of all roads and sidewalks immediately
adjacent to any such Park Property within the Town.

F. This Agreement has been authorized pursuant to action of the Mayor and Town
Council of the Town taken on March 13, 2018

G. This Agreement has been authorized by the formal action of the Maryland-National
Capital Park and Planning Commission taken on ______________________, 2018, by
Resolution _______, a true and correct copy of which is annexed hereto at Exhibit B.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual rights, duties, promises and
obligations herein, the parties desire to set forth in writing the understanding reached between
them concerning the manner in which police service is to be rendered within the Park Property
and within the Town Limits and therefore agree to the following:

114



1. Authority Reserved.  Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended to cede,
relinquish or limit the respective legal authority or jurisdiction of either department under
circumstances not addressed herein, and the Town Police and Park Police, respectively, do
hereby expressly reserve all such authority and jurisdiction to the fullest extent otherwise
provided under the Code, by the laws and ordinances of the Town, resolution of the
Commission, Common Law of Maryland or any other applicable law or regulation promulgated
pursuant thereto. By way of example and without limiting the generality of the foregoing, it is
understood that nothing provided in this Agreement shall limit or otherwise impair the authority
of any officer of the Town Police or Park Police to make an arrest pursuant to the provisions of
the Code at Sections 2-102, 2-202, 2-203 or 2-301 of the Criminal Procedure Article as
amended from time to time.  In addition, the failure of either party to comply with the
requirements of Sections 2.1, 2.3, 2.4, 3, 4 or 5 of this Agreement may only be enforced by the
parties under Section 6 of this Agreement and shall have no effect on the authority of the Town
Police or the Park Police to exercise their respective police powers of this State, it being
expressly understood that this Agreement shall have no third-party beneficiaries intended or
implied.

2. Special Patrol Jurisdiction.

2.1. Jurisdiction Conferred.  The Commission and Town do hereby warrant and
muster the aid of each other and, accordingly, confer upon each other any concurrent and
general jurisdiction necessary and sufficient under law to exercise police powers within the
specified geographical areas contained within the Town Limits and enumerated in the map and
Schedule 2.1 attached to this Agreement (the Special Patrol Areas); provided, however, that
such authority shall be subject to the following limitations:

2.1.1.  Special Patrol Areas.  The Town expressly agrees it will conduct
regular patrols within the Special Patrol Areas sufficient to address the Town’s public safety
concerns.  Activities undertaken by the Town Police within the Special Patrol Areas shall be
confined to the Special Patrol Areas; provided, however, that this section is not intended to limit
the authority of police officers of the Town to engage in fresh pursuit, for actions that occur
within the Special Patrol Areas, as provided in the Code at Section 2-301 of the Criminal
Procedure Article.

2.1.2.  Park Property Reserved.  Nothing provided in this Article 2 with
respect to the Special Patrol Areas shall limit or otherwise impair the exercise by the Park Police
of jurisdiction within any Park Property located within a Special Patrol Area, it being expressly
understood that jurisdiction within any Park Property shall be exercised according to the
provisions of Article 3 of this Agreement only.

2.2. Reserved. 

2.3.  Certain Practices of Town Police. For the purpose of securing the orderly
exercise of jurisdiction described herein and conducting the patrols promised by the Town, the
Town agrees to observe certain practices and procedures provided as follows:

2.3.1.  Communication Protocol.  Incidents observed by the Town Police
and arrests made by the Town Police within the Special Patrol Areas shall be reported promptly
to the Park Police by means of radio or telephone transmission.

115



2.3.2.  Incident Reports.  The Town Police shall file with the Park Police
a written report for any arrest or other incident reportable according to Park Police regulation or
directive, or at the special request made pursuant to Park Police incident command.  Written
incident reports made by the Town Police for this purpose shall be provided according to any
form, content, and applicable written directives or procedures, which the Park Police may from
time to time reasonably promulgate and require.  It is understood that incident reports filed
pursuant to this Section 2.3.2 shall be completed as soon as practicable following the close of
the reporting officer’s tour of duty, but not later than 24 hours thereafter.  The Park Police will
likewise provide incident reports, in the same timely form and manner to the Town Police with
respect to any arrest or other reportable incident.

2.3.3.  Advance Notice of Certain Operations.  To ensure the safety of
both Town Police officers and Park Police officers, the Town Police shall provide to the Park
Police reasonable prior notice of any narcotics investigation or undercover enforcement activity
conducted on Park Property.  Such notice shall be furnished within four (4) hours in advance of
commencement of such activity according to such applicable written directives or procedures as
the Park Police may from time to time reasonably promulgate and require, unless due to exigent
circumstances such notice is impractical.

3. Concurrent Jurisdiction On Park Property.  The Parties hereby acknowledge the
concurrent jurisdiction of the Park Police with respect to Park Property, including without
limitation that contained within the Special Patrol District and that portion of all roads and
sidewalks immediately adjacent to any Park Property.  As a matter of their mutual convenience,
and not in limitation, it is understood that such concurrent jurisdiction shall be exercised
according to the provisions of this Article 3.

3.1.  Command.

3.1.1.  On Park Property.  Except and unless expressly waived at the
sole option of the Park Police with respect to a particular incident, the Park Police shall have full
charge and responsibility for on-the-scene command of any Town Police officer who exercises
concurrent jurisdiction on Park Property.

3.1.2.  Certain Areas Adjacent to Park Property.  If any incident begins
or is discovered on Park Property and thereafter continues without interruption onto the roads
and sidewalks immediately adjacent to Park Property, then, except and unless expressly waived
at the sole option of the Park Police with respect to that incident, the Park Police shall have full
charge and responsibility for on-the-scene command of any Town Police officer who responds
to that incident.

3.1.3.  First on Scene.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary,
in the event that a police office for any signatory jurisdiction is first on the scene, that officer
shall assume command and secure the area, maintain the integrity of any crime scene,
establish a perimeter as required and begin to gather victim and/or witness information until an
officer from the signatory jurisdiction having primary jurisdiction arrives on the scene.  A police
officer who initially assumes command of a scene as described in this subsection shall
relinquish command to the first police officer having primary jurisdiction who arrives on the
scene

116



3.2.  Park Police.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in Section 3.3. of this
Agreement, the Park Police shall be the agency of principal responsibility for law enforcement
activities undertaken with respect to Park Property, including, but not limited to, the following:

3.2.1.  Investigation.  Initiation and/or conduct of investigative activities
relating to a crime, reported crime or possible crime occurring on Park Property; provided,
however, that, the Prince George’s County Police shall be and remain the agency of principal
responsibility for investigative activities relating to any human death occurring or discovered on
Park Property.  With respect to those events investigated by the Park Police, the Park Police
shall be solely responsible for the collection and preservation of evidence/property recovered
during the course of their investigations.

3.2.2.  Warrants.  The execution on Park Property of search or arrest
warrants relating to any crime, reported crime or possible crime investigated by the Park Police.

3.2.3.  Crowd Control.  The planning and execution of law enforcement
measures to control crowds, demonstrations, public displays, and similar scheduled and
unscheduled congregations which may occur from time to time on Park Property.

3.2.4.  Drug and Alcohol Crime. The investigation and enforcement of
any violation occurring on Park Property of laws relating to the possession, use and/or
distribution of narcotics, and similar controlled dangerous substances or alcoholic beverages.

3.2.6.  Motor Vehicle Laws.  The investigation and enforcement of any
violation of the motor vehicle laws of the State of Maryland occurring on Park Property, whether
or not the violation is a crime.

3.2.7.  Enforcement of Rules and Regulations.  The investigation and
enforcement of the Park Rules and Regulations promulgated from time to time by the
Commission in accordance with the Code at Land Use Article Section 17-207.

3.3.  Certain Practices of Park Police.  For the purpose of securing the orderly
exercise of Special Patrol Areas, the Park Police agree to observe certain practices and
procedures provided as follows:

3.3.1 There is no Section 3.3.1.

3.3.2.  Communication Protocol.  Incidents observed by the Park Police
and arrests made by the Park Police in the exercise of its jurisdiction granted herein shall be
reported promptly to the Town Police by means of radio or telephone transmission.

3.3.3.  Incident Reports.  The Park Police shall file with the Town Police
a written report for any arrest or other incident reportable according to Park Police regulation or
directive, or at the special request made pursuant to Town Police.  Written incident reports
made by the Park Police for this purpose shall be provided according to any form, content, and
applicable written directives or procedures, which the Park Police may from time to time
reasonably promulgate and require.  It is understood that incident reports filed pursuant to this

117



Section 3.3.3. shall be completed as soon as practicable following the close of the reporting
officers tour of duty, but not later than 24 hours thereafter.

3.3.4.  Advance Notice of Certain Operations.  To ensure the safety of
both Town Police officers and Park Police officers, the Park Police shall provide to the Town
Police reasonable prior notice of any narcotics investigation or undercover enforcement activity
conducted in the Special Patrol Areas.  Such notice shall be furnished within four (4) hours in
advance of commencement of such activity according to such applicable written directives or
procedures as the Park Police may from time to time reasonably promulgate and require, unless
due to exigent circumstances such notice is impractical.

4. Calls for Emergency Assistance.  The Parties acknowledge that the proper and
timely routing of telephone calls for emergency service between the Town Police and Park
Police, and the notice thereof from one unto the other, is a serious matter of public service and
a possible source of citizen confusion or complaints.  Accordingly, the departments will
exercise best efforts and due care in the transaction of such calls according to the provisions of
this Article 4.

4.1.  Referral to Agency Having Principal Responsibility.  The Park Police shall
promptly refer to the Town Police any telephone call or other request for emergency service
which relates to an area other than Park Property but within the Town Limits.  The Town Police
shall promptly refer to the Park Police any telephone call or other request for emergency service
which relates to Park Property that is outside the Special Patrol Areas.  Telephone calls
referred by one agency to another shall be transacted using equipment designed to switch the
call without interruption to the person initiating the call.

4.2.  Records.  Each agency shall maintain a record of calls referred to the
other pursuant to this Article 4.  The records shall record the date, time and duration of the call,
street address or other information regarding location of the request, the nature of complaint,
complaint number (if any) and identification of personnel assigned to respond (if any) to each
call switched as provided herein.  Each agency shall furnish to the other a copy of the records
maintained upon request.

5. Cooperation; Technical Assistance; Procedures; Complaints.  It is the intent of the
Parties that the Town Police and Park Police shall share liberally their technical expertise,
equipment, and human resources to prevent and reduce crime throughout the County Limits
and to deliver efficient, coordinated police services to the citizens of Prince George=s County,
and particularly the residents of the Town, including without limitation any available camera
feeds or footage taken within the Special Patrol Areas.  Each Party signatory hereto, and their
respective police agencies and employees, covenants that it shall in all events cooperate using
best efforts to comply with any reasonable request made by the other. Each police agency shall
promulgate reasonable rules, regulations and directives for the purpose of ensuring uniform
compliance with the requirements set forth in this Agreement.  Complaints alleging any incident
of non-compliance shall be made in writing addressed to the chief of agency to which such
complaint relates.  Upon receipt, the chief shall conduct promptly a reasonable investigation of
each complaint and shall in due course report in writing to the complainant whether such
complaint is founded or not.  On an annual basis beginning with the first anniversary of the

118



effective date of this Agreement, the status of each complaint of non-compliance shall be
reported to the Town and Commission, respectively.

119



6. Statutory Indemnity.  The parties do mutually covenant and agree to waive all
claims and indemnify the other according to the terms and requirements set forth in the Code at
Section 2-105 (e)(2) of the Criminal Procedure Article, which terms and requirements, as
amended from time to time, shall be deemed incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in
their entirety.

7. Integration.

7.1.  Prior Agreement of the Parties.  This Agreement (including the Exhibits
and Schedules hereto) constitutes and contains the entire, integrated agreement of the Parties
with respect to the subject matter hereof, and shall supersede any and all prior negotiations,
correspondence, understandings and agreements between the parties, respecting the subject
matter hereof.

7.2.  Other Agencies of Law Enforcement.  Anything provided in this Agreement
to the contrary notwithstanding, it is understood that the Parties may from time to time, under
the authority provided under the Code at Section 2-105 of the Criminal Procedure Article, enter
into agreements of reciprocal enforcement and mutual aid respecting other law enforcement
agencies.  In the event any provision contained in this Agreement conflicts with any other such
enforcement and aid agreement, the terms of the other such agreement shall be deemed to
control.

8. Term.  This Agreement shall be deemed effective at 12:01 AM on the date first
written above and shall continue in full force and effect until such time as it is terminated by
either the Town or the Commission upon thirty (30) days written notice.

9. Miscellaneous.

9.1.  Notices.  Except as otherwise expressly provided by this Agreement, Any
any written notices, requests, demands, consents, and other communications which are
required or may be given under this Agreement shall be given as follows:

If to the Town:
Daniel R. Baden
Clerk-Treasurer
Mayor and Town Council of Colmar Manor
3710 Lawrence Street
Colmar Manor, Maryland 20722

With a copy to: 

John R. Barr, Esq. 

3480 Chiswick Court 

Silver Spring, Maryland 20906 

120



If to the Town Police:

Chief William Lowry
Colmar Manor Police Department
3710 Lawrence Street
Colmar Manor, Maryland 20722

If to the Commission:

Executive Director
Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission
6611 Kenilworth Avenue, Suite 403
Riverdale, Maryland 20737

If to the Park Police:

Chief Stanley R. Johnson
Maryland-National Capital Park Police
8100 Corporate Drive
Landover, Maryland 20785

9.2.  Severability.  Any provision of this Agreement which is held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be prohibited or unenforceable shall be ineffective to the extent of such
prohibition or unenforceability, without invalidating or rendering unenforceable the remaining
provisions of this Agreement.

9.3.  Amendment; Waiver. No provision of this Agreement may be amended,
waived, or otherwise modified without the prior written consent of all of the parties hereto.

9.4.  Section Headings. The section and other headings contained in this
Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of
this Agreement.

9.5.  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which together shall be
deemed to be one and the same instrument.

9.6.  Applicable Law.  This Agreement was made in the State of Maryland, and
shall be governed by, construed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the
State of Maryland.

9.7.  Use of Genders. Whenever used in this Agreement, the singular shall
include the plural and vice versa, and the use of any gender shall include all genders and the
neuter.

10. Colmar Manor and Cottage City Memoranda of Understanding Regarding
Integrated Police Command and Other Functions.

121



The Commission is on notice and understands and agrees that pursuant to various
memoranda of understanding the Town Police and the police department of the Town of
Cottage City (“Cottage City”) are led, supervised and managed by a single police chief.  The
present police chief of police for both jurisdictions is William Lowry.  Further the Commission
understands and acknowledges that police officers of the Town and Cottage City are regularly
assigned to undertake patrol, response and other police functions within the Town and Cottage
City.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed and acknowledged this Agreement as of
the day and year first written above.

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL
PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION

Mayor and Town Council of Colmar
Manor

By: ____________________________
Patricia Barney
Executive Director

By: ____________________________
William Lowry, Chief of Police

By: ____________________________
Elizabeth M. Hewlett
Chairman

ATTEST:

_______________________________
Joseph Zimmerman
Secretary-Treasurer

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency:

__________________________________
General Counsel
Maryland-National Capital Park and
Planning Commission

122



Item 6g

123



124



125



Item 6g attachment

MN 
I THE M�RYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

pp 
6611 Kenilworth Avenue • Riverdale, Maryland 20737

'IC 

M-NCPPC
Resolution 18-21

AMENDMENTS TO MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL 
PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

PLANS B & E SURVIVING SPOUSE BENEFITS 

WHEREAS, the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission Employees' 
Retirement System (ERS) was established effective July 1, 1972 and amended from time to time; 
and 

WHEREAS, the ERS currently consists of five (5) plans, Plans A, B, C, D and E; and 

WHEREAS, Section 3 of the Plan Document reserves the right of the Maryland-National 
Capital Park and Planning Commission {Commission), as plan sponsor, to amend any or al� of 
the provisions of the Plans from time to time, provided that, no amendments shall adversely 
affect benefits that have accrued prior to the effective date of any such amendments; and 

WHEREAS, Commission and ERS staff have identified inequities between the surviving 
spouse death benefit for retirement-eligible active employees as compared to the surviving 
spouse benefits for retirees; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission desires to make changes to Plans B & E to resolve 
inequities in the Plans B and E non-service related death benefit for an active employee•s 
surviving spouse. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Maryland-National Capital Park and 
Planning Commission does hereby modify spousal benefits for non-represented existing and new 
employees in Plans B and E as follows: 

• Existing Employees
o Non-vested - Choice of lifetime annuity equal to 25% of final annual base pay, or

a lump sum of 50% of average annual earnings plus contributions and interest;
o Vested- Choice of lifetime annuity equal to 25% of final annual base pay, or

benefit paid had the deceased retired and selected a 100% J&S;

o Eligible for early or normal retirement - Choice of lifetime annuity equal to 25%
of final annual base pay, or benefit paid had the deceased retired and selected a
100%J&S.

126



127



Item 6h

128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



Item 6i

143



144



145



146



147



AUDIT COMMITTEE ACTIVITY REPORT

FY2018 (July 1, 2017 – June 30, 2018)

Prepared by the Audit Committee for the Commission Chair and Vice-Chair, and
Submission to the Full Commission

Report Date:  September 26, 2018

Audit Committee Members (FY18):

Norman Dreyfuss, Audit Committee Chair, Montgomery County Planning Board
Dorothy Bailey, Prince George’s County Planning Board 
Karen Tobat, Public Member, Montgomery County
Benjamin Williams, Public Member, Prince George’s County

Item 6j

148



INTRODUCTION

The Audit Committee (AC or Committee) operates independently from the management
of the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission (M-NCPPC or
Commission).  The AC serves as a forum, in which auditors and other interested parties
may identify and discuss concerns related to financial reporting and internal controls.

The Annotated Code of Maryland, Land Use Article, Subtitle 4 Audit Committee, §15-401-
§15-405, governs the establishment and function of the Audit Committee (e.g.
membership, terms, qualifications, and powers).  The new regulations went into effect
October 1, 2017.

The new regulations require four (4) voting AC members and one (1) nonvoting member.
At the November 2017 AC meeting, Commissioner Norman Dreyfuss (Montgomery
County) was appointed Audit Committee Chair. Other Committee members include
Commissioner Dorothy Bailey (Prince George’s County), Ms. Karen Tobat, public 
member representing Montgomery County, and Mr. Benjamin Williams, public member
representing Prince George’s County. The Commission Chair serves as the nonvoting
member.

The new regulations also required the establishment of an Office of the Inspector General
(OIG) within the Commission (Subtitle 5 Office of the Inspector General, §15-501-§15-
508).  The regulations strengthened the OIG’s independence by shifting the reporting
relationship of the Inspector General from the Commission’s Chair and Vice Chair to the 
Audit Committee.

Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission (M-NCPPC) Practice No. 1-
31, Organization and Functions of the Audit Committee, provides additional guidance on
the Committee’s requirements.  The Practice requires the AC to submit the following
annual reports:

• A written report that addresses how the Committee discharged its duties and met
its responsibilities.

• A summary of significant audit findings as prepared by the Inspector General.
• Evaluation of the adequacy of internal controls; the agency’s adherence to financial

regulations/policies; and any other significant concerns/complaints that were filed
with or identified by the Audit Committee.

149



DISCHARGE OF DUTIES

Audit Committee Meetings and Communications

The Audit Committee (AC) is required to hold at least four meetings during each year to
discuss proposed audits and investigations.  For FY18, the AC met five (5) times:

• September 20, 2017 – Montgomery Regional Office, AC general meeting and
annual report presentation

• November 28, 2017 – Conference Call, AC general meeting
• December 20, 2017 – Montgomery Regional Office, AC general meeting and

meeting with external auditor
• March 6, 2018 – Conference Call, AC general meeting
• June 12, 2018 – Conference Call, AC general meeting

Inspector General

The Audit Committee must select and appoint the Inspector General.  The AC appointed
Ms. Renee Kenney, Inspector General on December 20, 2017 for a four (4) year term.
Commission, Merit System employees within the Office of Internal Audit transferred to the
Office of the Inspector General.

Review and Approval of Internal Audit Plan – On June 21, 2017, the AC formally approved
the FY18 Audit Plan submitted by Ms. Kenney1.   The results of the Commission wide risk
assessment/interviews were used to develop the plan.

External Auditors

The Audit Committee is responsible for appointment, compensation, retention, and
oversight of the work of any external auditor engaged for the purpose of performing
independent audit services, reviews or attest services.

• Each fiscal year, the Office of the Secretary-Treasurer submits a Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR), in accordance with the Land Use Article of the
Annotated Code of Maryland.  In conjunction with the CAFR, State statute requires an
annual audit by independent certified public accountants.  The Commission selected
the accounting firm of SB & Company to complete the FY18 external review (year
three (3) of a five (5) year contract). The following meetings were held with the external
auditors:

o June 21, 2017 –  Reviewed scope and objective of FY17 Audit
o December 20, 2017 -  Reviewed results of the FY17 Audit
o July 18, 2018 – Reviewed scope and objective of the FY18 Audit

1 On June 12, 2018, the AC formally approved by FY19 Audit Plan. 

150



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AUDIT FINDINGS

The Inspector General submitted the Office of the Inspector General’s (OIG’s) Fiscal Year
2018 Annual Report to the Audit Committee on July 13, 2018.  Per the report:

For FY18, seven (7) audit reports included a major audit concern.  If the overall control
environment for the unit or process being audited requires management’s immediate 
attention, details of the deficiencies are included in the “Major Audit Concerns” section 
of the report.

The audit reports with major audit concerns included:

1) Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance -Title II – Data Storage
2) Commission Energy Management/Utilities
3) Rock Creek Maintenance Facility
4) Montgomery County Park Police – Timekeeping Procedures
5) Montgomery County Park Police – Officer Issued Equipment
6)  – Timekeeping Procedures
7) Office Service Unit – Print Shop

For FY18, the OIG identified 39 high-risk audit findings.  The OIG relies on the auditor’s 
professional judgment when assigning risk ratings (high, medium, or low) to individual
audit findings.  A high-risk rating indicates a deficiency in the design or operation of an
internal control procedure(s) that could adversely affect an operating unit’s ability to 
safeguard assets, comply with laws and regulations, and ensure transactions are
properly executed and recorded on a timely basis.

The following high-risk audit findings appear to be pervasive throughout the
Commission:

• Lack of managerial oversight (timekeeping); and
• Inaccurate time cards.

Exhibit A includes a summary of the major audit concerns and high-risk audit findings.

151



FRAUD, WASTE, AND ABUSE (FWA) REVIEWS

In cases where fraud, waste, or abuse is suspected, the Office of the Inspector General
has responsibility to investigate the matter in accordance with Commission Practice 3-31,
Fraud, Waste, & Abuse.    FY18, the OIG completed 11 FWA investigations.  Five (5) of
the investigations resulted in a conclusion of fraud, waste, or abuse.  A summary of the
five investigations is provided below:

• Rock Creek Maintenance Facility – CIP Project -  Lack of managerial oversight.

• Montgomery County Park Police - Timekeeping Procedures – We identified
pervasive issues with timekeeping procedures within the Montgomery County Park
Police Department

• Center – Theft of Customer Payments – An intermittent
center employee misappropriated $91.00 of fee income (customer payments).

• Department – Timekeeping Fraud -  A merit system
employee falsified his/her time card, failed to record approved leave and realized
a personal gain of $3,114.80 in unearned wages.

• Community Center – Personal use of Commission Property -  A manager
was storing personal items in a Commission owned storage unit (shed).  In
addition, the manager abused his/her authority by asking a subordinate to
accommodate his/her request.

152



EFFECTIVENESS OF THE INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES

Per the OIG’s Fiscal Year 2018 Annual Report to the Audit Committee:

It is the opinion of the Inspector General that the internal control systems and processes
for the Commission’s fiscal, operational, and information technology (IT) activities and 
applications/systems are adequate, but there are areas for improvement in processing
HR personnel action forms, departmental competitive bids, IT governance, and
construction project management/change orders.

The OIG will be completing the following audits and advisory reviews in FY19 to
address the areas identified for improvement.

1) Assessment of purchasing governance.  The OIG to compare current reporting
structures against documented best practices to ensure purchasing
professionals involved in competitive proposals (RFPs) are independent and
adequately trained.

2) Assessment of total IT spend.

3) Lawson ERP:
o Lawson v10 Upgrade Go-Live Readiness Assessment; and
o Lawson v10 Deliverables – to include an assessment of department

business needs.

4) Commission Change Order procedures.

5) Follow up on the Department of Parks and Recreation, CIP audit report issued
by the Office of Legislative Audits.

153



OTHER CONCERNS AND COMPLAINTS

As part of our reporting requirements, the AC is required to advise the Commission Chair
and Vice-Chair of any Committee concerns arising from any audit/investigation reports.
No additional concerns were raised in FY18.

CONCLUSION

The Audit Committee once again recognizes continued compliance with existing policies
and timely corrective action by management in response to the audit findings.    The AC
would like to thank the Commission’s Chair, Vice-Chair, Commissioners, management,
staff, and the Office of the Inspector General for their continued efforts to strengthen
public accountability and to improve the effectiveness, productivity, and efficiency of
Commission operations.

Finally, the AC would also like to thank Ms. Karen Tobat for her three (3) years of
volunteer service on the Audit Committee, as she completes her term as public member
representing Montgomery County at the end of this month.

154



Audit Reports with Major Audit Concerns

ADA Compliance (PGC-013-2018)
Major Audit Concern - The Prince George’s County Department of Parks and
Recreation’s ADA compliance data storage (i.e., ADA barrier identification, evaluation and
removal) is decentralized across multiple databases and maintained by various owners.
Compliance  is compromised due to potential risks of inaccurate, incomplete
and insecure data. Decentralized data storage has contributed to difficulties and
inefficiencies by impeding direct access to data required for preparing the Transition Plan
(the Plan) mandated by the Department of Justice (DOJ).

4 High-risk audit recommendations:

i. Transfer ADA Compliance Data to a Central Database
ii. Formally Designate a Central ADA Coordinator
iii. Enhance Website Accessibility Compliance
iv. Develop Capability for Amenities Accessibility Search

Commission Energy Management/Utilities (CW-006-2018)

Major audit concern -  Utility invoice data is not reviewed, monitored and analyzed
consistently to identify performance trends, patterns or anomalies, which may indicate
problems with utility usage and invoice billing errors for facilities and functional areas.
Currently, the review of utility invoice data is performed on an ad hoc basis, mainly to
address distinctive problems identified in a particular facility. In addition, no central
employee or team is formally assigned the role of leading and coordinating utility invoice
data review, monitoring and analysis.

2 High-risk audit recommendations:

i. Develop Formal Assessment Plan for Utility Invoice Data
ii. Appoint Coordinators to Administer the Assessment Plan

Rock Creek Maintenance Facility (MC-002-2018)

The Construction Contractor Limited
information available .

155



MC Park Police Timekeeping Procedures (MC-003-2018)

Major audit concern(s) - Park Police  a culture that fostered 
fraud, waste, and abuse. The OIG reasonably concluded, :

• instructed  to record straight 8’s on their time cards, regardless of 
hours worked;

• failed to provide reasonable oversight to ensure personnel completed required job
duties; and

• approved falsified time cards.

In addition, the OIG identified inaccurate reporting of time worked including:

• falsified time cards;
• inconsistent in-service requirements;
• extended meal breaks; and
• extended workouts.

5 High-risk audit recommendations:

i. Mandate Ethics and Timekeeping Training
ii. Ensure Proper Use of motor data terminals (MDT)
iii. Standardize In-Service Requirements
iv. Strengthen Procedures for the Assignment and Approval of Overtime
v. Ensure Proper Completion of Time Cards

MC Park Police – Officer Issued Equipment (MC-007-2018)

Major audit concern(s) – Current procedures and controls do not provide adequate
assurance that

Current procedures and controls do not provide adequate assurance that all
issued equipment is returned upon Sworn Officer’s separation from the Commission.

3 High Risk Audit Recommendations:

i. Strengthen Controls over the Processes
ii. Improve Administrative Processes for the Tracking of Police-Issued Equipment
iii. Include Final Release with Separation Documents

156



Timekeeping (PGC-006-2018)

Major audit concern – Inadequate oversight over Commission timekeeping and recording
functions.

1 High-risk audit recommendation:

i. Strength Managerial Oversight for Timekeeping and Recording Functions

Office Services Unit – Print Shop (PGC-009-2018)

Major audit concern -  Current operating procedures preclude management and/or the
Office of the Inspector General (OIG) from identifying possible instances of fraud, waste,
or abuse.  There are no internal procedures in place defining who can submit print shop
requests; current customers include DPR personnel, other Commission departments, and
external organizations.  In addition, Print Shop personnel are unable to reconcile the
number of actual copies to specific job requests.

2 High-risk audit recommendations:

i. Obtain Management Approval for Job Requests
ii. Develop Guidelines for Non-Commission Print Jobs

Audit Reports with High Risk Audit Recommendations

M-NCPPC Vehicle Use Program (CW-002-2018)

4 High-risk audit recommendations:

i. Oversee the Creation of a Commission-wide Task Force to Review Practice 6-10
(CAS)

ii. Ensure Overnight Parking Corresponds to Employee Place of Work (PGC Parks)
iii. Review Vehicle Assignment Forms for Accuracy and Reasonableness (PGC

Parks)
iv. Maintain Vehicle Assignment Forms/Ensure Overnight Parking Corresponds to

Employees Place of Work (MC Planning)

Community Center Time Card Fraud (PGC-003-2018)

1 High-risk audit recommendation:

i. Maintain Current Employee Work Schedules

157



Center – Customer Payments (PGC-005-2018)

2 High-risk audit recommendations:

i. Secure Manual Cash Receipt Book
ii. Strengthen Administrative Oversight and Controls over Class Rosters and

Enrollment

Community Center (PGC-008-2018)

1 High-risk audit recommendation:

i. Enhance Security Camera Coverage

Parks Direct – Post Implementation Review (PGC-010-2018)

1 High-risk audit recommendation:

i. Establish detailed test plans and complete testing of all system components prior
to go-live for future projects

Area Operations - Timekeeping (PGC-12-2018)
1 High-risk audit recommendations:

i. Strengthen Managerial Oversight – Time Card Approvals

Enterprise IT Change Management (CW-011-2018)
1 High-risk audit recommendation:

i. Establish and implement a Commission-wide IT change management policy

South Bowie Petty Cash Audit (PGC-013-2018)
2 High-risk audit recommendations:

i. Strengthen Administrative Oversight of Petty Cash Replenishments
ii. Strengthen Managerial Oversight for Programs and Activities

Assessment and Implementation of Disciplinary Actions (CW-005-2018)

4 High-risk audit recommendations

i. Implement Labor Soft
ii. Ensure Completeness of Official Personnel Files
iii. Strengthen Managerial Review of Official Disciplinary Action Documentation

158



iv. Assess Time Between the Issuance of the Intent to Terminate Letter and the
Subsequent Disciplinary Action

Show Place Arena/Equestrian Center Audit (PGC-013-2018)
1 High-risk audit recommendations:

i. Improve Monthly Cash Reconciliation Procedures

159



Item 6k

160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



Item 6l

175



176



177



178



179



This page intentionally left blank.   

180



 T
HE

 M
AR

YL
AN

D-
N

AT
IO

N
AL

 C
AP

IT
AL

 P
AR

K 
AN

D 
PL

AN
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 E
M

PL
O

YE
E 

PE
RF

O
RM

AN
CE

 E
VA

LU
AT

IO
N

S 
N

O
T 

CO
M

PL
ET

ED
 B

Y 
DU

E 
DA

TE
BY

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T 

AS
 O

F 
JU

LY
 2

01
8

31
 - 

60
 D

AY
S

 6
1 

- 9
0 

 D
AY

S
91

 +
 D

AY
S

   
   

   
DE

PA
RT

M
EN

T 
TO

TA
LS

Ju
n-

18
Ju

l-1
8

Ju
n-

18
Ju

l-1
8

Ju
n-

18
Ju

l-1
8

Ju
n-

18
Ju

l-1
8

CH
AI

RM
AN

, M
O

N
TG

O
M

ER
Y 

CO
U

N
TY

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

CH
AR

IM
AN

, P
RI

N
CE

 G
EO

RG
E'

S 
CO

U
N

TY
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

O
FF

IC
E 

O
F 

CI
O

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
1

O
FF

IC
E 

O
F 

IN
SP

EC
TO

R 
GE

N
ER

AL
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

EX
EC

U
TI

VE
 C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E/

CH
AI

RS
0

0
0

0
1

0
1

0

DE
PT

. O
F 

HU
M

AN
 R

ES
O

U
RC

ES
 &

 M
GT

.
4

1
0

0
0

0
4

1

LE
GA

L 
DE

PA
RT

M
EN

T
1

1
3

2
0

1
5

4

FI
N

AN
CE

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T

1
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

PR
IN

CE
 G

EO
RG

E'
S 

PL
AN

N
IN

G
0

2
1

0
0

0
1

2

PR
IN

CE
 G

EO
RG

E'
S 

PA
RK

S 
&

 R
EC

RE
AT

IO
N

16
12

5
2

0
0

21
14

M
O

N
TG

O
M

ER
Y 

CO
U

N
TY

 P
AR

KS
5

0
0

0
1

1
5

1

M
O

N
TG

O
M

ER
Y 

CO
U

N
TY

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

4
1

2
2

1
1

7
4

**
DE

PA
RT

M
EN

T 
TO

TA
L 

BY
 D

AY
S 

LA
TE

**
31

18
11

6
3

3

CO
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
-W

ID
E 

TO
TA

L
45

27

**
DE

PA
RT

M
EN

TS
 W

IT
H 

RA
TI

N
GS

 M
O

RE
 T

HA
N

 6
0 

DA
YS

 L
AT

E 
HA

VE
 B

EE
N

 C
O

N
TA

CT
ED

.

Item 7a

181



 T
HE

 M
AR

YL
AN

D-
N

AT
IO

N
AL

 C
AP

IT
AL

 P
AR

K 
AN

D 
PL

AN
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 E
M

PL
O

YE
E 

PE
RF

O
RM

AN
CE

 E
VA

LU
AT

IO
N

S 
N

O
T 

CO
M

PL
ET

ED
 B

Y 
DU

E 
DA

TE
BY

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T 

AS
 O

F 
AU

G
U

ST
 2

01
8

31
 - 

60
 D

AY
S

 6
1 

- 9
0 

 D
AY

S
91

 +
 D

AY
S

   
   

   
DE

PA
RT

M
EN

T 
TO

TA
LS

Ju
l-1

8
Au

g-
18

Ju
l-1

8
Au

g-
18

Ju
l-1

8
Au

g-
18

Ju
l-1

8
Au

g-
18

CH
AI

RM
AN

, M
O

N
TG

O
M

ER
Y 

CO
U

N
TY

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

CH
AR

IM
AN

, P
RI

N
CE

 G
EO

RG
E'

S 
CO

U
N

TY
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

O
FF

IC
E 

O
F 

CI
O

1
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

O
FF

IC
E 

O
F 

IN
SP

EC
TO

R 
GE

N
ER

AL
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

EX
EC

U
TI

VE
 C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E/

CH
AI

RS
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

DE
PT

. O
F 

HU
M

AN
 R

ES
O

U
RC

ES
 &

 M
GT

.
1

4
0

0
0

0
1

4

LE
GA

L 
DE

PA
RT

M
EN

T
1

1
2

0
1

1
4

2

FI
N

AN
CE

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T

0
2

0
0

0
0

0
2

PR
IN

CE
 G

EO
RG

E'
S 

PL
AN

N
IN

G
2

4
0

2
0

0
2

6

PR
IN

CE
 G

EO
RG

E'
S 

PA
RK

S 
&

 R
EC

RE
AT

IO
N

12
11

2
2

0
0

14
13

M
O

N
TG

O
M

ER
Y 

CO
U

N
TY

 P
AR

KS
0

7
0

0
1

1
1

8

M
O

N
TG

O
M

ER
Y 

CO
U

N
TY

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

1
2

2
1

1
0

4
3

**
DE

PA
RT

M
EN

T 
TO

TA
L 

BY
 D

AY
S 

LA
TE

**
18

31
6

5
3

2

CO
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
-W

ID
E 

TO
TA

L
27

38

**
DE

PA
RT

M
EN

TS
 W

IT
H 

RA
TI

N
GS

 M
O

RE
 T

HA
N

 6
0 

DA
YS

 L
AT

E 
HA

VE
 B

EE
N

 C
O

N
TA

CT
ED

.

182



Item 7b

183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



MEMORANDUM 

TO: The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 

FROM: Adrian R. Gardner 

General Counsel 

RE: Litigation Report for July 2018 – end of FY 2018 

Please find the attached litigation report we have prepared for your meeting scheduled on 

Wednesday, September 19, 2018.  As always, please do not hesitate to call me in advance 

if you would like me to provide a substantive briefing on any of the cases reported.   

Table of Contents – July 2018 – End of FY 2018 Report 

Composition of Pending Litigation ........................................................................... Page 01 

Overview of Pending Litigation (Chart) ................................................................... Page 01 

Litigation Activity Summary .................................................................................... Page 02 

Index of New YTD Cases (FY18)  ........................................................................... Page 03 

Index of Resolved YTD Cases (FY18)  .................................................................... Page 04 

Disposition of FY18 Closed Cases Sorted by Department  ...................................... Page 05 

Index of Reported Cases Sorted by Jurisdiction ....................................................... Page 09 

Litigation Report Ordered by Court Jurisdiction ...................................................... Page 10 

Item 7c

208



July 2018 

 Composition of Pending Litigation 

End of FY 2018 

(Sorted By Subject Matter and Forum)

State Trial
Court

Federal
Trial
Court

Maryland
COSA

Maryland
Court of
Appeals

Federal
Appeals

Court

U.S.
Supreme

Court
Subject Matter

Totals

Admin Appeal:
Land Use 2 2

Admin Appeal:
Other -

Land Use
Dispute 1 1

Tort Claim 6 6
Employment
Dispute 1 1

Contract Dispute 4 2 6
Property Dispute 2 2
Civil
Enforcement -

Workers’ 
Compensation 2 2

Debt Collection -
Bankruptcy -
Miscellaneous 1 2 1 4
Per Forum Totals 13 - 9 - 1 1 25

LAND USE
11%

EMPLOYMENT
4%

TORT CLAIMS
23%

WORKERS' 
COMPENSATION

8%

OTHER
54%

OVERVIEW OF PENDING LITIGATION

By Major Case Categories

209



July 2018 Litigation  

End of FY 2018 

Activity Summary 

 
 COUNT FOR MONTH COUNT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018 

Pending 
In June 

2018  
New 

Cases 
Resolved 

Cases 
Pending 

Prior 
F/Y 

New 
Cases 

F/YTD** 

Resolved 
Cases 

F/YTD** 

Pending 
Current 
Month 

Admin Appeal: 
Land Use (AALU) 2   4  3 2 

Admin Appeal: 
Other (AAO) 0   0   0 

Land Use 
Disputes (LD) 1   1 1 1 1 

 
Tort Claims (T) 6 2 2 6 10 10 6 

Employment 
Disputes (ED) 1   1 3 4 1 

Contract Disputes 
(CD) 5 1  2 6 2 6 

Property Disputes 
(PD) 2   1 2  2 

Civil Enforcement 
(CE) 0   0   0 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

(WC) 
2   2 3 3 2 

Debt Collection 
(D) 0   0   0 

 
Bankruptcy (B) 0   0   0 

 
Miscellaneous (M) 4   5 2 5 4 

 
Totals 23 3 2 22        27 28 24 

 
 
 
 
 

    

 

 

 

 

210



 

 

 

INDEX OF YTD NEW CASES 

(7/1/2017 TO 6/30/18) 

 

 

A.  New Trial Court Cases.   Unit  Subject Matter  Month  
       
Moore v. Thompson, et al    PG  Tort   July 17  
Evans v. Commission    MC  Tort   Aug 17 
Gregg v. Commission    PG  ED   Sept 17 
Commission v. McCoy    PG  CD   Oct 17 
Commission v. Clean Air Mechanical, Inc., et al PG  CD   Oct 17 
Bundu v. Bowman    PG  Tort   Oct 17 
Chick v. Commission    PG  ED   Dec 17 
Adesakin v. Commission    PG  Tort   Jan 18 
Diggs v. Robinson, et al    PG  Tort   Jan 18 
Commission v. Ferrante    PG  WC   April 18 
Ross v. Commission    PG  WC   April 18 
Rivers v. Fitts     PG  Tort   April 18 
Global LifeSci Dev. Corp. v. Montgomery Cnty. et al. MC  Misc.   April 18 
Melara, et al. v. Evans    MC  Tort   May 18 
Arnold v. Napier     PG  Tort   May 18 
Commission v. D.L. Boyd    PG  CD   June 18 
Gutierrez v. Commission    PG  Tort   June 18 
 
B.  New Appellate Court Cases.  Unit  Subject Matter  Month 
 
URS v. Commission    MC  CD   April 17 
Rounds v. Commission     MC  PD   Sept 17  
Rounds v. Commission    MC  PD   Oct 17 
Fort Myers Construction Corp. v. Commission MC  CD   Nov 17 
Pulte Home Corp. v. Montgomery County, et al MC  LD   Nov 17 
Burnette v. Commission    PG  ED   Jan 18 
Pletsch v. Commission    PG  AALU   Feb 18 
Price, et al. v. Commission    PG  Misc.   Feb 18 
The Town of Forest Heights   PG  Misc.   Feb 18 
 
C.  New Supreme Court of the U.S. Cases.  Unit  Subject Matter  Month 
 
Commission v. American Humanists Ass., et al. PG  Misc.   April 18 

  

211



INDEX OF YTD RESOLVED CASES 

(7/1/2017 TO 6/30/18) 

  
C.  Trial Court Cases Resolved.                        Unit                  Subject Matter   Month 
 
 
Parker v. Commission    PG  WCC   July 2017 
Commission v. Pollard    MC  WCC   Sept 2017 
Pulte Home Corp., et al v. Mont. County, et al MC  LD   Sept 2017 
Green v. Commission    PG  Tort   Oct 2017 
Swain v. Seay, et al    PG  Misc.   Oct 2017 
Shipe v. Louketis, et al    MC  Tort   Nov 2017 
Tugwell v. Louketis, et al    MC  Tort   Nov 2017 
Fort Myer Construction Corp v. Commission  MC  CD   Nov 2017 
Rounds v. Commission, et al   MC  Tort   Nov 2017 
Gregg v. Commission    PG  ED   Dec 2017  
Moore v. Thompson, et al    PG  Tort   Dec 2017 
Grier, et al v. Commission    PG  AALU   Dec 2017 
Burnette v. Commission    PG  ED   Feb 2018 
Commission v. Clean Air Mechanical, Inc. et al MC  CD   Feb 2018 
Pletsch v. Commission    PG  AALU   Feb 2018 
Price, et al. v. Prince George’s County, et al.  PG  Misc.   Feb 2018 
Commission v. The Town of Forest Heights  PG  Misc.   Feb 2018 
Adesakin v. Commission    PG  Tort   Mar 2018 
Membrano v. Johns PG Tort   Mar 2018 
Commission v. Carillo-Cruz MC WC   Mar 2018 
Chick v. Commission PG ED   Apr 2018 
Milam v. Doe and Commission PG Tort   Apr 2018 
O’Brien v. Sports & Learning Complex                         PG Tort   May 2018 
Evans v. Commission, et al. MC Tort   May 2018 
 
D.  Appellate Court Cases Resolved. 
 
Cohhn v. Commission    MC  Misc.   Nov 2017 
Friends of Croom Civic Assoc., et al v. Commission PG  AALU   Nov 2017  
American Humanist Association v. Commission PG  Misc.   Mar 2018 
  

212



Disposition of FY18 Closed Cases Sorted by Department 
CLIENT PRINCIPAL CAUSE OF ACTION IN DISPUTE DISPOSITION 

 
Employees Retirement System   
   
Finance Department   
Price, et al. v. Commission Plaintiffs file lawsuit for injunctive relief questioning 

validity of certain personal tax enactments involving 
the Commission and Prince George’s County. 

1/23/18 -  Court grants 
Commission’s Motion to 
Dismiss Amended Complaint 
and alternatively entered 
judgment in favor of the 
Commission 

Department of Human Resources & Management   
   
Montgomery County Department of Planning    

Rounds v. Commission, et al Defense of claim for alleged slander of title regarding 
Farm Road easement. 
 

08/25/17- Court grants 
Commission’s Motion to 
Dismiss 

Montgomery County Department of Parks    
Cohhn v. Commission Plaintiff appealed Circuit Court ruling granting the 

judgment in favor of the Commission and denying 
Plaintiff’s request to restrain Commission’s Archery 
Managed Deer Hunting Program in Montgomery 
County. 

10/18/17- Court affirms 
decision of lower court that 
granted summary judgment in 
favor of Commission’s 
authorization of bow hunting on 
its properties 

Commission v. Carillo-Cruz  Commission files petition for de novo review based 
on WCC’s ruling that a compensable accident 
occurred on the grounds that driving a vehicle 
carries an increased risk of injury, without making a 
ruling on whether Claimant suffered an idiopathic 
condition. 
 

03/02/18 – Appeal dismissed 
and remanded to WCC for 
approval of settlement 
agreement between parties. 

213



Commission v. Clean Air Mechanical Inc., et al Commission files complaint for breach of contract, 
fraud and misrepresentation arising out of purchase 
order for installation of three DDU units at Cabin 
John and Wheaton Ice rinks. 

12/28/17-Court orders venue of 
case to be changed to Prince 
George’s County 

Fort Myer Construction Corporation v. Commission Plaintiff filed complaint for alleged delays and 
damages associated with the erection of a steel 
girder pedestrian bridge in Montgomery County 

10/10/17- Court grants 
Commissions’ Motion to 
Dismiss, case dismissed with 
prejudice 

Montgomery County Park Police  
 
 

  
Evans v. Commission, et al. Defens of claim for personal injury following an 

automobile accident. 
05/24/18 Case Consolidated 
with Case No. 439733-V, 
Melara, et al. v. Evans 

Shipe v. Louketis, et al Defense of claim for assault & battery, intentional 
infliction of emotional distress, negligence, negligent 
hiring. 

10/06/17 Voluntary dismissal in 
entirety with prejudice 

Tugwell v. Louketis, et al Defense of claim for assault & battery, intentional 
infliction of emotional distress, negligence, negligent 
hiring. 

10/06/17 Voluntary dismissal in 
entirety with prejudice 

Montgomery County Planning Board   
 

Pulte Home Corporation, et al v. Montgomery County, 
et al 
 

Plaintiff filed complaint for alleged delays and  
damages associated with the construction of a 
residential development in Clarksburg, Maryland.  
 

08/25/17- Court grants 
Defendants’ Motion for 
Judgment on Pleadings; case 
dismissed 

Prince George’s County Department of Parks and 
Recreation 

  

Adesakin v. Commission Defense of claim for property damage involving 
vehicle owned by Commission. 

03/19/18 – Case dismissed 
under Rule 3-506 

American Humanist Association, et al. v. Commission Defense of claim alleging violation of establishment 
clause of Constitution 

10/18/17 – case remanded 
back to the U.S. District Court 
holding that display and 
maintenance violates 
Establishment Clause03/01/18 
Petition for Rehearing En Banc 
denied. 3/12/18 Mandate 
Issued 

214



Commission v. Pollard  Employer is seeking de novo judicial review of the 
WCC’s decision that the Claimant had suffered a 
39% worsening of condition regarding his right hip 
since the last permanency award and found no 
cause for apportionment to preexisting conditions.  

07/28/17- Joint Motion to 
Remand to WCC 

Commission v. Town of Forest Heights Commission filed a declaratory judgment action 
against the Town of Forest Heights. 

1/13/18 – Court denies 
Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss 
and/or in the alternative, 
Motion for Summary 
Judgment; declares Sixth and 
Seventh Annexations by 
Defendant null and void and 
Defendant may not exercise 
law enforcement powers on 
Commission property. 

Green, et al v. Commission Defense of claim for personal injury involving fall by 
minor child from playground equipment at Peppermill 
Recreation Center. 

08/30/17-Case dismissed with 
prejudice 

Membrano v. Johns Defense of claim for personal injury involving vehicle 
drive by commission employee. 

03/30/18 – Case dismissed 
under Rule 3-506 

Milam v. Doe and Commission Defense of claim for personal injury involving vehicle 
owned by Commission 

4/5/18 – Judgment entered in 
favor of the plaintiff.  

Moore v. Thompson, et al Defense of claim for property damage involving 
vehicle owned by Commission. 

10/26/17-Case dismissed 
under Rule 3-506 

O’Brien v. Sports & Learning Complex Defense of claim for personal injury involving slip and 
fall at swimming pool. 

05/31/18 – Case dismissed 
with prejudice 

Parker v. Commission Claimant/employee is seeking de novo judicial 
review of the WCC’s decision denying she has an 
occupational disease. 

6/26/17-Case settled and 
remanded to WCC 

Swain v. Seay, et al Plaintiff files to foreclose a statutory attorney’s lien 
on property with a Historic Agriculture Resource 
Preservation Program Deed of Easement. 

09/01/17-Case voluntarily 
dismissed 

Prince George’s County Planning Department   
   
Prince George’s County Planning Board   

215



Friends of Croom Civic Association, et al v. 
Commission 

Defense against Administrative Appeal of decision 
by the Planning Board to approve Preliminary Plan 
4-11004 in Stephen’s Crossing at Brandywine. 

05/08/17-Court affirmed 
judgment of Circuit Court for 
Prince George’s County 
Planning Board 

Grier, et al v. Commission Defense against Administrative Appeal of decision 
by the Planning Board to approve Preliminary Plan 
of Subdivision 4-16032 in Laurelind-orinan Estate. 

11/27/17-Court affirmed 
Planning Board’s decision 

Pletsch, et al. v. Commission Defense against Administrative Appeal of decision 
by the Planning Board to approve Preliminary Plan 
of Subdivision 4-16006 Melford Village. 

01/18/18 – Court affirmed 
Planning Board’s decision 

 
 
Prince George’s Park Police 

  

Burnette v. Commission Former park police officer seeks judicial review of 
termination. 

12/26/17-Order of Court 
affirming Administrative 
Hearing Board decision 

Chick v. Commission Plaintiff filed complaint alleging breach of settlement 
agreement based on Plaintiff’s disputed 
interpretation. 

4/2/18 – Case dismissed 

Gregg v. Commission Plaintiff filed complaint for alleged race and gender 
discrimination.    

11/06/17-Case settled and 
dismissed 

Office of Internal Audit   
   

216



INDEX OF CASES 
 
DISTRICT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND ................................................... 10 
Arnold v. Napier. ......................................................................................................................................... 10 

Commission v. D. L. Boyd…………………………………………………………………………………………10 

Commission v. McCoy. ............................................................................................................................... 10 

Rivers v. Fitts .............................................................................................................................................. 11 

CIRCUIT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND ..................................................... 12 
Bundu v. Bowman. ...................................................................................................................................... 12 

Commission v. Clean Air Mechanical Inc., et al .......................................................................................... 12 

Commission v. Ferrante. ............................................................................................................................. 13 

Diggs v. Robinson, et al. ............................................................................................................................. 13 

Gutierrez v. Commission. ............................................................................................................................ 14 

Ross v. Commission. .................................................................................................................................. 14 

Sauer, Inc. v. Commission .......................................................................................................................... 15 

CIRCUIT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND ............................................................ 16 

Melara, et al. v. Evans ................................................................................................................................. 16 

Global Lifesci Development Corp. v. Montgomery County, et al. ............................................................... 16 

MARYLAND COURT OF SPECIAL APPEALS ......................................................................................... 17 

Brooks v. Commission ................................................................................................................................ 17 

Burnette v. Commission .............................................................................................................................. 17 

Fort Myer Construction Corporation v. Commission  .................................................................................. 18 

Pletsch, et al v. Commission ....................................................................................................................... 18 

Price, et al v. Prince George’s County, et al ............................................................................................... 19 

Rounds v. Montgomery County, MD, et al .................................................................................................. 19 

Rounds v. Montgomery County, MD, et al .................................................................................................. 20 

The Town of Forest Heights v. Commission  .............................................................................................. 20 

URS v. Commission .................................................................................................................................... 20 

MARYLAND COURT OF APPEALS .......................................................................................................... 21 
U.S. DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF MARYLAND ............................................................... 21 

U.S. COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE FOURTH CIRCUIT ....................................................................... 21 
Pulte Home Corporation v. Montgomery County, et al ............................................................................... 21 

SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES......................................................................................... 22 
Commission v. American Humanist Association......................................................................................... 22 

217



DISTRICT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND 
 
 

Arnold v. Napier 
Case No. 0502-0014579-2018 (Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Foster 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Defense of claim for personal injury involving vehicle owned by Commission.  
  
Status:   In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

05/09/18 Complaint filed 
06/07/18 Notice of Intent to Defend filed 
09/14/18 Trial date 

 
 

Commission v. D.L. Boyd 
Case No. 0502-0016854-2018 (CD) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Harvin 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Complaint for property damage to Commission property (mansion) 
 
Status:   In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

06/12/18 Complaint filed 
06/26/18 Defendant served 
08/16/18 Trial date 

 
 

Commission v. McCoy 
Case No. 0502-0025950-2017 (CD) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Adams 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Complaint for property damage to Commission’s golf cart. 
  
Status:   Case stayed. 
 
Docket: 

08/31/17 Complaint filed 
11/17/17 Case stayed pending settlement negotiations 

 
  
  

218



Rivers v. Fitts 
Case No. 0502-0009015-2018 (Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Harvin 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Defense of claim for personal injury involving vehicle owned by Commission.  
  
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

03/22/18 Complaint filed 
05/01/18 Answer to Complaint by Commission 
05/03/18 Trial Postponed 
09/26/18 Trial date 

 
  

219



 CIRCUIT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND 
 

Bundu v. Bowman 
Case No. CAL17-28259 (Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Adams 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Defense of claim for personal injury involving motor vehicle accident in Prince 

George’s County.  
  
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

10/12/17 Complaint filed 
11/02/17 Service of complaint on Commission 
11/17/17 Answer to Complaint filed by Commission 
03/28/18 Pretrial Conference continued 
06/01/18 Pretrial Conference cancelled 
06/04/18 Request to schedule two-day trial 
01/22/19 Trial date 

 
 

Commission v. Clean Air Mechanical Inc., et al 
Case No. CAL18-00211 (CD) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Adams  
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Commission files complaint for breach of contract, fraud and misrepresentation 

arising out of purchase order for installation of three DDU units at Cabin John 
and Wheaton Ice rinks. 

  
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

01/03/18 Case transferred to Circuit Court Prince George’s County from 
Montgomery County (438017-V) 

01/16/18 Answer to complaint and Motion to Dismiss and/or Motion for 
Summary Judgment filed by Defendants 

02/02/18 Voluntary dismissal of Hudgins and Hardesty; Opposition to 
Motion for Summary Judgment filed; Amended Complaint filed 

03/06/18 Motion to Dismiss, or in the Alternative, for Summary Judgment 
and Request for Hearing denied as Moot; matter shall continue 
in due course 

05/14/18 Pretrial conference held 
10/30/18 Alternate Dispute Resolution Conference date 
02/11/19 Trial date 

 
  

220



 
 

Commission v. Ferrante 
Case No. CAL 18-09401 (WC) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Foster 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Appeal from WCC Order requiring MNCPPC to pay indemnity benefits 

corresponding to medical treatment. 
 
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

04/17/18 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
05/07/18 Commission files response to Petition for Judicial Review 
6/19/18  Pretrial date rescheduled by consent  
6/26/18  Order of Court rescheduling Pretrial Conference 
09/19/18 Pretrial Conference 
02/20/19 Trial date 

 
 

Diggs v. Robinson, et al 
Case No. CAL17-40851(Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Harvin  
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Defense of claim for personal injury following an automobile accident.  
  
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

12/20/17 Complaint filed 
01/08/18 Defendant Robinson served via certified mail 
01/29/18 Plaintiff files Amended Complaint 
02/02/18 Answer to Complaint filed 
04/02/18 Plaintiff’s Expert Designation filed 
06/21/18 Pretrial Conference held 
01/04/19 Alternate Dispute Resolution Conference 
03/06/19 Trial date 

 
  

221



Gutierrez v. Commission 
Case No. CAL18-15226(Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Harvin  
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Defense of claim for personal injury following an automobile accident.  
  
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

05/22/18 Complaint filed 
06/15/18 Commission served 

 
 

Ross v. Commission 
Case No. CAL18-12424 (WC) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Foster 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Claimant filed for judicial review of WCC Order. 
  
Status:    Pending trial. 
 
Docket: 

04/23/18 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
05/04/18 Commission responds to Petition for Judicial Review 
05/14/18 Commission’s Cross-Petition for Judicial Review 
06/01/18 WCC Notice of Cross Appeal 
09/06/18 Pretrial Conference 
09/20/18 Motions hearing date 

 
  

222



 
Sauer, Inc. v. Commission 
Case No. CAL17-05868 (CD) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Dickerson 
Other Counsel:  Adams 
 
Abstract:  Plaintiff filed complaint for alleged delays and damages associated with the 

renovation and expansion of the Palmer Park Community Center in Prince 
George’s County.      

 
Status:   In discovery. 
Docket: 

02/28/17 Complaint filed but improperly served; awaiting proper re-
service 

06/20/17 Complaint properly served and accepted by Commission 
08/21/17 Line filed extending responsive pleadings deadline 
09/29/17 Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss filed 
11/03/17 Line filed extending Plaintiff’s deadline to respond to Motion to 

Dismiss until November 22, 2017 
11/17/17 Plaintiff files Opposition to Motion to Dismiss 
12/22/17 Court denies Motion to Dismiss 
01/02/18 Commission files Answer to Complaint 
01/26/18 Counterclaim filed 
03/05/18 Motion to Amend Scheduling Track filed 
03/19/18 Consent Motion to Extend time to respond to Counterclaim and 

other schedule modifications 
03/26/18 Court grants motion to extend time and sets new dates. 
05/09/18 Pretrial conference held 
05/17/18 Motion to Strike Demand for Jury Trial 
05/17/18  Matter changed to 5T Scheduling Track 
06/01/18 Opposition to Motion to Strike Jury Demand 
06/08/18 Motion to Dismiss filed by Commission 
06/22/18 Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to dismiss 
07/17/18 ADR conference 

 
  

223



CIRCUIT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
 
 

Melara, et al. v. Evans  
 Case No. 439733-V(Tort) 

(originally filed in District Court of Montgomery County 0601-0011991-2017) 
 

Lead Counsel:  Harvin  
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Claim for personal injury following an automobile accident.  
  
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

11/08/17 Case transferred from District Court 
04/19/18 Pretrial conference held 
05/24/18 Pre-trial/settlement conference held 
05/24/18 Case Consolidated with Case No. 439733-V 
05/25/18 Order of Consolidation – All future filings to be in this case 
06/01/18 Answer of Erie Insurance and demand for Jury trial 
11/01/18 Pre-trial Conference 
01/14/19 Trial 

 
 

Global Lifesci Development Corporation v. Montgomery County, et al. 
Case No. 444115-V (Misc.) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Foster 
Other Counsel:  Dickerson 
 
Abstract:  Declaratory Judgment, Quiet Title and Injunctive Relief. 
  
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

03/12/18 Complaint filed 
03/12/18 Motion for Summary Judgment filed 
04/27/18 Commission served 
06/07/18 Commission Answer filed 
06/07/18 M-NCPPC response to Motion for Summary Judgment filed 
06/29/18 Amended Complaint filed 
06/29/18 Motion for Summary Judgment filed 
08/28/18 Summary Judgment hearing 

 
  

224



 
MARYLAND COURT OF SPECIAL APPEALS 

 
 

Brooks v. Commission 
September Term 2016, No. 02295 (AALU) 

(Originally filed under CAE16-25941 in Prince George’s County)  
 

Lead Counsel:  Mills   
Other Counsel:  Borden 
 
Abstract: Plaintiff appealed Planning Board ruling granting the departure from design 

standards in Prince George’s County. 
  
Status:   Awaiting decision. 
 
Docket: 

01/06/17 Notice of Appeal filed 
06/30/17 Appellant’s Brief and Joint Record Extract filed 
02/18/18 Oral Argument held 

 
 

Burnette v. Commission 
September Term 2017, No.2258 (ED) 

(Originally filed under CAL16-35180 in Prince George’s County 
 
Lead Counsel:  Adams 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Former park police officer appealed Circuit Court ruling affirming Administrative 

Hearing Board decision to terminate. 
  
Status:   Appeal filed. 
 
Docket: 

01/23/18 Notice of Appeal 
05/29/18 Appellant’s Brief filed 
06/26/18 Commission filed Brief 
2/1 -12/19 Tentative Argument dates 

225



Fort Myer Construction Corporation v. Commission 
September Term 2017, No. 1684 (CD) 

(Originally filed under 399804-V in Montgomery County) 
 
Lead Counsel:  MarcusBonsib, LLC (Bruce L. Marcus)  
Other Counsel:  Dickerson 
 
Abstract:  Plaintiff appealed Circuit Court ruling granting dismissal of complaint for alleged 

delays and damages associated with the erection of a steel girder pedestrian 
bridge in Montgomery County. 

    
 
Status:    Appeal filed. 
Docket: 

10/26/17 Notice of Appeal 
11/2018 Oral Argument 

 
 

Pletsch, et al v. Commission 
September Term 2017, No. 2518 (AALU) 

(Originally filed under CAL17-12150 in Prince George’s County) 
 

Lead Counsel:  Mills  
Other Counsel:  Borden 
 
 
Abstract: Two separate appeals filed.  The Citizens filed an appeal of order affirming the 

underlying decision and resolution.  The developer filed an appeal of the denial of 
the motion to dismiss for lack of standing. The Commission did not join in the 
appeal of the denial of the motion to dismiss.  

 
Status:   Appeals filed. 
 
Docket: 

02/16/18 Notice of Appeal filed by Pletsch, et al. 

2/23/18 Notice of Appeal filed by St. John Properties, Inc. 
 

  

226



 
Price, et al v. Prince George’s County, et al 

September Term 2017, No. 2489 (Misc.) 
(Originally filed under CAE16-37806 in Prince George’s County) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Gardner 
Other Counsel:  Dickerson 
 
Abstract:  Plaintiffs below filed a lawsuit for injunctive relief questioning validity of certain 

personal tax enactments involving the Commission and Prince George’s County. 
 
Status:   Appeal filed. 
Docket: 

02/12/18 Notice of Appeal filed 
03/01/18 Court issued show cause for inquiry as to why Pre-hearing 

Information Report not filed  
03/08/18 Court accepts Pre-hearing Information Report for filing 
03/13/18 Order entered to proceed without Pre-hearing Conference 

 
 

Rounds v. Montgomery County, MD, et al 
September Term, 2016, No. 02501(PD) 

(Originally filed under #350954-V in Montgomery County) 
  

 
Lead Counsel:  Gardner  
Other Counsel:  Dickerson 
   Harvin 
 
Abstract:  Appeal from dismissal of claim for violations of the Maryland Constitution and 

declaratory relief concerning alleged Farm Road easement. 
   
Status:   Awaiting decision. 
 
Docket: 

02/03/17 Notice of Appeal filed 
01/09/18 Oral Argument held 

 
 

  

227



Rounds v. Montgomery County, MD, et al 
September Term, 2017, No.1561 (PD) 

(Originally filed under #430530-V in Montgomery County) 
  

 
Lead Counsel:  Gardner  
Other Counsel:  Dickerson 
   Harvin 
 
Abstract:  Appeal from dismissal of claim barred by res judicata concerning alleged Farm 

Road easement. 
   
Status:   Appeal filed. 
 
Docket: 

09/25/17 Notice of Appeal filed 
10/19/17 Court issued show cause for inquiry as to why Pre-hearing 

Information Report not filed  
11/15/17 Court accepts Pre-hearing Information Report for filing 

 
 

The Town of Forest Heights v. Commission 
September Term 2017, No 2538 (Misc.) 

(Originally filed under CAL 16-29110 in Prince George’s County) 
 

Lead Counsel:  Mills 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Commission below filed a declaratory judgment against the Town of Forest 

Heights. The Town appealed.  
 
Status:   Appeal filed.  
 
Docket: 

02/23/18 Notice of Appeal filed 
03/16/18 Order to Proceed w/out Pre-hearing Conference 

 
 

URS Corporation v. Commission  
September Term 2017, No. 00288 (CD) 

 
 
 

Lead Counsel:  MarcusBonsib, LLC (Bruce L. Marcus) 
Other Counsel:  Dickerson 
 
Abstract:  URS appeals the Circuit Court Decision entering judgment in favor of 

Commission as a result of URS breach of duty to defend. 
 
Status:    Awaiting Decision. 
Docket: 

04/21/17 Notice of Appeal 
03/06/18 Oral Argument held 

 

228



MARYLAND COURT OF APPEALS 
 

No Pending Cases 
 
 
 
 
 

 
U.S. DISTRICT COURT OF MARYLAND 

 
No Pending Cases 

 
 
 
 
 

U.S. COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE FOURTH CIRCUIT 
 
 

 
Pulte Home Corporation, et al v. Montgomery County, et al 

Case No. 17-2112 (LD) 
 (Originally filed under Case No 8:14-cv-03955) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Outside Counsel-Whiteford Taylor and Preston 
Other Counsel:  Gardner/Dickerson/Adams 
 
Abstract:  Plaintiff filed appeal following dismissal of complaint in U. S. District Court for 

alleged delays and damages associated with the construction of a residential 
development in Clarksburg, Maryland.  

 
Status:   Appeal filed. 
 
Docket: 

09/25/17 Notice of Removal and Complaint filed 
10/10/17 Court files Briefing Order 
11/20/17 Brief filed by Appellant Pulte Home Corporation 
12/19/17 Response Brief filed by Commission 
01/02/18 Reply brief filed by Pulte Home Corporation 
09/25/18 Oral Argument scheduled 

 
 
  

229



 
SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES 

 
Commission v. American Humanist Association, et al  

Case No. 17A1175 (Misc.) 
17-1717 (American Legion) 

18-18 (M-NCPPC) 
(Appeal from Case No. 15-2597) 

 
Lead Counsel:    Hogan Lovells (Neal Kmar Katyal & Mitchell P. Reich) 
Other Counsel:  Gardner 
   Dickerson 
                                       Harvin 
 
 
Abstract: The Commission intends to seek review by the Supreme Court of the decision 

of the Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit finding violation of establishment 
clause of Constitution.   

 
Status:   Petition for Writ of Certiorari to be filed by extended deadline. 
 
Docket:   

04/24/18 Commission’s Application to extend the time to file a Petition 
for Writ of Certiorari  

04/30/18 American Legion’s Application to extend time to file a Petition 
for Writ of Certiorari 

05/03/18 American Legion’s Application to extend time granted 
05/09/18 Commission’s Application to extend time granted 
06/25/18 American Legion’s Petition for Writ of Cert. filed 
06/29/18 Commission’s Petition for Writ of Cert. filed 

 

230



  

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 

 

FROM: Adrian R. Gardner 

  General Counsel 

 

RE:  Litigation Report for August 2018 – FY 2019 

 

 

Please find the attached litigation report we have prepared for your meeting scheduled on 

Wednesday, September 19, 2018.  As always, please do not hesitate to call me in advance 

if you would like me to provide a substantive briefing on any of the cases reported.   

 

Table of Contents – August 2018 – FY 2019 Report 

 

Composition of Pending Litigation ........................................................................... Page 01 

Overview of Pending Litigation (Chart) ................................................................... Page 01 

Litigation Activity Summary .................................................................................... Page 02 

Index of New YTD Cases (FY18)  ........................................................................... Page 03  

Index of Resolved YTD Cases (FY18)  .................................................................... Page 04 

Disposition of FY18 Closed Cases Sorted by Department  ...................................... Page 05  

Index of Reported Cases Sorted by Jurisdiction ....................................................... Page 06 

Litigation Report Ordered by Court Jurisdiction ...................................................... Page 07 

 

 

231



August 2018 

 Composition of Pending Litigation 

 (Sorted By Subject Matter and Forum) 
 

 State Trial 
Court 

Federal 
Trial 
Court 

Maryland 
COSA 

Maryland 
Court of 
Appeals 

Federal 
Appeals 

Court 

U.S. 
Supreme 

Court 
Subject Matter 

Totals 

Admin Appeal: 
Land Use   2    2 

Admin Appeal: 
Other       - 

Land Use 
Dispute     1  1 

Tort Claim 6      6 
Employment 
Dispute   1    1 

Contract Dispute 4  2    6 
Property Dispute   2    2 
Civil 
Enforcement       - 

Workers’ 
Compensation 2      2 

Debt Collection       - 
Bankruptcy       - 
Miscellaneous 1  2   1 4 
Per Forum Totals 13 - 9 - 1 1 24 

 

 

LAND USE
11%

EMPLOYMENT
4%

TORT CLAIMS
23%

WORKERS' 
COMPENSATION

8%

OTHER
54%

OVERVIEW OF PENDING LITIGATION

By Major Case Categories

232



August 2018 Litigation  

Activity Summary 

 
 COUNT FOR MONTH COUNT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018 

Pending 
In July 
2018  

New 
Cases 

Resolved 
Cases 

Pending 
Prior 
F/Y 

New 
Cases 

F/YTD** 

Resolved 
Cases 

F/YTD** 

Pending 
Current 
Month 

Admin Appeal: 
Land Use (AALU) 2   2   2 

Admin Appeal: 
Other (AAO) 0   0   - 

Land Use 
Disputes (LD) 1   1   1 

 
Tort Claims (T) 6   6   6 

Employment 
Disputes (ED) 1   1   1 

Contract Disputes 
(CD) 6   6   6 

Property Disputes 
(PD) 2   2   2 

Civil Enforcement 
(CE) 0   0   - 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

(WC) 
2   2   2 

Debt Collection 
(D) 0   0   - 

 
Bankruptcy (B) 0   0   - 

 
Miscellaneous (M) 4   4   4 

 
Totals 24 - - 24 - - 24 

 
 
 
 
 

    

 

 

 

 

 

233



 

 

INDEX OF YTD NEW CASES 

(7/1/2018 TO 6/30/19) 

 

 

A.  New Trial Court Cases.   Unit  Subject Matter  Month  
       
 
B.  New Appellate Court Cases.  Unit  Subject Matter  Month 
 
 
C.  New Supreme Court of the U.S. Cases. Unit  Subject Matter  Month 
 
  

234



INDEX OF YTD RESOLVED CASES 

(7/1/2018 TO 6/30/19) 

  
A.  Trial Court Cases Resolved.                        Unit                  Subject Matter   Month 
 
 
B.  Appellate Court Cases Resolved.                Unit Subject Matter   Month 
 
 

235



Disposition of FY19 Closed Cases Sorted by Department 
CLIENT PRINCIPAL CAUSE OF ACTION IN DISPUTE DISPOSITION 

 
Employees Retirement System   
   
Finance Department   
   
Department of Human Resources & Management   
   
Montgomery County Department of Planning    

   
Montgomery County Department of Parks    
   
Montgomery County Park Police  
 
 

  
   
Montgomery County Planning Board   
   
Prince George’s County Department of Parks and 
Recreation 

  

   
Prince George’s County Planning Department   
   
Prince George’s County Planning Board   
   
 
 
Prince George’s Park Police 

  

   
Office of Internal Audit   
   

236



INDEX OF CASES 
 
DISTRICT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND ..................................................... 7 
Arnold v. Napier. ........................................................................................................................................... 7 

Commission v. D. L. Boyd………………………………………………………………………………………  …7 

Commission v. McCoy. ................................................................................................................................. 7 

Rivers v. Fitts ................................................................................................................................................ 8 

CIRCUIT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND ....................................................... 9 
Bundu v. Bowman. ........................................................................................................................................ 9 

Commission v. Clean Air Mechanical Inc., et al ............................................................................................ 9 

Commission v. Ferrante. ............................................................................................................................. 10 

Diggs v. Robinson, et al. ............................................................................................................................. 10 

Gutierrez v. Commission. ............................................................................................................................ 11 

Ross v. Commission. .................................................................................................................................. 11 

Sauer, Inc. v. Commission .......................................................................................................................... 12 

CIRCUIT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND ............................................................ 13 

Melara, et al. v. Evans ................................................................................................................................. 13 

Global Lifesci Development Corp. v. Montgomery County, et al. ............................................................... 13 

MARYLAND COURT OF SPECIAL APPEALS ......................................................................................... 14 

Brooks v. Commission ................................................................................................................................ 14 

Burnette v. Commission .............................................................................................................................. 14 

Fort Myer Construction Corporation v. Commission  .................................................................................. 15 

Pletsch, et al v. Commission ....................................................................................................................... 15 

Price, et al v. Prince George’s County, et al ............................................................................................... 16 

Rounds v. Montgomery County, MD, et al .................................................................................................. 16 

Rounds v. Montgomery County, MD, et al .................................................................................................. 17 

The Town of Forest Heights v. Commission  .............................................................................................. 17 

URS v. Commission .................................................................................................................................... 17 

MARYLAND COURT OF APPEALS .......................................................................................................... 18 
U.S. DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF MARYLAND ............................................................... 18 
U.S. COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE FOURTH CIRCUIT ....................................................................... 18 
Pulte Home Corporation v. Montgomery County, et al ............................................................................... 18 

SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES......................................................................................... 19 
Commission v. American Humanist Association......................................................................................... 19 

237



DISTRICT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND 
 
 

Arnold v. Napier 
Case No. 0502-0014579-2018 (Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Foster 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Defense of claim for personal injury involving vehicle owned by Commission.  
  
Status:   In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

05/09/18 Complaint filed 
06/07/18 Notice of Intent to Defend filed 
09/14/18 Trial date 

 
 

Commission v. D.L. Boyd 
Case No. 0502-0016854-2018 (CD) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Harvin 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Complaint for property damage to Commission property (mansion) 
 
Status:   In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

06/12/18 Complaint filed 
06/26/18 Defendant served 
08/16/18 Trial date 

 
 

Commission v. McCoy 
Case No. 0502-0025950-2017 (CD) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Adams 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Complaint for property damage to Commission’s golf cart. 
  
Status:   Case stayed. 
 
Docket: 

08/31/17 Complaint filed 
11/17/17 Case stayed pending settlement negotiations 

 
  
  

238



Rivers v. Fitts 
Case No. 0502-0009015-2018 (Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Harvin 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Defense of claim for personal injury involving vehicle owned by Commission.  
  
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

03/22/18 Complaint filed 
05/01/18 Answer to Complaint by Commission 
05/03/18 Trial Postponed 
07/5/18 Consent Motion to Postpone trial granted 
09/26/18 Trial date 

 
  

239



 CIRCUIT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND 
 

Bundu v. Bowman 
Case No. CAL17-28259 (Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Adams 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Defense of claim for personal injury involving motor vehicle accident in Prince 

George’s County.  
  
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

10/12/17 Complaint filed 
11/02/17 Service of complaint on Commission 
11/17/17 Answer to Complaint filed by Commission 
03/28/18 Pretrial Conference continued 
06/01/18 Pretrial Conference cancelled 
06/04/18 Request to schedule two-day trial 
01/22/19 Trial date 

 
 

Commission v. Clean Air Mechanical Inc., et al 
Case No. CAL18-00211 (CD) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Adams  
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Commission files complaint for breach of contract, fraud and misrepresentation 

arising out of purchase order for installation of three DDU units at Cabin John 
and Wheaton Ice rinks. 

  
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

01/03/18 Case transferred to Circuit Court Prince George’s County from 
Montgomery County (438017-V) 

01/16/18 Answer to complaint and Motion to Dismiss and/or Motion for 
Summary Judgment filed by Defendants 

02/02/18 Voluntary dismissal of Hudgins and Hardesty; Opposition to 
Motion for Summary Judgment filed; Amended Complaint filed 

03/06/18 Motion to Dismiss, or in the Alternative, for Summary Judgment 
and Request for Hearing denied as Moot; matter shall continue 
in due course 

05/14/18 Pretrial conference held 
07/11/18 Counsel for Defendant’s Motion to Withdraw appearance 
07/30/18 Motion to Withdraw granted and Notice to Employ new counsel 
10/30/18 Alternate Dispute Resolution Conference date 
02/11/19 Trial date 

 
  

240



 
 

Commission v. Ferrante 
Case No. CAL 18-09401 (WC) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Foster 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Appeal from WCC Order requiring MNCPPC to pay indemnity benefits 

corresponding to medical treatment. 
 
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

04/17/18 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
05/07/18 Commission files response to Petition for Judicial Review 
06/19/18  Pretrial date rescheduled by consent  
06/26/18  Order of Court rescheduling Pretrial Conference 
09/10/18 Pretrial Conference 
02/20/19 Trial date 

 
 

Diggs v. Robinson, et al 
Case No. CAL17-40851(Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Harvin  
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Defense of claim for personal injury following an automobile accident.  
  
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

12/20/17 Complaint filed 
01/08/18 Defendant Robinson served via certified mail 
01/29/18 Plaintiff files Amended Complaint 
02/02/18 Answer to Complaint filed 
04/02/18 Plaintiff’s Expert Designation filed 
06/21/18 Pretrial Conference held 
01/04/19 Alternate Dispute Resolution Conference 
03/06/19 Trial date 

 
  

241



Gutierrez v. Commission 
Case No. CAL18-15226(Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Harvin  
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Defense of claim for personal injury following an automobile accident.  
  
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

05/22/18 Complaint filed 
06/15/18 Commission served 
07/12/18 Commission filed Information Sheet 
07/24/18 Answer filed 
11/27/18 Pretrial Conference 

 
 

Ross v. Commission 
Case No. CAL18-12424 (WC) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Foster 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Claimant filed for judicial review of WCC Order. 
  
Status:    Pending trial. 
 
Docket: 

04/23/18 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
05/04/18 Commission responds to Petition for Judicial Review 
05/14/18 Commission’s Cross-Petition for Judicial Review 
06/01/18 WCC Notice of Cross Appeal 
07/16/18 Motion for Partial Summary Judgment 
07/24/18 Opposition to Motion for Partial Summary Judgment  
09/06/18 Pretrial Conference 
09/20/18 Motions hearing date 

 
  

242



 
Sauer, Inc. v. Commission 
Case No. CAL17-05868 (CD) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Dickerson 
Other Counsel:  Adams 
 
Abstract:  Plaintiff filed complaint for alleged delays and damages associated with the 

renovation and expansion of the Palmer Park Community Center in Prince 
George’s County.      

 
Status:   Case settled in principle. 
Docket: 

02/28/17 Complaint filed but improperly served; awaiting proper re-
service 

06/20/17 Complaint properly served and accepted by Commission 
08/21/17 Line filed extending responsive pleadings deadline 
09/29/17 Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss filed 
11/03/17 Line filed extending Plaintiff’s deadline to respond to Motion to 

Dismiss until November 22, 2017 
11/17/17 Plaintiff files Opposition to Motion to Dismiss 
12/22/17 Court denies Motion to Dismiss 
01/02/18 Commission files Answer to Complaint 
01/26/18 Counterclaim filed 
03/05/18 Motion to Amend Scheduling Track filed 
03/19/18 Consent Motion to Extend time to respond to Counterclaim and 

other schedule modifications 
03/26/18 Court grants motion to extend time and sets new dates. 
05/09/18 Pretrial conference held 
05/17/18 Motion to Strike Demand for Jury Trial 
05/17/18  Matter changed to 5T Scheduling Track 
06/01/18 Opposition to Motion to Strike Jury Demand 
06/08/18 Motion to Dismiss filed by Commission 
06/22/18 Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to dismiss 
07/05/18 Commission Reply in support of Motion for Summary 

Judgment 
07/17/18 ADR conference held – case settled in principle 
07/23/18 Court dismisses all claims without prejudice. Case closed 

statistically 
 

  

243



CIRCUIT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
 

Melara, et al. v. Evans  
Case No. 439733-V(Tort) 

(originally filed in District Court of Montgomery County 0601-0011991-2017) 
 

Lead Counsel:  Harvin  
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Claim for personal injury following an automobile accident.  
  
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

11/08/17 Case transferred from District Court 
04/19/18 Pretrial conference held 
05/24/18 Pre-trial/settlement conference held 
05/24/18 Case Consolidated with Case No. 439733-V 
05/25/18 Order of Consolidation – All future filings to be in this case 
06/01/18 Answer of Erie Insurance and demand for Jury trial 
07/02/18 Commission’s Answer to Counter-Complaint 
07/09/18 Substitution of Counsel for Defendant Evans 
11/01/18 Pre-trial Conference 
01/14/19 Trial 

 
 

Global Lifesci Development Corporation v. Montgomery County, et al. 
Case No. 444115-V (Misc.) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Foster 
Other Counsel:  Dickerson 
 
Abstract:  Declaratory Judgment, Quiet Title and Injunctive Relief. 
  
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

03/12/18 Complaint filed 
03/12/18 Motion for Summary Judgment filed 
04/27/18 Commission served 
06/07/18 Commission Answer filed 
06/07/18 M-NCPPC response to Motion for Summary Judgment filed 
06/29/18 Amended Complaint filed 
06/29/18 Motion for Summary Judgment filed 
08/28/18 Summary Judgment hearing 

 
  

244



 
MARYLAND COURT OF SPECIAL APPEALS 

 
 

Brooks v. Commission 
September Term 2016, No. 02295 (AALU) 

(Originally filed under CAE16-25941 in Prince George’s County)  
 

Lead Counsel:  Mills   
Other Counsel:  Borden 
 
Abstract: Plaintiff appealed Planning Board ruling granting the departure from design 

standards in Prince George’s County. 
  
Status:   Decision rendered. 
 
Docket: 

01/06/17 Notice of Appeal filed 
06/30/17 Appellant’s Brief and Joint Record Extract filed 
02/18/18 Oral Argument held 
07/20/18 Judgment of Circuit Court affirmed 

 
 

Burnette v. Commission 
September Term 2017, No.2258 (ED) 

(Originally filed under CAL16-35180 in Prince George’s County 
 
Lead Counsel:  Adams 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Former park police officer appealed Circuit Court ruling affirming Administrative 

Hearing Board decision to terminate. 
  
Status:   Appeal filed. 
 
Docket: 

01/23/18 Notice of Appeal 
05/29/18 Appellant’s Brief filed 
06/26/18 Commission filed Brief 

245



Fort Myer Construction Corporation v. Commission 
September Term 2017, No. 1684 (CD) 

(Originally filed under 399804-V in Montgomery County) 
 
Lead Counsel:  MarcusBonsib, LLC (Bruce L. Marcus)  
Other Counsel:  Dickerson 
 
Abstract:  Plaintiff appealed Circuit Court ruling granting dismissal of complaint for alleged 

delays and damages associated with the erection of a steel girder pedestrian 
bridge in Montgomery County. 

    
 
Status:    Appeal filed. 
Docket: 

10/26/17 Notice of Appeal 
11/2018 Oral Argument 

 
 

Pletsch, et al v. Commission 
September Term 2017, No. 2518 (AALU) 

(Originally filed under CAL17-12150 in Prince George’s County) 
 

Lead Counsel:  Mills  
Other Counsel:  Borden 
 
 
Abstract: Two separate appeals filed.  The Citizens filed an appeal of order affirming the 

underlying decision and resolution.  The developer filed an appeal of the denial of 
the motion to dismiss for lack of standing. The Commission did not join in the 
appeal of the denial of the motion to dismiss.  

 
Status:   Appeals filed. 
 
Docket: 

02/16/18 Notice of Appeal filed by Pletsch, et al. 

2/23/18 Notice of Appeal filed by St. John Properties, Inc. 
 

  

246



 
Price, et al v. Prince George’s County, et al 

September Term 2017, No. 2489 (Misc.) 
(Originally filed under CAE16-37806 in Prince George’s County) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Gardner 
Other Counsel:  Dickerson 
 
Abstract:  Plaintiffs below filed a lawsuit for injunctive relief questioning validity of certain 

personal tax enactments involving the Commission and Prince George’s County. 
 
Status:   Appeal filed. 
Docket: 

02/12/18 Notice of Appeal filed 
03/01/18 Court issued show cause for inquiry as to why Pre-hearing 

Information Report not filed  
03/08/18 Court accepts Pre-hearing Information Report for filing 
03/13/18 Order entered to proceed without Pre-hearing Conference 

 
 

Rounds v. Montgomery County, MD, et al 
September Term, 2016, No. 02501(PD) 

(Originally filed under #350954-V in Montgomery County) 
  

 
Lead Counsel:  Gardner  
Other Counsel:  Dickerson 
   Harvin 
 
Abstract:  Appeal from dismissal of claim for violations of the Maryland Constitution and 

declaratory relief concerning alleged Farm Road easement. 
   
Status:   Awaiting decision. 
 
Docket: 

02/03/17 Notice of Appeal filed 
01/09/18 Oral Argument held 

 
 

  

247



Rounds v. Montgomery County, MD, et al 
September Term, 2017, No.1561 (PD) 

(Originally filed under #430530-V in Montgomery County) 
  

 
Lead Counsel:  Gardner  
Other Counsel:  Dickerson 
   Harvin 
 
Abstract:  Appeal from dismissal of claim barred by res judicata concerning alleged Farm 

Road easement. 
   
Status:   Appeal filed. 
 
Docket: 

09/25/17 Notice of Appeal filed 
10/19/17 Court issued show cause for inquiry as to why Pre-hearing 

Information Report not filed  
11/15/17 Court accepts Pre-hearing Information Report for filing 

 
 

The Town of Forest Heights v. Commission 
September Term 2017, No 2538 (Misc.) 

(Originally filed under CAL 16-29110 in Prince George’s County) 
 

Lead Counsel:  Mills 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Commission below filed a declaratory judgment against the Town of Forest 

Heights. The Town appealed.  
 
Status:   Appeal filed.  
 
Docket: 

02/23/18 Notice of Appeal filed 
03/16/18 Order to Proceed w/out Pre-hearing Conference 

 
 

URS Corporation v. Commission  
September Term 2017, No. 00288 (CD) 

 
 
 

Lead Counsel:  MarcusBonsib, LLC (Bruce L. Marcus) 
Other Counsel:  Dickerson 
 
Abstract:  URS appeals the Circuit Court Decision entering judgment in favor of 

Commission as a result of URS breach of duty to defend. 
 
Status:    Decision rendered. 
Docket: 

04/21/17 Notice of Appeal 
03/06/18 Oral Argument held 
07/06/18 Judgment of Circuit Court affirmed.  

248



MARYLAND COURT OF APPEALS 
 

No Pending Cases 
 
 
 
 
 

 
U.S. DISTRICT COURT OF MARYLAND 

 
No Pending Cases 

 
 
 
 
 

U.S. COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE FOURTH CIRCUIT 
 
 

 
Pulte Home Corporation, et al v. Montgomery County, et al 

Case No. 17-2112 (LD) 
 (Originally filed under Case No 8:14-cv-03955) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Outside Counsel-Whiteford Taylor and Preston 
Other Counsel:  Gardner/Dickerson/Adams 
 
Abstract:  Plaintiff filed appeal following dismissal of complaint in U. S. District Court for 

alleged delays and damages associated with the construction of a residential 
development in Clarksburg, Maryland.  

 
Status:   Appeal filed. 
 
Docket: 

09/25/17 Notice of Removal and Complaint filed 
10/10/17 Court files Briefing Order 
11/20/17 Brief filed by Appellant Pulte Home Corporation 
12/19/17 Response Brief filed by Commission 
01/02/18 Reply brief filed by Pulte Home Corporation 
09/25/18 Oral Argument scheduled 

 
 
  

249



 
SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES 

 
Commission v. American Humanist Association, et al  

Case No. 17A1175 (Misc.) 
17-1717 (American Legion) 

18-18 (M-NCPPC) 
 (Appeal from Case No. 15-2597) 

 
Lead Counsel:    Hogan Lovells (Neal Kmar Katyal & Mitchell P. Reich) 
Other Counsel:  Gardner 
   Dickerson 
                                       Harvin 
 
 
Abstract: The Commission intends to seek review by the Supreme Court of the decision 

of the Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit finding violation of establishment 
clause of Constitution.   

 
Status:   Petition for Writ of Certiorari to be filed by extended deadline. 
 
Docket:    

04/24/18 Commission’s Application to extend the time to file a Petition 
for Writ of Certiorari  

04/30/18 American Legion’s Application to extend time to file a Petition 
for Writ of Certiorari 

05/03/18 American Legion’s Application to extend time granted 
05/09/18 Commission’s Application to extend time granted 
06/25/18 American Legion’s Petition for Writ of Cert. filed 
06/29/18 Commission’s Petition for Writ of Cert. filed 
07/12/18 Blanket Consent filed by Respondents, The American Legion, 

the American Legion Department of Maryland, and The 
American Legion Colmar Manor Post 131 

0713/18 Blanket Consent filed by Petitioner, M-NCPPC 
07/25/18 Amicus Brief American Center for Law and Justice 
07/26/18 Amicus Brief Military Order of the Purple Heart 
07/27/18 Amicus Brief 109 United States Senators and Members of the 

United States House of Representatives 
07/27/18 Amicus Brief Major General Patrick Brady and Veterans 

Groups Erecting and Maintaining War Memorials 
07/27/18 Amicus Brief The Town of Taos, New Mexico 
07/27/18 Amicus Brief The Islam and Religious Freedom Action Team 

of the Religious Freedom Institute 
07/27/18 Amicus Brief International Municipal Lawyers Association 
07/27/18 Amicus Brief Veterans of Foreign Wars of the United States 
07/27/18 Amicus Brief Medal of Honor Recipients 
07/27/18 Amicus Brief Maryland Elected Officials 
07/27/18 Amicus Brief State of West Virginia, 27 Other States & the 

Governor of Kentucky 
07/27/18 Amicus Brief Retired Generals and Flag Officers 
07/27/18 Amicus Brief Jewish Coalition for Religious Liberty 
07/27/18 Amicus Brief The Becket Fund for Religious Liberty 

 

250


	September 2018 Cover Sheet - PRA
	2a. July 18 Open Minutes
	4c. July 10 2018 ERS Board Minutes Approved
	6a. Resolution reappointing Michael Strand to MSB
	6b. Resolution 18-26 to Adopt Plans BE Purchase of Credited Service_STAMPED
	6c. Resolution 18-27 Active_106545774_1_Resolution 2018 (Prince George_s)
	Section 1: Authorization of Bonds.  Acting pursuant to the authority of Sections 18-201 through 18-211, inclusive, of the Land Use Article, the Commission hereby authorizes the borrowing of a sum not to exceed $31,500,000 and the evidencing of such bo...
	Section 2: Terms of the Bonds.
	(a) General Provisions.  The Bonds shall be issued as fully registered bonds.  The Commission hereby authorizes the Chairman or Vice Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer of the Commission, in consultation with its bond counsel and financial advisor, t...
	(b) Book-Entry.  The Bonds shall initially be maintained under a book-entry system with The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, or other securities depository, and shall be registered in the name of the nominee of such securities depository,...
	(c) County Guarantee.  The Bonds shall be guaranteed as to payment of principal and interest by Prince George’s County, Maryland (“Prince George’s County”), as required by Section 18-204(d) of the Land Use Article, and such guaranty shall be endorsed ...
	(d) Interest Provisions.  The Chairman or Vice Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer shall determine and approve the method for setting the rates of interest for the Bonds.  The rates of interest for the Bonds shall be as determined and approved by the...
	(e) Redemption Provisions.  The Bonds may be subject to redemption at the times, upon the terms and conditions and at the redemption prices approved by the Chairman or Vice Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer in consultation with the Commission’s fin...

	Section 3: Execution.  The Bonds shall be signed by the manual or facsimile signature of the Chairman of the Commission and shall be attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary-Treasurer of the Commission.  There shall be printed on...
	Section 4: Authentication.  No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or entitled to any security or benefit under this Resolution unless and until a certificate of authentication of such Bond substantially in the form hereinafter adopted s...
	Section 5: Payment of Bonds.  The principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America at the time of payment.  So long as the Bonds or any series of the Bonds are maintained under a...
	Section 6: Registration, Transfer or Exchange of Bonds.  The Commission shall cause to be kept at a designated corporate trust office of a bank or another designated entity hereafter to be determined by the Secretary-Treasurer, which shall be appointe...
	Section 7: Cancellation of Bonds.  The Bonds paid at maturity or upon prior redemption shall be canceled and destroyed by the Bond Registrar in accordance with practices that are commonly used in the marketplace at that time and certificates of such a...
	Section 8: Form of Bonds.  The Bonds hereby authorized shall be in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, with appropriate insertions as therein set forth, which is hereby adopted by the Commission as the approved form of the obligations...
	Section 9: Negotiated Sale.  The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized to sell the Bonds or any series of the Bonds by private negotiated sale on behalf of the Commission as authorized by Section 18-203(f) of the Land Use Article.  The Chairman or ...
	Section 10: Public Sale; Notice of Sale.  The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized to sell the Bonds or any series of the Bonds by public competitive sale.  In the event of a public sale, the Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized to advertise s...
	Section 11: Official Statement; Guaranty.
	(a) The Secretary-Treasurer may prepare a private placement memorandum, a preliminary official statement, a final official statement or another form of offering memorandum (collectively, the “Official Statement”) and a notice of sale with respect to t...
	(b) The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to make all arrangements for the printing, execution and delivery of the Official Statement and certificates for any series of the Bonds.
	(c) The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to arrange with the County Executive of Prince George’s County for the endorsement on the Bonds of the guarantee of the payment of the principal thereof and interest thereon, as herein outl...

	Section 12: Use of Bond Proceeds.  The proceeds of the sale of the Bonds (i) shall be used to pay the costs of the Projects, and (ii) may be used to pay all or a portion of the issuance costs of the Bonds.
	Section 13: Tax Pledge.  The Commission hereby pledges its full faith and credit and the proceeds of the taxes required to be levied and collected for the Commission by Prince George’s County under Section 18-304 of the Land Use Article, to the paymen...
	Section 14: Tax and Arbitrage Covenants.  The Chairman or the Vice Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer shall be the officers of the Commission responsible for the issuance of the Bonds within the meaning of the Arbitrage Regulations (defined herein)....
	Section 15: Appointment of Trustee and other Service Providers.  The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized to engage the services of a trustee, a registrar, a paying agent, a credit facility provider, a broker-dealer, a placement agent, a remarketi...
	Section 16: Approval, Execution and Delivery of Documents.  The Secretary-Treasurer may prepare, as appropriate and shall submit for the approval of the Chairman or the Vice Chairman any agreement with a registrar, a paying agent, a trustee, credit fa...
	Section 17: Continuing Disclosure Agreement.  The Secretary-Treasurer is expressly authorized to approve the form of, and execute and deliver on behalf of the Commission, a continuing disclosure agreement or certificate to assist bidders and/or underw...
	Section 18: Award of Bonds.  The Chairman or the Vice Chairman with prior consultation with the Planning Board of Prince George’s County, and the Secretary-Treasurer are hereby authorized with respect to the Bonds or any series of the Bonds to accept ...
	Section 19: Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect from the date of its passage.

	6d. Resolution 18-28 Active_104687364_3_Resolution 2018 (Montgomery)
	Section 1: Authorization of Bonds.  Acting pursuant to the authority of Sections 18-201 through 18-211, inclusive, of the Land Use Article, the Commission hereby authorizes the borrowing of a sum not to exceed $15,000,000 and the evidencing of such bo...
	Section 2: Terms of the Bonds.
	(a) General Provisions.  The Bonds shall be issued as fully registered bonds.  The Commission hereby authorizes the Chairman or Vice Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer of the Commission, in consultation with its bond counsel and financial advisor, t...
	(b) Book-Entry.  The Bonds shall initially be maintained under a book-entry system with The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, or other securities depository, and shall be registered in the name of the nominee of such securities depository,...
	(c) County Guarantee.  The Bonds shall be guaranteed as to payment of principal and interest by Montgomery County, Maryland (“Montgomery County”), as required by Section 18-204(c) of the Land Use Article, and such guaranty shall be endorsed on each bo...
	(d) Interest Provisions.  The Chairman or Vice Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer shall determine and approve the method for setting the rates of interest for the Bonds.  The rates of interest for the Bonds shall be as determined and approved by the...
	(e) Redemption Provisions.  The Bonds may be subject to redemption at the times, upon the terms and conditions and at the redemption prices approved by the Chairman or Vice Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer in consultation with the Commission’s fin...

	Section 3: Execution.  The Bonds shall be signed by the manual or facsimile signature of the Chairman of the Commission and shall be attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary-Treasurer of the Commission.  There shall be printed on...
	Section 4: Authentication.  No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or entitled to any security or benefit under this Resolution unless and until a certificate of authentication of such Bond substantially in the form hereinafter adopted s...
	Section 5: Payment of Bonds.  The principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America at the time of payment.  So long as the Bonds or any series of the Bonds are maintained under a...
	Section 6: Registration, Transfer or Exchange of Bonds.  The Commission shall cause to be kept at a designated corporate trust office of a bank or another designated entity hereafter to be determined by the Secretary-Treasurer, which shall be appointe...
	Section 7: Cancellation of Bonds.  The Bonds paid at maturity or upon prior redemption shall be canceled and destroyed by the Bond Registrar in accordance with practices that are commonly used in the marketplace at that time and certificates of such a...
	Section 8: Form of Bonds.  The Bonds hereby authorized shall be in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, with appropriate insertions as therein set forth, which is hereby adopted by the Commission as the approved form of the obligations...
	Section 9: Negotiated Sale.  The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized to sell the Bonds or any series of the Bonds by private negotiated sale on behalf of the Commission as authorized by Section 18-203(f) of the Land Use Article.  The Chairman or ...
	Section 10: Public Sale; Notice of Sale.  The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized to sell the Bonds or any series of the Bonds by public competitive sale.  In the event of a public sale, the Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized to advertise s...
	Section 11: Official Statement; Guaranty.
	(a) The Secretary-Treasurer may prepare a private placement memorandum, a preliminary official statement, a final official statement or another form of offering memorandum (collectively, the “Official Statement”) and a notice of sale with respect to t...
	(b) The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to make all arrangements for the printing, execution and delivery of the Official Statement and certificates for any series of the Bonds.
	(c) The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to arrange with the County Executive of Montgomery County for the endorsement on the Bonds of the guarantee of the payment of the principal thereof and interest thereon, as herein outlined ...

	Section 12: Use of Bond Proceeds.  The proceeds of the sale of the Bonds (i) shall be used to pay the costs of the Projects, and (ii) may be used to pay all or a portion of the issuance costs of the Bonds.
	Section 13: Tax Pledge.  The Commission hereby pledges its full faith and credit and the proceeds of the taxes required to be levied and collected for the Commission by Montgomery County under Section 18-304 of the Land Use Article, to the payment of ...
	Section 14: Tax and Arbitrage Covenants.  The Chairman or the Vice Chairman and the Secretary-Treasurer shall be the officers of the Commission responsible for the issuance of the Bonds within the meaning of the Arbitrage Regulations (defined herein)....
	Section 15: Appointment of Trustee and other Service Providers.  The Secretary-Treasurer is hereby authorized to engage the services of a trustee, a registrar, a paying agent, a credit facility provider, a broker-dealer, a placement agent, a remarketi...
	Section 16: Approval, Execution and Delivery of Documents.  The Secretary-Treasurer may prepare, as appropriate and shall submit for the approval of the Chairman or the Vice Chairman any agreement with a registrar, a paying agent, a trustee, credit fa...
	Section 17: Continuing Disclosure Agreement.  The Secretary-Treasurer is expressly authorized to approve the form of, and execute and deliver on behalf of the Commission, a continuing disclosure agreement or certificate to assist bidders and/or underw...
	Section 18: Award of Bonds.  The Chairman or the Vice Chairman with prior consultation with the Planning Board of Montgomery County, and the Secretary-Treasurer are hereby authorized with respect to the Bonds or any series of the Bonds to accept the b...
	Section 19: Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect from the date of its passage.

	6e. 6f. Mutual Aid Packet for Commission Consideration
	Mutual Aid Memo Towns of Colmar Manor and Cottage City
	Final Cottage City Commission Resolution
	Final Colmar Manor Commission Resolution
	Cottage City MOU 2018
	Colmar Manor MOU 2018

	6g. Memo to Resolution 18-31 (amended) Resolution to Adopt Plans BE Surviving Spouse Benefit_STAMPED
	6g. Resolution 18-31 (amended) Resolution to Adopt Plans BE Surviving Spouse Benefit_STAMPED
	6g1 attachment to 18-31 -- Res #18-21
	6h. 2019 Group Insurance Rates
	6i. CAS Labor Cost Allocation Analysis for the FY20 Budget
	6j. Audit Committee ANNUAL AUDIT ACTIVITY REPORT FY18 final
	6k. Merit Rules 1400&1600 Amendments from MD Healthy Working Families Act
	6l. MSRR Annual Leave Carry-Over Section
	7a. LATE PERF EVAL REPORTJUL-AUG.2018
	Sheet1

	7b1. Investment Report_Jun 2018_Commission Mtg
	7b2. Investment Report_Jul 2018_Commission Mtg
	7b3. Annual 115 Trust report- 2018
	7b4. MFD Purchasing Statistics 4th Q
	7c1. Litigation Report Cover Memo for July 2018
	7c2. July  2018 Litigation Report
	7c3. Litigation Report Cover Memo for August 2018
	7c4. August 2018 Litigation Report



